SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

FORM 10-Q

Quarterly report pursuant to sections 13 or 15(d)

Filing Date: **2022-05-16** | Period of Report: **2022-03-31** SEC Accession No. 0001410578-22-001669

(HTML Version on secdatabase.com)

FILER

Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

CIK:1815903| IRS No.: 851410058 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231

Type: 10-Q | Act: 34 | File No.: 001-39752 | Film No.: 22929454

SIC: 2834 Pharmaceutical preparations

Mailing Address 1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, 3RD FLOOR NEW YORK NY 10036 Business Address 1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, 3RD FLOOR NEW YORK NY 10036 973-242-0005

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

EODM 10 O

	run	MI 10-Q	
(Mark One)			
☑ Quarterly Report Pursu	ant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the	e Securities Exch	nange Act of 1934
	for the quarterly pe	riod ended Marc	ch 31, 2022
		Or	
☐ Transition Report Pursu	ant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the	e Securities Excl	nange Act of 1934
	for the transition period	from	to
	Commission Fi	le Number: 001-	39752
	Petros Pharn (Exact name of registr		
n	elaware		85-1410058
	Incorporation)		(I. R. S. Employer Identification No.)
	s, 3rd Floor, New York, New York		10036
(Address of prin	cipal executive offices)		(Zip Code)
	(973) (Registrant's telephone	3) 242-0005 e number, including	area code)
	Securities registered purs	suant to Section 12	(b) of the Act:
Title of each class	Tradii	ng Symbol(s)	Name of each exchange on which registered
Common stock, par value S	50.0001	PTPI	The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \boxtimes No \square

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive I Regulation S-T (section 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for successful Successful Section 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for successful Section Secti	1
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated fil an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated fi company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.	
Large accelerated filer	Accelerated filer
Non-accelerated filer ⊠	Smaller reporting company ⊠ Emerging growth company ⊠
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to unew or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exch	1 17 5
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 o	f the Exchange Act). Yes □ No ⊠
As of May 13, 2022, there were 20,684,723 shares of the registrant's common stock, par value	e \$0.0001 per share, outstanding.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may contain or incorporate by reference forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Such forward-looking statements are based upon management's assumptions, expectations, projections, intentions and beliefs about future events. Except for historical information, the use of predictive, future-tense or forward-looking words such as "intend," "plan," "predict," "may," "will," "project," "target," "strategy," "estimate," "anticipate," "believe," "expect," "continue," "potential," "forecast," "should" and similar expressions, whether in the negative or affirmative, that reflect our current views with respect to future events and operational, economic and financial performance are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are only predictions, and actual results and the timing of certain events and circumstances may differ materially from those described by the forward-looking statements as a result of risks and uncertainties, including, without limitation, Petros' ability to execute on its business strategy, including its plans to develop and commercialize its product candidates; Petros' ability to comply with obligations as a public reporting company; the ability of Petros to timely and effectively implement controls and procedures required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; the risk that the financial performance of Petros may not be as anticipated by the merger transactions that resulted in the Company's creation; risks resulting from Petros' status as an emerging growth company, including that reduced disclosure requirements may make shares of Petros common stock less attractive to investors; risks related to Petros' history of incurring significant losses; risks related to Petros' dependence on the commercialization of a single product, Stendra®; risks related to Petros' ability to obtain regulatory approvals for, or market acceptance of, any of its products or product candidates; and the expected or potential impact of the novel coronavirus ("COVID 19") pandemic, including the emergence of new variants, such as the Omicron variant, and the related responses of governments, consumers, customers, suppliers, employees and the Company, on our business, operations, employees, financial condition and results of operations. Additional factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results anticipated in these forward-looking statements are described in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, in "Risk Factor Summary" and in Part I, Item 1A., "Risk Factors," in Petros' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021 and in our other reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). We advise you to carefully review the reports and documents we file from time to time with the SEC, particularly our annual reports on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and our current reports on Form 8-K. Petros cautions readers that the forward-looking statements included in, or incorporated by reference into, this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q represent our beliefs, expectations, estimates and assumptions only as of the date hereof and are not intended to give any assurance as to future results. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict all of these factors. Further, Petros cannot assess the effect of each such factor on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to be materially different from those contained in any forward-looking statement.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements because of the risks and uncertainties related to them and to the risk factors. We disclaim any obligation to update the forward-looking statements contained in, or incorporated by reference into, this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to reflect any new information or future events or circumstances or otherwise, except as required by the federal securities laws.

OTHER INFORMATION

All references to "Petros," the "Company," "we," "us" and "our" in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q refer to Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION	4
Item 1. Financial Statements	4
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2022 (unaudited) and December 31, 2021	4
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 (unaudited)	5
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 (unaudited)	6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 (unaudited)	7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	8
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.	26
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.	40
Item 4. Controls and Procedures.	40
PART II—OTHER INFORMATION	42
Item 1. Legal Proceedings.	42
Item 1A. Risk Factors.	42
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.	42
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.	42
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.	42
Item 5. Other Information.	42
Item 6. Exhibits.	43
Signatures.	44

PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

PETROS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

	March 31, 2022 (Unaudited)	December 31, 2021 (Audited)
Assets	(Chauditeu)	(Mulicu)
Current assets:		
Cash	\$ 17,671,871	\$ 23,847,572
Accounts receivable, net	3,740,775	2,455,386
Inventories	1,942,873	519,649
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	3,482,586	3,720,088
Total current assets	26,838,105	30,542,695
Fixed assets, net	46,842	49,397
Intangible assets, net	23,734,834	25,293,149
API purchase commitment	4,796,771	11,029,260
Other assets	447,595	475,557
Total assets	\$ 55,864,147	\$ 67,390,058
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity		
Current liabilities:		
Accounts payable	\$ 3,700,326	\$ 4,557,969
Accrued expenses	5,512,006	11,957,384
Accrued inventory purchases	· · · —	14,203,905
Other current liabilities	352,436	260,818
Current portion of promissory note	723,982	_
Total current liabilities	10,288,750	30,980,076
Promissory note	9,477,776	_
Derivative liability	_	460,000
Other long-term liabilities	371,053	405,018
Total liabilities	20,137,579	31,845,094
Stockholders' Equity:		
Preferred stock (par value of \$0.0001 per share, 50,000,000 shares authorized, 0 shares issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,		
respectively)	_	_
Common stock (par value of \$0.0001 per share, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 20,684,723 shares issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2022, and December 31,		
2021, respectively)	2,068	2,068
Additional paid-in capital	106,587,544	106,231,716
Accumulated deficit	(70,863,044)	(70,688,820)
Total Stockholders' Equity	35,726,568	35,544,964

\$ 55,864,147 \$ 67,390,058

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)

	For the Three M	For the Three Months Ended		
	Marcl	March 31,		
	2022	2021		
Net sales	\$ 2,465,169	\$ 4,075,606		
Cost of goods sold	472,340	643,386		
Gross profit	1,992,829	3,432,220		
Operating expenses:				
Selling, general and administrative	3,897,738	3,881,717		
Gain on settlement with Vivus	(3,389,941)	_		
Research and development expense	405,360	19,181		
Depreciation and amortization expense	1,560,870	1,728,829		
Total operating expenses	2,474,027	5,629,727		
Loss from operations	(481,198)	(2,197,507)		
Change in fair value of derivative liability	460,000	5,380,000		
Interest expense, senior debt	<u> </u>	(173,412)		
Interest expense, promissory note	(153,026)			
Net income (loss)	\$ (174,224)	\$ 3,009,081		
Net income (loss) per common share				
Basic and Diluted	\$ (0.01)	\$ 0.31		
Weighted average common shares outstanding				
Basic	20,684,723	9,753,086		
Effects of common share equivalents	<u> </u>	1,600		
Diluted	20,684,723	9,754,686		

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Unaudited)

	Preferred Stock	Common Stock	Common Stock Amount	Additional Paid-in Capital	Accumulated Deficit	Total
Three Months Ended March 31, 2022						
Balance, December 31, 2021	_	20,684,723	\$ 2,068	\$106,231,716	\$ (70,688,820)	\$35,544,964
Stock-based compensation expense	_	_	_	355,828	_	355,828
Net loss					(174,224)	(174,224)
Balance, March 31, 2022	_	20,684,723	\$ 2,068	\$106,587,544	\$ (70,863,044)	\$35,726,568
Three Months Ended March 31, 2021						
Balance, December 31, 2020	500	9,707,655	\$ 971	\$ 79,170,225	\$ (61,702,144)	\$17,469,052
Conversion of Preferred Stock to Common Stock	(500)	60,606	6	(6)	_	_
Non-employee stock-based compensation	_	30,000	3	97,797	_	97,800
Stock-based compensation expense	_	_	_	347,207	_	347,207
Net income					3,009,081	3,009,081
Balance, March 31, 2021		9,798,261	\$ 980	\$ 79,615,223	\$ (58,693,063)	\$20,923,140

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

	For the Three Months Ended March 31,			
		2022		2021
Cash flows from operating activities:				
Net income (loss)	\$	(174,224)	\$	3,009,081
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:				
Depreciation and amortization		1,560,870		1,728,829
Bad debt expense (recoveries)		(115,364)		2,984
Inventory and sample inventory reserve		3,594		48,228
Amortization of deferred financing costs and debt discount		_		12,500
Lease expense		27,962		25,156
Derivative liability		(460,000)		(5,380,000)
Deferred revenue		(70,343)		_
Gain on settlement with Vivus		(3,389,941)		_
Employee stock-based compensation		355,828		347,207
Non-employee stock-based compensation		_		97,800
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:				
Accounts receivable		(1,170,025)		(1,044,213)
Inventories		(1,426,818)		193,987
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		237,502		172,051
Accounts payable		(857,643)		(333,273)
Accrued expenses		74,905		698,498
Other current liabilities		161,961		74,992
Other long-term liabilities		(33,965)		(100,408)
Net cash used in operating activities		(5,275,701)		(446,581)
. 0		, , , ,		,
Cash flows from financing activities:				
Payment of promissory note		(900,000)		_
Payment of senior debt				(1,592,028)
Payment of portion of senior debt end of term fee		_		(534,375)
Net cash used in financing activities		(900,000)		(2,126,403)
8	_	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>		())
Net decrease in cash		(6,175,701)		(2,572,984)
		(-))		()- :))
Cash, beginning of period		23,847,572		17,139,694
Cash, end of period	\$	17,671,871	\$	14,566,710
, 1	•	.,,	•	, ,
Supplemental cash flow information:				
Cash paid for interest during the period	\$	_	\$	176,677
Noncash Items:				,
Noncash decrease in accrued expenses related to Vivus settlement	\$	(6,520,283)	\$	_
Noncash decrease in accrued inventory purchases related to Vivus settlement		(14,203,905)		_
Noncash increase in promissory note related to Vivus settlement		10,201,758		_
Noncash decrease in API purchase commitment related to Vivus settlement		6,232,489		_

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

1) Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation, and Liquidity

Nature of Operations

Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Petros" or the "Company") is a pharmaceutical company focused on men's health therapeutics with a full range of commercial capabilities including sales, marketing, regulatory and medical affairs, finance, trade relations, pharmacovigilance, market access relations, manufacturing, and distribution.

Petros consists of wholly owned subsidiaries, Metuchen Pharmaceuticals LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Metuchen"), Neurotrope, Inc., a Nevada corporation ("Neurotrope"), Timm Medical Technologies, Inc. ("Timm Medical"), and Pos-T-Vac, LLC ("PTV"). The Company is engaged in the commercialization and development of Stendra®, a U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") approved PDE 5 inhibitor prescription medication for the treatment of erectile dysfunction ("ED"), which we have licensed from Vivus, Inc. ("Vivus"). Petros also markets its own line of ED products in the form of vacuum erection device products through its subsidiaries, Timm Medical and PTV. In addition to ED products, we have acquired an exclusive global license to develop and commercialize H100TM, a novel and patented topical formulation candidate for the treatment of acute Peyronie's disease.

The Company was organized as a Delaware corporation on May 14, 2020 for the purpose of effecting the transactions contemplated by that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 17, 2020 (the "Merger Agreement"), by and between Petros, Neurotrope, PM Merger Sub 1, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros ("Merger Sub 1"), PN Merger Sub 2, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros ("Merger Sub 2"), and Metuchen. The Merger Agreement provided for (1) the merger of Merger Sub 1, with and into Metuchen, with Metuchen surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros (the "Metuchen Merger") and (2) the merger of Merger Sub 2 with and into Neurotrope, with Neurotrope surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros (the "Neurotrope Merger" and together with the Metuchen Merger, the "Mergers"). As a result of the Mergers, Metuchen and Neurotrope became wholly-owned subsidiaries of Petros, and Petros became a publicly traded corporation on December 1, 2020. On December 7, 2020, Neurotrope completed the spin-off of certain assets, whereby (i) any cash in excess of \$20,000,000, subject to adjustment as provided in the Merger Agreement, and all of the operating assets and liabilities of Neurotrope not retained by Neurotrope in connection with the Mergers were contributed to Synaptogenix, Inc. (formerly known as Neurotrope Bioscience, Inc.), a Delaware corporation ("Synaptogenix"), and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Neurotrope.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements include all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, considered necessary to present fairly our financial position, results of operations and cash flows. However, actual results could differ from those estimates. The unaudited interim consolidated results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results that may occur for the full fiscal year. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been omitted pursuant to instructions, rules, and regulations prescribed by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and notes previously distributed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021.

All transactions between the consolidated entities have been eliminated in consolidation.

Liquidity

The Company has experienced net losses and negative cash flows from operations since our inception. As of March 31, 2022, the Company had cash of \$17.7 million, positive working capital of \$16.5 million, an accumulated deficit of \$70.9 million and used cash in operations during the three months ended March 31, 2022 of \$5.3 million. The Company's plans include, or may include, utilizing its cash and cash equivalents on hand, as well as exploring additional ways to raise capital in addition to increasing cash flows from operations. In January 2022, the Company executed a promissory note in favor of Vivus in connection with the Vivus Settlement Agreement in the principal amount of \$10,201,758. The terms of this promissory note are discussed in Note 8. The Company believes the cash on hand is sufficient to fund operations and debt service through at least May 16, 2023, however for periods after May 16,

2023, the Company may need to raise additional funds or curtail certain discretionary expenditures in order to maintain an appropriate level of cash to fund our operations. While the Company is optimistic that it will be successful in its efforts to achieve its plans, there can be no assurances that it will be successful in doing so.

2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Such estimates include the adequacy of accounts receivable reserves, return reserves, inventory reserves, assessment of long-lived assets, including intangible asset impairment and the valuation of the derivative liability, among others. Actual results could differ from these estimates and changes in these estimates are recorded when known.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to risks common to companies in the pharmaceutical industry including, but not limited to, uncertainties related to commercialization of competitor products, regulatory approvals, dependence on key products, dependence on key customers and suppliers, and protection of intellectual property rights.

The World Health Organization ("WHO") declared the coronavirus ("COVID-19") a global pandemic on March 11, 2020, and since that time many of the previously imposed restrictions and other measures which were instituted in response have been subsequently reduced or lifted. However, the COVID-19 pandemic remains highly unpredictable and dynamic, and its duration and extent continue to be dependent on various developments, such as the emergence of variants to the virus that may cause additional strains of COVID-19, the administration and ultimate effectiveness of vaccines, and the eventual timeline to achieve a sufficient level of herd immunity among the general population. Accordingly, the COVID-19 pandemic may continue to have negative effects on the health of the U.S. economy for the foreseeable future. The Company cannot reasonably estimate the length or severity of the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic, including the emergence of any new variants, such as the Omicron variants, will have on its financial results, and the Company may experience a material adverse impact on its sales, results of operations, and cash flows in fiscal 2022 and beyond.

During 2020, government regulations and the voluntary business practices of the Company and prescribing physicians had prevented in-person visits by sales representatives to physicians' offices. The Company had taken steps to mitigate the negative impact on its businesses of such restrictions. In March 2020, the Company reduced our sales representative head count to reflect the lack of in-person visits. The Company has maintained a core sales team which continued to contact physicians via telephone and videoconference as well as continuing to have webinars provided by the Company's key opinion leaders to other physicians and pharmacists. In response to the spread of COVID-19, in March 2020, the Company closed its administrative offices. In January 2022, the Company sub-leased its Manalapan office and all administrative employees are working remotely for the foreseeable future. The Company has fully resumed in-person interactions by its customer-facing personnel in compliance with local and state restrictions. The Company also continues to engage with customers virtually as the Company seeks to continue to support healthcare professionals and patient care. Since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have experienced a shift from in-person sales to online, telehealth-based sales. These online sales generally have lower gross margins than in-person sales, which has impacted our net revenues.

Revenue Recognition

Prescription Medication Sales

The Company's prescription medication sales consist of sales of Stendra® in the U.S. for the treatment of male erectile dysfunction. Under ASC Topic 606, Revenue Recognition ("Topic 606"), the Company recognizes revenue from prescription medication sales when its performance obligations with a customer has been satisfied. In the contracts with its customers, the Company has identified a single performance obligation to provide Stendra® upon receipt of a

customer order. The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the Company's customers obtain control of Stendra®, which is typically upon delivery. The Company invoices its customers after Stendra® has been delivered and invoice payments are generally due within 30 to 75 days of invoice date.

In determining the transaction price, a significant financing component does not exist since the timing from when the Company delivers Stendra® to when the customers pay for the product is typically less than one year. The Company records prescription medication sales

net of any variable consideration, including but not limited to discounts, rebates, returns, chargebacks, and distribution fees. The Company uses the expected value method when estimating its variable consideration, unless terms are specified within contracts. The identified variable consideration is recorded as a reduction of revenue at the time revenues from sales of Stendra® are recognized. The Company recognizes revenue to the extent that it is probable that a significant revenue reversal will not occur in a future period. These estimates may differ from actual consideration received. The Company evaluates these estimates each reporting period to reflect known changes.

As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the reserves for sales deductions were \$4.7 million and \$4.7 million, respectively. The most significant sales deductions included in this reserve relate to returns, contract rebates, and distribution service ("DSA") fees. Our estimates are based on factors such as our direct and indirect customers' buying patterns and the estimated resulting contractual deduction rates, historical experience, specific known market events and estimated future trends, current contractual and statutory requirements, industry data, estimated customer inventory levels, current contract sales terms with our direct and indirect customers, and other competitive factors. Significant judgment and estimation is required in developing the foregoing and other relevant assumptions. The most significant sales deductions are further described below.

Product Returns

Consistent with industry practice, the Company maintains a return policy that generally allows its customers to return Stendra® and receive credit for product within six months prior to expiration date and up to one year after expiration date. The provision for returns is based upon the Company's estimates for future Stendra® returns and historical experience. The provision of returns is part of the variable consideration recorded at the time revenue is recognized. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the reserves for product returns were \$3.8 million and \$3.8 million, respectively, and are included as a component of accrued expenses.

Contract Rebates, Coupon Redemptions and DSA Fees

The Company establishes contracts with wholesalers, chain stores, and indirect customers that provide for rebates, sales incentives, DSA fees and other allowances. Some customers receive rebates upon attaining established sales volumes. Direct rebates are generally rebates paid to direct purchasing customers based on a percentage applied to a direct customer's purchases from us, including fees paid to wholesalers under our DSAs, as described below. Indirect rebates are rebates paid to indirect customers that have purchased our products from a wholesaler under a contract with us.

The Company has entered into DSAs with certain of our significant wholesaler customers that obligate the wholesalers, in exchange for fees paid by us, to: (i) manage the variability of their purchases and inventory levels within specified limits based on product demand and (ii) provide us with specific services, including the provision of periodic retail demand information and current inventory levels for our pharmaceutical products held at their warehouse locations. See Note 3 Accounts Receivable, net for further discussion of these reserves.

Medical Device Sales

The Company's medical device sales consist of domestic and international sales of men's health products for the treatment of erectile dysfunction. The men's health products do not require a prescription and include Vacuum Erection Devices, PreBoost, VenoSeal, penile injections (Rx), and urinary tract infection tests. Under Topic 606, the Company recognizes revenue from medical device sales when its performance obligations with its customers have been satisfied. In the contracts with its customers, the Company has identified a single performance obligation to provide medical devices upon receipt of a customer order. The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the Company's customers obtain control of the medical device, which is typically upon shipment. The Company invoices its customers after the medical devices have been shipped and invoice payments are generally due within 30 days of invoice date for domestic customers and 90 days for international customers.

In determining the transaction price, a significant financing component does not exist since the timing from when the Company delivers the medical devices to when the customers pay for the product is typically less than one year. The Company records medical device sales net of any variable consideration, including but not limited to returns. The Company uses the expected value method when estimating its variable consideration. The identified variable consideration is recorded as a reduction of revenue at the time revenues from the medical device sales are recognized. The Company recognizes revenue to the extent that it is probable that a significant revenue reversal will not occur in a future period. These estimates may differ from actual consideration received. The Company evaluates these estimates each reporting period to reflect known changes.

Product Returns

Consistent with industry practice, the Company maintains a return policy that generally allows its customers to return medical devices and receive credit for products within 90 days of the sale. The provision for returns is based upon the Company's estimates for future product returns and historical experience. The Company has not made significant changes to the judgments made in applying Topic 606. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the reserves for product returns for medical devices were not significant.

Contract Costs

In relation to customer contracts, the Company incurs costs to fulfill a contract but does not incur costs to obtain a contract. These costs to fulfill a contract do not meet the criteria for capitalization and are expensed as incurred. As such, the Company did not have any contract assets at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Certain assets and liabilities are carried at fair value under U.S. GAAP. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value are to be classified and disclosed in one of the following three levels of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs (other than Level 1 quoted prices), such as quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active for identical or similar assets or liabilities, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to determining the fair value of the assets or liabilities, including pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques.

Financial instruments recognized at historical amounts in the consolidated balance sheets consist of cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current liabilities. The Company believes that the carrying values of cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

In connection with the Mergers in December 2020, each security holder of Metuchen received an earnout consideration classified as a derivative liability to be paid in the form of Petros Common Stock. The Company estimated their fair value using a Monte Carlo Simulation approach. This fair value measurement is based on significant inputs not observable in the market and thus represents a Level 3 measurement within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of the derivative liability as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was \$0 million and \$0.5 million, respectively. See Note 9 Stockholders' Equity.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees and consultants in accordance with applicable accounting principles, which requires compensation expense related to stock-based transactions, including employee stock options and consultant warrants, to be measured and recognized in the financial statements based on a determination of the fair value of the stock options or warrants. The grant date fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton ("Black-Scholes") pricing model. Employee stock option and consulting expenses are recognized over the employee's or consultant's requisite service period (generally the vesting period of the equity grant).

The Company's option pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility and
expected term. Any changes in these highly subjective assumptions can significantly impact stock-based compensation
expense. See Note 10 Stock Options.

Income Taxes

The Company is a C corporation, which accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements. Under this method, the Company determines deferred tax assets and liabilities on the basis of the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities by using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent that it believes that these assets are more likely than not to be realized. In making such a determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax-planning strategies, and results of recent operations. If the Company determines that it would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of its net recorded amount, the Company would make an adjustment to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance, which would reduce the provision for income taxes.

The Company records uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740 on the basis of a two-step process in which (1) it determines whether it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained on the basis of the technical merits of the position and (2) for those tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the Company recognizes the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the related tax authority.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits on the income tax expense line in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, no accrued interest or penalties are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet.

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share

The Company computes basic net loss per common share by dividing net loss applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stocks outstanding during the period, excluding the anti-dilutive effects of stock options and warrants to purchase common stocks. The Company computes diluted net loss per common stock by dividing the net loss applicable to common stocks by the sum of the weighted-average number of common stocks outstanding during the period plus the potential dilutive effects of its convertible preferred stocks, stock options and warrants to purchase common stocks, but such items are excluded if their effect is anti-dilutive. Because the impact of these items is anti-dilutive during periods of net loss, there was no difference between the Company's basic and diluted net loss per stock of common stock for the three months ended March 31, 2022. See Note 13 Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Pending Adoption as of March 31, 2022

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. ASU 2016-13, together with a series of subsequently issued related ASUs, has been codified in Topic 326. Topic 326 establishes new requirements for companies to estimate expected credit losses when measuring certain financial assets, including accounts receivables. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the new guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

3) Accounts Receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net is comprised of the following:

	March 31,	December 31,
	2022	2021
Gross accounts receivables	\$4,528,812	\$3,363,827
Distribution service fees	(317,247)	(371,310)
Chargebacks accrual	(5,880)	_
Cash discount allowances	(202,589)	(159,446)
Allowance for doubtful accounts	(262,321)	(377,685)
Total accounts receivable, net	\$3,740,775	\$2,455,386

For the three months ended March 31, 2022, gross sales from customers representing 10% or more of the Company's total gross sales included three customers which represented approximately 30%, 23% and 22% of total gross sales, respectively. For the three months ended March 31, 2021, gross sales from customers representing 10% or more of the Company's total gross sales included one customer which represented approximately 88% of total gross sales.

Receivables from customers representing 10% or more of the Company's gross accounts receivable included two customers at March 31, 2022 equal to 35% and 31%, respectively, of the Company's total gross accounts receivables. Receivables from customers representing 10% or more of the Company's gross accounts receivable included three customers at December 31, 2021 equal to 40%, 19% and 15%, respectively, of the Company's total gross accounts receivables.

4) Inventories

Inventory is comprised of the following:

	March 31, 2022 December 3		iber 31, 2021
Raw materials	\$ 1,854,160	\$	359,741
Finished goods	88,713		159,908
Total inventory	\$ 1,942,873	\$	519,649

Finished goods are net of valuation reserves of \$386,892 and \$383,298 as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. Raw materials are net of valuation reserves of \$2,872,977 as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, which is related to bulk inventory that is fully reserved.

5) Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets are comprised of the following:

	March 31, 2022 December 3	
Prepaid insurance	\$ 128,004	\$ 73,223
Prepaid FDA fees	554,120	831,179
Prepaid coupon fees	71,500	71,500
API purchase commitment asset (see Note 13)	1,419,538	1,419,538
Due from wholesalers	609,059	609,059
Other prepaid expenses	624,823	605,422
Other current assets	75,542	110,167
Total prepaid expenses and other current assets	\$ 3,482,586	\$ 3,720,088

6) Intangible Assets

Balance at December 31, 2020	\$32,160,919
Amortization expense	(6,867,770)
Balance at December 31, 2021	25,293,149
Amortization expense	(1,558,315)
Balance at March 31, 2022	\$23,734,834

The future annual amortization related to the Company's intangible assets is as follows as of March 31, 2022:

2022 (remaining 9 months)	4,633,426
2023	5,445,729
2024	4,650,787
2025	2,716,011
2026	2,201,720
Thereafter	4,087,161
Total	\$23,734,834

The intangible assets held by the Company are the Stendra® product, Timm Medical product, and PTV product and are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of 10 years, 12 years, and 12 years, respectively. The carrying value of the Stendra® product, Timm Medical product, and PTV product as of March 31, 2022 are \$17.8 million, \$4.6 million and \$1.3 million, respectively. The carrying value of the Stendra® product, Timm Medical product, and PTV product as of December 31, 2021 were \$19.1 million, \$4.9 million and \$1.4 million, respectively. The Company determined that no impairment existed as of March 31, 2022.

7) Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses are comprised of the following:

	March 31, 2022	December 31, 2021	
Accrued price protection (see note 13)	\$ —	\$ 1,853,979	
Accrued product returns	3,763,211	6,192,845	
Accrued contract rebates	376,937	379,242	
Due to Vivus (see Note 13)		2,267,523	
Due to third-party logistics provider	349,410	479,178	
Accrued bonuses	532,729	527,563	
Accrued professional fees	14,957	125,392	
Other accrued expenses	474,762	131,662	
Total accrued expenses	\$ 5,512,006	\$ 11,957,384	

8) Debt

Promissory Note

In connection with the Settlement Agreement entered into with Vivus (see Note 13), Petros executed an interest-bearing promissory note (the "Note") in favor of Vivus in the principal amount of \$10,201,758. The parties also entered into a Security Agreement to secure Petros' obligations under the Note.

Under the terms of the Note, the original principal amount of \$10,201,758 is payable in consecutive quarterly installments of principal and interest beginning on April 1, 2022 through January 1, 2027. Interest on the principal amount will accrue at a rate of 6% per year. The Company may prepay the Note, in whole or in part, at any time, with no premium or penalty. In the event that the Company defaults under the Security Agreement, all principal outstanding under the Note at the time of the default will bear interest at a rate of 9% per year until the full and final payment of all principal and interest under the Note (regardless of whether any default is waived or cured). Pursuant to the Security

Senior Debt

The Company did not have any senior indebtedness as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

On September 30, 2016, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Hercules, a third party, for a \$35 million term loan ("Senior Debt") with a stated interest rate of the greater of either (i) Prime plus 7.25% or (ii) 10.75%. The Senior Debt included an additional Paid-In-Kind ("PIK") interest that increased the outstanding principal on a monthly basis at an annual rate of 1.35% and a \$787,500 end of term charge.

On November 22, 2017, the Company amended its loan agreement with Hercules ("First Amendment"). A covenant was added, in which the Company must achieve a certain minimum EBITDA, as defined, target for the trailing twelvementh period, ending June 30, 2018. The end of term charge was increased from \$787,500 to \$1,068,750. The minimum EBITDA for each of the trailing six months and the fixed charge coverage ratio (1:1 to 0.9:1) were reduced. The Company was also required to prepay \$10,000,000 in principal.

Monthly principal payments, including interest, commenced November 1, 2018 with the outstanding balance of the Senior Debt due in full on November 1, 2020. The end of term charge was being recognized as interest expense and accreted over the term of the Senior Debt using the effective interest method.

On April 13, 2020, the Company amended its loan agreement with Hercules. The amendment waived all financial covenant defaults for all periods since inception through the period ending March 31, 2020. The amendment also included the following changes:

- Removed the Adjusted EBITDA and Fixed Cost Coverage Ratio Covenants.
- Extended the maturity date from October 1, 2020 to April 2021, which was further extendable to December 1, 2021 upon achieving the Financing Milestone, as defined in the agreement.
- Increased the cash interest rate from the greater of (a) 10.75% or (b) 10.75% plus the US WSJ Prime minus 4.50% to the greater of (a) 11.50% or (b) 11.50% plus the US WSJ Prime minus 4.25%.
- Removed the PIK interest rate.
- Removed the prepayment penalty.

The end of term charge of \$1,068,750 was partially extended with \$534,375 paid on October 1, 2020 and \$534,375 paid on February 1, 2021.

Effective September 30, 2020, the Company and Hercules entered into the Third Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement ("Third Amendment") to provide for interest only payments commencing on October 1, 2020 and continuing through December 22, 2020 unless the Company raised net cash proceeds of at least \$25 million through an equity or debt financing or other transaction on or before December 21, 2020. The Third Amendment also amended the minimum cash, minimum net revenue and minimum EBITDA financial covenants. On that same date, Juggernaut Capital Partners III, L.P., Hercules and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. entered into an escrow agreement (the "Escrow Agreement") to escrow funds amounting to approximately \$1.5 million, an amount equal to the aggregate of certain principal payments due under the Loan Agreement, as amended. In connection with the consummation of the Mergers, the funds held in escrow were disbursed back to Juggernaut Capital Partners III, L.P. and the Escrow Agreement was terminated.

The Company satisfied the maturity date extension requirement pursuant to funds retained upon the closing of the Mergers in December 2020. As a result, the Senior Debt had a maturity date of December 1, 2021.

On November 3, 2021, the Company repaid \$1,179,651 towards the senior debt. This payment satisfied the remaining balance of the senior debt as of that date.

15

Interest expense on the Senior Debt was \$173,412 for the three months ended March 31, 2021. As of December 31, 2021,

there was \$0 of accrued and unpaid interest.

9) Stockholders' Equity

On January 26, 2021, 500 shares of the Company's Preferred Stock were converted into 60,606 shares of the Company's common stock.

Effective January 1, 2021, the Company entered into a Marketing and Consulting Agreement (the "CorIRAgreement") with CorProminence, LLC (the "Consultant") for certain shareholder information and relation services. The term of the CorIRAgreement is for one year with automatic consecutive one-year renewal terms. As consideration for the shareholder information and relation services, the Company will pay the Consultant a monthly retainer of \$7,500 and issued 30,000 restricted shares of the Company's common stock to the Consultant on March 24, 2021 (the "CorIR Grant Date"). The restricted shares vested immediately on the CorIR Grant Date.

Effective April 1, 2021, the Company entered into a Consulting and Advisory Agreement (the "King Agreement") with Tania King, an employee of Juggernaut Capital Partners LLP, for certain services. The term of the King Agreement is indefinite but may be terminated by either party, with or without cause. As consideration for the consulting and advisory services, the Company will pay Ms. King a monthly fee of \$4,000, an additional \$12,000 payment included with the first monthly fee for services provided since January 1, 2021, and issue restricted stock units for shares of the Company's common stock ("RSU's") with a cash value of \$72,000 as of the date of the grant (the "King Grant Date"). The RSU's shall vest and settle in full on the one-year anniversary of the King Grant Date. On April 7, 2022, the Company issued an additional grant of 60,505 RSU's of the Company's common stock with a value of \$72,001 as of the date of the grant. The RSU's vest and settle in full on the one-year anniversary of the additional grant date.

Effective June 4, 2021, the Company entered into a Service Agreement with IRTH Communications, LLC ("IRTH") for certain investor relations services (the "IRTH Agreement"). The term of the IRTH Agreement is for one year with an optional one-year renewal term. As consideration for the services, the Company will pay IRTH a fixed fee of \$6,750 per month for the term of the IRTH Agreement and issued 28,338 restricted shares of the Company's common stock with a value of \$90,002 as of the date of the grant (the "IRTH Grant Date"). The restricted shares vest immediately on the IRTH Agreement Grant Date.

Contingent Consideration

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, each security holder of Metuchen received a right to receive such security holder's pro rata stock of an aggregate of 14,232,090 shares of Petros Common Stock potentially issuable upon the achievement of certain milestones set forth in the Merger Agreement. The milestones are for the achievement of stock price and market capitalization, as defined over a two-year period.

Market Capitalization/Gross Proceeds Earnout Payments

In connection with the Mergers, each security holder of Metuchen received the right to receive earnout consideration, which was liability classified, to be paid in the form of Petros Common Stock if either Petros' Market Capitalization (as defined in the Merger Agreement) or Petros receives aggregate gross proceeds that equals or exceeds certain milestones set forth in the Merger Agreement, as discussed below. Each milestone earnout payment was only achievable and payable one time and upon attainment of such milestone. In no event will the sum of the milestone earnout payments be greater than 10,232,090 shares of Petros Common Stock. As of March 31, 2022, the milestones have not been achieved. The fair value of the derivative liability was \$0 and \$0.5 million as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively.

Metuchen equity holders will have the opportunity to receive the following during the period ending December 2022:

- a. The Earnout Payment shall be equal to 2,000,000 shares of Petros Common Stock if:
 - i. Petros' Market Capitalization (as defined in the Merger Agreement) is greater than or equal to \$250,000,000 for a period of twenty (20) trading days during any thirty (30) consecutive trading day period with a Closing Price of no less than \$17.50 on each such trading day; or

ii.	Petros receives aggregate gross proceeds of at least \$25,000,000 in an offering (or series of offerings within a sixty (60) calendar day period) of Petros Common Stock with a price per share of Petros Common Stock sold equal to no less than \$17.50 in each offering (or series of offerings) and where Petros has a Market Capitalization immediately prior to each such offering (or series of offerings) equal to at least \$250,000,000.
	16

- b. The Earnout Payment shall be equal to 2,000,000 shares of Petros Common Stock if:
 - i. Petros' Market Capitalization is greater than or equal to \$300,000,000 for a period of twenty (20) trading days during any thirty (30) consecutive trading day period with a Closing Price of no less than \$18.75 on each such trading day; or
 - ii. Petros receives aggregate gross proceeds of at least \$30,000,000 in an offering (or series of offerings within a sixty (60) calendar day period) of Petros Common Stock with a price per share of Petros Common Stock sold equal to no less than \$18.75 in each offering (or series of offerings) and where Petros has a Market Capitalization immediately prior to each such offering (or series of offerings) equal to at least \$300,000,000.
- c. The Earnout Payment shall be equal to 3,000,000 shares of Petros Common Stock if:
 - i. Petros' Market Capitalization is greater than or equal to \$400,000,000 for a period of twenty (20) trading days during any thirty (30) consecutive trading day period with a Closing Price of no less than \$22.50 on each such trading day; or
 - ii. Petros receives aggregate gross proceeds of at least \$40,000,000 in an offering (or series of offerings within a sixty (60) calendar day period) of Petros Common Stock with a price per share of Petros Common Stock sold equal to no less than \$22.50 in each offering (or series of offerings) and where Petros has a Market Capitalization immediately prior to each such offering (or series of offerings) equal to at least \$400,000,000.
- d. The Earnout Payment shall be equal to 3,232,090 shares of Petros Common Stock if:
 - i. Petros' Market Capitalization is greater than or equal to \$500,000,000 for a period of twenty (20) trading days during any thirty (30) consecutive trading day period with a Closing Price of no less than \$23.75 on each such trading day; or

Petros receives aggregate gross proceeds of at least \$50,000,000 in an offering (or series of offerings within a sixty (60) calendar day period) of Petros Common Stock with a price per share of Petros Common Stock sold equal to no less than \$23.75 in each offering (or series of offerings) and where Petros has a Market Capitalization immediately prior to each such offering (or series of offerings) equal to at least \$500,000,000.

10) Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units ("RSU's")

The Company established the 2020 Omnibus Incentive Compensation plan (the "2020 Plan") which provides for the grants of awards to our directors, officers, employees, and consultants. The 2020 Plan authorizes the grant of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards, stock units and other stock-based awards and cash-based awards. On December 22, 2021, our stockholders approved the Second Amendment to the 2020 Plan to increase the total number of shares of common stock issuable under the 2020 Plan by 1,521,654 shares to a total of 2,600,000 shares of common stock. As of March 31, 2022, there were 2,600,000 shares authorized and 1,817,948 shares available for issuance under the 2020 Plan.

The following is a summary of stock options for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and for the year ended December 31, 2021:

	Weighted-Average				
		W	/eighted-	Remaining	Aggregate Intrinsic
	Number of	A	lverage	Contractual	Value
	Shares	Exe	rcise Price	Term (Years)	(\$ in thousands)
Options outstanding at December 31, 2020	574,331	\$	51.43	0.9	\$ —
Options granted	615,669		3.38	9.23	_
Less: options forfeited	_		_	_	_
Less: options expired/cancelled	(574,331)		51.43	_	_
Less: options exercised	_		_	_	_
Options outstanding at December 31, 2021	615,669		3.38	9.23	_
Options granted	50,000		3.34	9.76	_
Less: options forfeited	_		_	_	_
Less: options expired/cancelled	_		_	_	_
Less: options exercised			_	_	_
Options outstanding at March 31, 2022	665,669	\$	3.38	9.06	\$ —
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022	381,752	\$	3.44	9.07	<u>\$</u>

The following is a summary of RSU's for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and for the year ended December 31, 2021:

			Weighted-Average	
		Weighted-	Remaining	Aggregate Intrinsic
	Number of	Average	Contractual	Value
	Shares	Exercise Price	Term (Years)	(\$ in thousands)
RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020	_	\$ —	_	\$ —
RSU's granted	116,383	3.29	9.84	_
Less: RSU's forfeited	_	_	_	_
Less: RSU's expired/cancelled	_		_	_
Less: RSU's exercised	_	_	_	_
RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2021	116,383	3.29	9.84	_
RSU's granted	_	_	_	_
Less: RSU's forfeited	_		_	_
Less: RSU's expired/cancelled	_	_	_	_
Less: RSU's exercised	_		_	_
RSU's outstanding at March 31, 2022	116,383	\$ 3.29	9.60	\$ —
RSU's exercisable at March 31, 2022		\$		\$

On January 4, 2022, pursuant to a consulting agreement, the Company awarded a grant of 50,000 options to purchase shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price of \$3.34 per share. The shares of common stock underlying the options vested 100% upon issuance.

On April 7, 2022, the Company awarded the four Directors grants of 248,742 total RSU's with a stock price of \$1.19 per share. The RSU's shall vest 100% on one year anniversary of the date of grant. Also on April 7, 2022, Tania King, an employee of Juggernaut Capital Partners LLP, pursuant to her contract, was granted 60,505 RSUs with a stock price of \$1.19 per share. The RSU's shall vest 100% on one year anniversary of the date of grant.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 was \$355,828 and \$347,207, respectively, and is recorded in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

11) Common Stock Warrants

The following is a summary of warrants for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and for the year ended December 31, 2021:

	Number of Shares
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2020	4,407,962
Warrants issued	7,853,558
Warrants exercised	(2,014,586)
Warrants expired	(207,913)
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022	10,039,021

As of March 31, 2022, the Company's warrants by expiration date were as follows:

Number of Warrants	Exercise Price		Expiration Date
2,780	\$	1.60	August 23, 2023
22,800		35.65	June 1, 2024
74,864		21.85	June 17, 2024
20,043		31.25	June 19, 2024
22,800		26.55	September 1, 2024
10,500		12.738	September 16, 2024
22,800		4.30	December 1, 2024
28,000		5.65	March 2, 2025
28,000		7.30	June 1, 2025
28,000		5.50	September 1, 2025
28,000		4.705	December 1, 2025
2,221,829	7.50 December 1, 2		December 1, 2025
908,498		17.50	December 1, 2025
623,303		51.25	December 1, 2025
157,832		125.00	December 1, 2025
1,751,311		1.715	October 19, 2026
2,337,719		3.50	December 2, 2026
1,749,942		3.50	December 27, 2026
10,039,021			

12) Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) per Common Share

The following is a reconciliation of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding used in calculating basic and diluted net loss per share:

	For the Three Months Ended		
	March 31,		
	2022	2021	
Numerator			
Net income (loss)	\$ (174,224)	\$3,009,081	
Denominator			
Weighted-average common shares for basic net income (loss) per			
share	20,684,723	9,753,086	
Effect of common share equivalents within common stock			
warrants	_	1,600	
Weighted-average common shares for diluted net (loss) income per			
share	20,684,723	9,754,686	

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share \$ (0.01) \$ 0.31

The following table summarizes the potentially dilutive securities convertible into common shares that were excluded from the calculation of diluted net income (loss) per share because their inclusion would have been antidilutive:

	For the Three I	For the Three Months Ended		
	March	March 31,		
	2022	2021		
Stock Options	665,669	790,000		
RSU's	116,383	_		
Warrants	10,039,021	4,405,182		
Total	10,821,073	5,195,182		

13) Marketing, Licensing and Distribution Agreements

(a) Vivus

On September 30, 2016, the Company entered into a License and Commercialization Agreement (the "License Agreement") with Vivus, Inc ("Vivus") to purchase and receive the license for the commercialization and exploitation of Stendra® for a one-time fee of \$70 million. The License Agreement gives the Company the right to sell Stendra® in the U.S and its territories, Canada, South America, and India. In December 2000, Vivus originally was granted the license from Mitsubishi Tanabe Pharma Corporation ("MTPC") to develop, market, and manufacture Stendra®. Stendra® was approved by the Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") in April 2012 to treat male erectile dysfunction.

Under the License Agreement, the Company will pay MTPC a royalty of 5% on the first \$500 million of net sales and 6% of net sales thereafter. In consideration for the trademark assignment and the use of the trademarks associated with the product and the Vivus technology, the Company shall (a) during the first, second, and third years following the expiration of the Royalty Period in a particular country in the Company's territory, pay to Vivus a royalty equal to 2% of the net sales of products in such territory; and (b) following the fourth and fifth years following the end of the Royalty Period in such territory, pay to Vivus a royalty equal to 1% of the net sales of products in such territory. Thereafter, no further royalties shall be owed with respect to net sales of Stendra® in such territory.

In addition, the Company will be responsible for a pro-rata portion of a \$6 million milestone payment to be paid once \$250 million in sales has been reached on the separate revenue stream of Stendra®. Should the \$250 million of sales threshold be reached, the Company will be responsible for \$3.2 million of the milestone payment.

In connection with the License Agreement, the Company and Vivus also entered into a Supply Agreement. The License Agreement, was terminated, effective September 30, 2021.

On January 18, 2022, Petros and Vivus entered into a Settlement Agreement (the "Vivus Settlement Agreement") related to the minimum purchase requirements under the Vivus Supply Agreement in 2018, 2019 and 2020 and certain reimbursement rights asserted by a third-party retailer in connection with quantities of the Company's Stendra® product that were delivered to the third-party retailer and later returned. In connection with the Vivus Settlement Agreement, Petros retained approximately \$7.3 million of API inventory under the Vivus Supply Agreement. In exchange for the API and reduction of current liabilities, Petros executed an interest-bearing promissory note (the "Note") in favor of Vivus in the original principal amount of \$10,201,758, which the Company believes approximates fair value (See Note 8).

In addition to the payments to be made in accordance with the Note, the Company further agreed in the Vivus Settlement Agreement to (i) grant to Vivus a right of first refusal to provide certain types of debt and convertible equity (but not preferred equity) until the Note is paid in full, and (ii) undertake to make certain regulatory submissions to effectuate Vivus' ability to exercise its rights under the License Agreement. On January 18, 2022, the Company made a prepayment of the obligations under the Note in the amount of \$900,000, and a payment of \$1,542,904 with respect to a purchase order made in 2021 to Vivus. In consideration of these payment and upon the Company's satisfaction of certain regulatory submissions Vivus released 50% of the quantity of bulk Stendra® tablets on January 18, 2022 under the Company's existing open purchase order (the "Open Purchase Order") being held by Vivus, which represents approximately a sixmonth supply of inventory. Under the Vivus Settlement Agreement Vivus also agreed to release the remaining 50% of the quantity of bulk Stendra® tablets under the Open Purchase Order upon the Company's satisfaction of the remaining regulatory submission requirements (not to exceed 180 days from the date of the Vivus Settlement Agreement). The Vivus Settlement Agreement stipulated that Vivus is the sole owner of all API unless or until such time as certain quantities of API are shipped to the Company upon the fulfillment of the aforementioned payment conditions.

As a result of entering into the Vivus Settlement Agreement, the Company decreased accrued expenses by \$6.5 million and decreased accrued inventory purchases by \$14.2 million; which were partially offset by a decrease in API purchase commitments of \$6.2 million and an increase to liabilities for the Note of \$10.2 million (which is net of the \$0.9 million prepayment on the Note). As a result, the Company recorded a \$3.4 million gain on settlement for the three months ended March 31, 2022.

As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company has \$0 and \$14.2 million, respectively, of accrued inventory purchases related to the Company's minimum purchase obligations with Vivus for raw material or API inventory. As API inventory is not a finished good, the Company does not have title to the product and classifies API Inventory in either other current assets or other assets, depending on whether the Company expects to take title to the product within one year from the date of the financial statements. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, there was \$1.4 million and

\$1.4 million, respectively, included in other current assets (see Note 5 Prepaid and Other Current Assets). As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, there was \$4.8 million and \$11.0 million included as non-current on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, respectively. The Company reviews its inventory levels and purchase commitments for excess amounts that it is required to purchase but projects it will not be able to sell prior to product expiry. The Company did not record any reserve for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021.

During the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company incurred royalties to MTPC for Stendra® of \$76,238 and \$160,032, respectively. Royalties incurred were included in cost of goods sold in the consolidated statements of operations. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company had a receivable for royalties of \$4,897 and \$81,136, respectively, which is included in other current assets in prepaid expenses and other current assets (see Note 5 Prepaid and Other Current Assets).

The license agreement between MTPC and Vivus ("MTPC License") contains certain termination rights that would allow MTPC to terminate the agreement if Vivus were to breach any of the terms of the MTPC License or become insolvent or bankrupt. In the event that MTPC terminates the MTPC License with Vivus because of any contractual breach the Company has step-in rights with MTPC, which would allow the Company to continue to sell Stendra®.

(b) Patheon

Following the termination of the Vivus Supply Agreement, Petros, through its subsidiary Metuchen, entered into a Technology Transfer Service Agreement on January 20, 2022 with Patheon Pharmaceuticals Inc., part of Thermo Fisher Scientific ("Patheon"), pursuant to which the Company and Patheon agreed to collaborate as strategic partners for commercial production of Stendra® tablets at Patheon's facilities in Cincinnati, Ohio. Under the Agreement, Patheon or one of its affiliates will provide pharmaceutical development and technology transfer services in order to establish and validate its ability to manufacture supply of the Company's Stendra® product. Any

commercial sale of product manufactured during the performance of the Agreement must be subject to a subsequent commercial manufacturing services agreement (with associated quality agreement) between the parties before it can be offered for commercial sale.

(c) Hybrid

In March 2020, the Company acquired the exclusive license to H100TM from Hybrid. H100TM is a topical candidate with at least one active ingredient and potentially a combination of ingredients responsible for the improvement of penile curvature during the acute phase of Peyronie's disease. The Company paid an initial license fee of \$100,000, with an additional \$900,000 payment due upon obtainment of orphan indication for H100TM and termination of Hybrid's existing agreement with a compounding pharmacy, and additional annual payments of \$125,000, \$150,000 and \$200,000 due on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the license agreement and \$250,000 annual payments due thereafter. The Company is also required to make a \$1,000,000 payment upon first commercial sale and a sliding scale of percentage payments on net sales in the low single digits. Annual anniversary payments will not be required after commercialization. The Company is also obligated to make royalty payments between 3-6% of any net sales. In addition, the Company may terminate at any time after first anniversary, without cause, upon ninety (90) days' notice.

The Company has treated the acquisition as an asset acquisition and has concluded that the asset acquired and the upfront payment should be expensed as it was considered an IPR&D asset with no alternative future uses.

On September 24, 2020, the Company and Hybrid entered into a letter agreement, pursuant to which the term of the license agreement was extended for an additional six months to March 24, 2021. In consideration for the extension, the Company paid Hybrid \$50,000 in October 2020 and an additional \$100,000 in December 2020. On March 31, 2021, the Company and Hybrid, entered into a second letter agreement, pursuant to which the parties agreed to extend the Second Period (as defined in the Hybrid License) for an additional six (6) months to September 24, 2021. Additionally, the Company agreed to pay Hybrid a one-time, non-creditable and non-refundable payment of \$200,000, which was paid within seven calendar days of entering into the agreement. On September 24, 2021, the Company entered into an amendment to the license agreement in which the Company exercised its right not to terminate the Hybrid License even though orphan drug status had not yet been granted by the FDA. Along with this election, the Company paid Hybrid \$150,000 on October 1, 2021, \$200,000 on October 31, 2021, \$200,000 on December 1, 2021, \$200,000 on December 23, 2021 and \$150,000 on March 24, 2022.

14) Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Employment Agreements

The Company has employment agreements with certain executive officers and key employees that provide for, among other things, salary and performance bonuses.

In connection with the consummation of the Mergers, on December 24, 2020, the Company and Mr. Keith Lavan entered into a Separation Agreement (the "Separation Agreement"), pursuant to which Mr. Lavan resigned as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and agreed to serve as an advisor to the Company through December 31, 2020 (the "Separation Date"). Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, in addition to other benefits, Mr. Lavan received a stay-on bonus of \$50,000 for continuing to remain employed by the Company through the Separation Date. For his services as an advisor, the Company agreed to pay Mr. Lavan an amount equal to 50% of his base salary as of immediately prior to the Separation Date. The Company paid 70% of such amount on January 15, 2021 and 30% of such amount in equal installments from the Separation Date through June 30, 2021. In addition, Mr. Lavan executed a general release of liabilities in favor of the Company.

(b) Legal Proceedings

On July 14, 2020, Greg Ford, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, was terminated. On July 14, 2020, Mr. Ford, through his attorney, claimed that he was entitled to severance pay pursuant to an employment agreement following the termination of his employment on that same date. This claim is currently at an early stage where the Company is unable to determine the likelihood of any unfavorable outcome.

The Company is not currently involved in any other significant claims or legal actions that, in the opinion of managemen
will have a material adverse impact on the Company's operations, financial position or cash flows.

(c) Operating Leases

The Company has commitments under operating leases for office and warehouse space used in its operations. The Company's leases have remaining lease terms ranging from 2.4 years to 4.8 years.

On November 30, 2021, the Company entered into a sublease with respect to its entire headquarters facility. The sublessor delivered a \$14,000 security deposit to the Company on the lease commencement date and also agreed to pay \$7,000 per month for the term beginning January 10, 2022 and continuing until the expiration of the head lease on August 30, 2024. The Company will account for this sublease as an operating lease in accordance with the lessor accounting guidance within ASC 842.

The components of lease expense were consisted entirely of fixed lease costs related to operating leases. These costs were \$44,812 for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Fixed lease costs for the three months ended March 31, 2022 were offset by sublease income of \$21,000.

Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases was as follows:

	As of I	March 31, 2022	As of De	cember 31, 2021
Operating lease ROU asset:				
Other assets	\$	447,595	\$	475,557
Operating lease liability:				
Other current liabilities	\$	129,458	\$	125,579
Other long-term liabilities		371,053		405,018
Total operating lease liability	\$	500,511	\$	530,597

Supplemental lease term and discount rate information related to leases was as follows:

	As of March 31, 2022	As of December 31, 2021
Weighted-average remaining lease terms - operating leases	3.4 years	3.7 years
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases	12.6 %	12.6 %

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases was as follows:

	For the Three Months	
	Ended March 31,	
	2022	2021
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:		
Operating cash flows from operating leases	\$ 46,935	\$ 45,942

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable leases as of March 31, 2022, were as follows:

Lease Liability Maturity Analysis	Operating Leases
2022 (remaining 9 months)	140,805
2023	189,374
2024	155,242
2025	81,107
2026	82,324
Thereafter	_
Total lease payments	648,852
Less: Imputed Interest	(148,341)
Total	\$ 500,511

Future minimum sublease income under non-cancelable leases as of March 31, 2022, were as follows:

Sublease income	Operating Leases
2022 (remaining 9 months)	63,000
2023	84,000
2024	56,000
Total	\$ 203,000

As of March 31, 2022, the Company had no operating leases that had not yet commenced.

15) Segment Information

The Company manages its operations through two segments. The Company's two segments, Prescription Medications and Medical Devices, focus on the treatment of male erectile dysfunction. The Prescription Medications segment consists primarily of operations related to Stendra®, which is sold generally in the United States, and H100TM for the treatment of Peyronie's disease. The Medical Devices segment consists primarily of operations related to vacuum erection devices, which are sold domestically and internationally. The Company separately presents the costs associated with certain corporate functions as Corporate, primarily consisting of unallocated operating expenses including costs that were not specific to a particular segment but are general to the group, expenses incurred for administrative and accounting staff, general liability and other insurance, professional fees and other similar corporate expenses. Interest and other income (expense), net is also not allocated to the operating segments.

The Company's results of operations by reportable segment for the three months ended March 31, 2022 are summarized as follows:

	Prescription Medications	Medical Devices	Corporate	Consolidated
Net sales	\$ 1,524,768	\$ 940,401	\$ —	\$ 2,465,169
Cost of goods sold	138,181	334,159	_	472,340
Selling, general and administrative expenses	1,711,019	663,591	1,523,128	3,897,738
Gain on settlement with Vivus	(3,389,941)	_	_	(3,389,941)
Research and development expenses	405,360	_	_	405,360
Depreciation and amortization expense	1,269,663	291,207		1,560,870
Change in fair value of derivative liability	_	_	(460,000)	(460,000)
Interest expense		_	153,026	153,026
Income tax (expense)				
Net income (loss)	\$ 1,390,486	\$(348,556)	\$(1,216,154)	\$ (174,224)

The Company's results of operations by reportable segment for the three months ended March 31, 2021 are summarized as follows:

	Prescription Medications	Medical Devices	Corporate	Consolidated
Net sales	\$3,200,647	\$ 874,959	\$ —	\$ 4,075,606
Cost of goods sold	389,281	254,105	_	643,386
Selling, general and administrative expenses	1,734,333	546,995	1,600,389	3,881,717
Research and development expense	19,181	_	_	19,181
Depreciation and amortization expense	1,398,270	330,559	_	1,728,829
Change in fair value of derivative liability	_	_	(5,380,000)	(5,380,000)
Interest expense	_	_	173,412	173,412
Income tax benefit	_	_	_	_
Net income (loss)	\$ (340,418)	\$(256,700)	\$ 3,606,199	\$ 3,009,081

The following table reflects net sales by geographic region for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021:

For the Three Months Ended March 31,

Net sales	2022	2021
United States	\$2,045,624	\$3,704,523
International	419,545	371,083
	\$2,465,169	\$4,075,606

No individual country other than the United States accounted for 10% of total sales for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021.

The Company's assets by reportable segment and reconciliation of segment assets to consolidated assets as of March 31, 2022, are summarized as follows:

	Prescription		
	Medications	Medical Devices	Consolidated
Intangible assets, net	\$17,804,298	\$ 5,930,536	\$23,734,834
Total segment assets	\$48,240,984	\$ 7,623,163	\$55,864,147

The Company's assets by reportable segment and reconciliation of segment assets to consolidated assets as of December 31, 2021, are summarized as follows:

	Prescription		
	Medications	Medical Devices	Consolidated
Intangible assets, net	\$19,071,407	\$ 6,221,742	\$25,293,149
Total segment assets	\$59,657,514	\$ 7,732,544	\$67,390,058

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ("MD&A") is designed to provide a reader of Petros' financial statements with a narrative from the perspective of management on the Company's financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and certain other factors that may affect future results. In certain instances, parenthetical references are made to relevant sections of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements to direct the reader to a further detailed discussion. This section should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. This MD&A contains forward-looking statements reflecting Petros' current expectations, whose actual outcomes involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those stated in or implied by these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including those discussed in the sections entitled "Risk Factors" and "Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021.

Overview

Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Petros" or the "Company") is a pharmaceutical company focused on men's health therapeutics, consisting of wholly owned subsidiaries, Metuchen Pharmaceuticals, LLC ("Metuchen"), Timm Medical Technologies, Inc. ("Timm Medical"), Neurotrope, Inc. ("Neurotrope"), and Pos-T-Vac, LLC ("PTV"). On September 30, 2016, the Company entered into a License and Commercialization Agreement (the "License Agreement") with Vivus, Inc ("Vivus") to purchase and receive the license for the commercialization and development of Stendra® for a one-time fee of \$70 million. The License Agreement gives the Company the right to sell Stendra® in the U.S and its territories, Canada, South America, and India. Stendra® is a U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") approved PDE-5 inhibitor prescription medication for the treatment of erectile dysfunction ("ED") and is the only patent protected PDE-5 inhibitor on the market. Stendra® offers the ED therapeutic landscape a valuable addition as an oral ED therapy that may be taken as early as approximately 15 minutes prior to sexual engagement, with or without food when using the 100mg or 200mg dosing (does not apply to 50mg dosing). Petros is also currently conducting non-clinical consumer studies in connection with the contemplated pursuit of FDA approval for Stendra® for over-the-counter ("OTC") use in treating ED

In addition to Stendra®, Petros' ED portfolio also includes external penile rigidity devices, namely VEDs, which are sold domestically and internationally. In addition to ED products, Petros is committed to identifying and developing other pharmaceuticals to advance men's health. In March 2020, Petros acquired an exclusive global license (the "Hybrid License") for the development and commercialization of H100™ from Hybrid Medical LLC ("Hybrid"). H100™ is a novel and patented topical formulation candidate for the treatment of acute Peyronie's disease. Peyronie's disease is a condition that occurs upon penile tissue disruption often caused by sexual activity or injury, healing into collagen-based scars that may ultimately harden and cause penile deformity. On September 24, 2020, the Company and Hybrid entered into a letter agreement, pursuant to which the term of the license agreement was extended for an additional six months to March 24, 2021. In consideration for the extension, the Company paid Hybrid \$50,000 in October 2020 and an additional \$100,000 in December 2020. On March 31, 2021, the Company and Hybrid, entered into a second letter agreement, pursuant to which the parties agreed to extend the Second Period (as defined in the Hybrid License) for an additional six (6) months to September 24, 2021. Additionally, the Company agreed to pay Hybrid a one-time, non-creditable and non-refundable payment of \$200,000, which was paid within seven calendar days of entering into the agreement. On September 24, 2021, the Company entered into an amendment to the license agreement in which the Company exercised its right not to terminate the Hybrid License even though orphan drug status had not yet been granted by the FDA. Along with this election, the Company paid Hybrid \$150,000 on October 1, 2021, \$200,000 on October 31, 2021, \$200,000 on December 1, 2021, \$200,000 on December 23, 2021 and \$150,000 on March 24, 2022.

Impact of COVID-19

The World Health Organization ("WHO") declared the coronavirus COVID-19 ("COVID-19") a global pandemic on March 11, 2020, and since that time many of the previously imposed restrictions and other measures which were instituted in response have been subsequently reduced or lifted. However, the COVID-19 pandemic remains highly

unpredictable and dynamic, and its duration and extent continue to be dependent on various developments, such as the emergence of variants to the virus that may cause additional strains of COVID-19, the administration and ultimate effectiveness of vaccines, and the eventual timeline to achieve a sufficient level of herd immunity among the general population. Accordingly, the COVID-19 pandemic may continue to have negative effects on the health of the U.S. economy for the foreseeable future. The Company cannot reasonably estimate the length or severity of the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic, including the emergence of any new variants, such as the Delta and the Omicron variants, will have on its

financial results, and the Company may experience a material adverse impact on its sales, results of operations, and cash flows in fiscal 2022 and beyond.

During 2020, government regulations and the voluntary business practices of the Company and prescribing physicians had prevented in-person visits by sales representatives to physicians' offices. The Company had taken steps to mitigate the negative impact on its businesses of such restrictions. In March 2020, the Company reduced our sales representative head count to reflect the lack of in-person visits. The Company has maintained a core sales team which continued to contact physicians via telephone and videoconference as well as continuing to have webinars provided by the Company's key opinion leaders to other physicians and pharmacists. In response to the spread of COVID-19, in March 2020, the Company closed its administrative offices. In January 2022, the Company sub-leased its Manalapan office and all administrative employees are working remotely for the foreseeable future. The Company has fully resumed in-person interactions by its customer-facing personnel in compliance with local and state restrictions. The Company also continues to engage with customers virtually as the Company seeks to continue to support healthcare professionals and patient care. Since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have experienced a shift from in-person sales to online, telehealth-based sales. These online sales generally have lower gross margins than in-person sales, which has impacted our net revenues.

Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

Petros is a pharmaceutical company focused on men's health therapeutics with a full range of commercial capabilities including sales, marketing, regulatory and medical affairs, finance, trade relations, pharmacovigilance, market access relations, manufacturing, and distribution.

Petros consists of wholly owned subsidiaries, Metuchen Pharmaceuticals LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Metuchen"), Neurotrope, Inc., a Nevada corporation ("Neurotrope"), Timm Medical Technologies, Inc. ("Timm Medical"), and Pos-T-Vac, LLC ("PTV"). The Company is engaged in the commercialization and development of Stendra®, a U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") approved PDE 5 inhibitor prescription medication for the treatment of erectile dysfunction ("ED"), which we have licensed from Vivus, Inc. ("Vivus"). Petros also markets its own line of ED products in the form of vacuum erection device products through its subsidiaries, Timm Medical and PTV. In addition to ED products, we have acquired an exclusive global license to develop and commercialize H100TM, a novel and patented topical formulation candidate for the treatment of acute Peyronie's disease.

The Company was organized as a Delaware corporation on May 14, 2020 for the purpose of effecting the transactions contemplated by that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 17, 2020 (as amended, the "Merger Agreement"), by and between Petros, Neurotrope, PM Merger Sub 1, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros ("Merger Sub 1"), PN Merger Sub 2, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros ("Merger Sub 2"), and Metuchen. The Merger Agreement provided for (1) the merger of Merger Sub 1, with and into Metuchen, with Metuchen surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros (the "Metuchen Merger") and (2) the merger of Merger Sub 2 with and into Neurotrope, with Neurotrope surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros (the "Neurotrope Merger" and together with the Metuchen Merger, the "Mergers"). As a result of the Mergers, Metuchen and Neurotrope became wholly-owned subsidiaries of Petros, and Petros became a publicly traded corporation on December 1, 2020.

On December 7, 2020, Neurotrope completed the spin-off of certain assets, whereby (i) any cash in excess of \$20,000,000, subject to adjustment as provided in the Merger Agreement, and all of the operating assets and liabilities of Neurotrope not retained by Neurotrope in connection with the Mergers were contributed to Synaptogenix, Inc. (formerly known as Neurotrope Bioscience, Inc.), a Delaware corporation ("Synaptogenix"), and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Neurotrope.

The Company manages its operations through two segments. The Company's two segments, Prescription Medications and Medical Devices, focus on the treatment of male ED. The Prescription Medications segment consists primarily of Stendra®, which is sold generally in the United States. Expenses related to the development of H100TM, which is in the early stages of development and has not yet sought FDA approval to begin Phase 1 clinical trials, will be within the Prescription Medications segment. The Medical Devices segment consists primarily of vacuum erection devices, which are sold domestically and internationally.

Licensing and Distribution

The Company acquired the rights to Stendra® avanafil on September 30, 2016, when it entered into the License Agreement with Vivus to purchase and receive the license for the commercialization and exploitation of Stendra® avanafil for a one-time fee of \$70 million. The License Agreement gives the Company the exclusive right to sell avanafil in the U.S. and its territories, as well as Canada, South

America, and India. In December 2000, Vivus originally was granted the license from Mitsubishi Tanabe Pharma Corporation ("MTPC") to develop, market, and manufacture Stendra®. Stendra® was approved by the FDA in April 2012 to treat male ED.

The Company will pay MTPC a royalty of 5% on the first \$500 million of net sales and 6% of net sales thereafter until the expiration of the applicable patent in a particular country. The last scheduled patent expiration is in April 2025. In consideration for the trademark assignment and the use of the trademarks associated with Stendra® and the Vivus technology, the Company shall (a) during the first, second, and third years following the expiration of the royalty period in a particular country in the Company's territory, pay to Vivus a royalty equal to 2% of the net sales of Stendra® in such territory; and (b) following the fourth and fifth years following the end of the royalty period in such territory, pay to Vivus a royalty equal to 1% of the net sales of Stendra® in such territory. After the royalty period, no further royalties shall be owed with respect to net sales of Stendra® in such territory. In addition, the Company will be responsible for a pro-rata portion of a one-time \$6 million milestone payment to be paid once \$250 million in sales has been reached on the separate revenue stream of Stendra® during any calendar year.

In connection with the License Agreement, the Company and Vivus also entered into a Supply Agreement on September 30, 2016, which has since been terminated, effective as of September 30, 2021. Following the termination of the Vivus Supply Agreement, Petros, through its subsidiary Metuchen, entered into a Technology Transfer Service Agreement on January 20, 2022 with Patheon Pharmaceuticals Inc., part of Thermo Fisher Scientific ("Patheon"), pursuant to which the Company and Patheon agreed to collaborate as strategic partners for commercial production of Stendra® tablets at Patheon's facilities in Cincinnati, Ohio. Under the Agreement, Patheon or one of its affiliates will provide pharmaceutical development and technology transfer services in order to establish and validate its ability to manufacture supply of the Company's Stendra® product. Any commercial sale of product manufactured during the performance of the Agreement must be subject to a subsequent commercial manufacturing services agreement (with associated quality agreement) between the parties before it can be offered for commercial sale.

The license agreement between MTPC and Vivus contains certain termination rights that will allow MTPC to terminate the agreement if Vivus were to breach any of the terms of the MTPC License or become insolvent or bankrupt. In the event that MTPC terminates the MTPC License with Vivus because of any contractual breach the Company has step-in rights with MTPC, which would allow the Company to continue to sell Stendra®.

On March 27, 2018, the Company entered into a Sublicense Agreement with Acerus Pharmaceuticals Corporation ("Acerus") whereby the Company granted to Acerus an exclusive sublicense in Canada for, among other things, the development and commercialization of Stendra® avanafil for a one-time fee of \$100,000. The Company was entitled to receive an additional fee of \$400,000 if Stendra® is approved by Canadian regulators, as well as commercial milestone payments and royalty fees of 12% of net sales. However, in April 2020 Health Canada issued a Notice of Deficiency ("NOD") against the New Drug Submission. Metuchen and Acerus are currently renegotiating modified terms to the sublicense agreement and the pathway required to address the deficiency noted by Health Canada.

In March 2020, we entered into the Hybrid License for the development and commercialization of H100TM from Hybrid. H100[™] is a topical candidate with at least one active ingredient and potentially a combination of ingredients responsible for the improvement of penile curvature during the acute phase of Peyronie's disease. We paid an initial license fee of \$100,000 and additional payments of \$250,000, with additional annual milestone payments of \$125,000, \$150,000, and \$200,000 on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the entry into the Hybrid License and \$250,000 annual payments due thereafter. On September 24, 2020, the Company and Hybrid entered into a letter agreement, pursuant to which the term of the license agreement was extended for an additional six months to March 24, 2021. In consideration for the extension, the Company paid Hybrid \$50,000 in October 2020 and an additional \$100,000 in December 2020. On March 31, 2021, the Company and Hybrid, entered into a second letter agreement, pursuant to which the parties agreed to extend the Second Period (as defined in the License Agreement) for an additional six (6) months to September 24, 2021. Additionally, the Company agreed to pay Hybrid a one-time, non-creditable and non-refundable payment of two hundred thousand U.S. Dollars (\$200,000), which was paid within seven calendar days of entering into the agreement. On September 24, 2021, the Company entered into an amendment to the license agreement in which the Company exercised its right not to terminate the Hybrid License even though orphan drug status had not yet been granted by the FDA. Along with this election, the Company paid Hybrid \$150,000 on October 1, 2021, \$200,000 on October 31, 2021, \$200,000 on December 1, 2021, \$200,000 on December 23, 2021 and \$150,000 on March 24, 2022.

Vivus Settlement Agreement, Promissory Note and the Security Agreement

On January 18, 2022, Petros and Vivus entered into a Settlement Agreement (the "Vivus Settlement Agreement") related to the minimum purchase requirements under the Vivus Supply Agreement in 2018, 2019 and 2020 and certain reimbursement rights asserted by a third-party retailer in connection with quantities of the Company's Stendra® product that were delivered to the third-party retailer and later

returned. In connection with the Vivus Settlement Agreement, Petros retained approximately \$7.3 million of API inventory under the Vivus Supply Agreement. In exchange for the API and reduction of current liabilities, Petros executed an interest-bearing promissory note (the "Note") in favor of Vivus in the principal amount of \$10,201,758, which approximate fair value. The parties also entered into a Security Agreement to secure Petros' obligations under the Note.

In addition to the payments to be made in accordance with the Note, the Company further agreed in the Vivus Settlement Agreement to (i) grant to Vivus a right of first refusal to provide certain types of debt and convertible equity (but not preferred equity) financing issued by or to Metuchen (including any subsidiaries and intermediaries) until the Note is paid in full, and (ii) undertake to make certain regulatory submissions to effectuate Vivus' ability to exercise its rights under the License Agreement. On January 18, 2022, the Company made a prepayment of the obligations under the Note in the amount of \$900,000, and a payment of \$1,542,904 with respect to a purchase order made in 2021 to Vivus. In consideration of these payments and upon the Company's satisfaction of certain regulatory submissions. Vivus released 50% of the quantity of bulk Stendra® tablets under the Company's existing open purchase order (the "Open Purchase Order") being held by Vivus, which represents approximately a six-month supply of inventory. Under the Vivus Settlement Agreement Vivus also agreed to release the remaining 50% of the quantity of bulk Stendra® tablets under the Open Purchase Order upon the Company's satisfaction of the remaining regulatory submission requirements (not to exceed 180 days from the date of the Vivus Settlement Agreement). The Vivus Settlement Agreement stipulated that Vivus is the sole owner of all API unless or until such time as certain quantities of API are shipped to the Company upon the fulfillment of the aforementioned payment conditions.

As a result of entering into the Vivus Settlement Agreement, the Company decreased the Company's accrued expenses by \$6.5 million and decreased accrued inventory purchases by \$14.2 million; which were partially offset by a decrease in API purchase commitments of \$6.2 million and an increase to liabilities for the Note of \$10.2 million (which is net of the \$0.9 million prepayment on the Note). As a result, the Company recorded a \$3.4 million gain on settlement for the three months ended March 31, 2022.

Under the terms of the Note, the principal amount of \$10,201,758 is payable in consecutive quarterly installments beginning on April 1, 2022 through January 1, 2027. Interest on the principal amount will accrue at a rate of 6% per year until the principal is repaid in full and is due and payable, in arrears, on the first day of each January, April, July, and October of each calendar year, commencing on April 1, 2022. The Company may prepay the Note, in whole or in part, at any time, with no premium or penalty. In the event that the Company defaults under the Security Agreement, all principal outstanding under the Note at the time of the default will bear interest at a rate of 9% per year until the full and final payment of all principal and interest under the Note (regardless of whether any default is waived or cured). If the Note is placed in the hands of any attorney for collection, or if it is collected through any legal proceeding at law or in equity or in bankruptcy, receivership, or other court proceedings, the Company will also be required to pay all costs of collection including, but not limited to, court costs and attorneys' fees. Pursuant to the Security Agreement, dated January 18, 2022, the Company granted to Vivus a continuing security interest in all of its Stendra® API and products and its rights under the License Agreement. The Security Agreement contains customary events of default.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires us to make assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Certain of our more critical accounting policies require the application of significant judgment by management in selecting the appropriate assumptions for calculating financial estimates. By their nature, these judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our judgments, including but not limited to those related to revenue recognition, collectability of accounts receivable, inventory valuation and obsolescence, intangibles, income taxes, litigation, and contingencies. We use historical experience and other assumptions as the basis for our judgments and making these estimates. Because future events and their effects cannot be determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Any changes in those estimates will be reflected in our consolidated financial statements as they occur. While our significant accounting policies are more fully described in "Part I; Item 1. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data; Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements; Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we believe that the following accounting policies and estimates are most critical to a full understanding and evaluation of our reported financial

results. The critical accounting policies addressed below reflect our most significant judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements. We have reviewed these critical accounting policies with the Audi
Committee of our Board of Directors.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when its performance obligations with its customers have been satisfied. In the contracts with its customers, the Company has identified a single performance obligation to provide either its prescription medication or medical devices upon receipt of a customer order. The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the Company's customers obtain control of the prescription medication or medical device, which is typically upon delivery.

In determining the transaction price, a significant financing component does not exist since the timing from when the Company delivers either the prescription medication or medical device to when the customers pay for the product is typically less than one year. The Company records sales net of any variable consideration, including but not limited to discounts, rebates, returns, chargebacks, and distribution fees. The Company uses the expected value method when estimating its variable consideration, unless terms are specified within contracts. The identified variable consideration is recorded as a reduction of revenue at the time revenues from sales are recognized. The Company recognizes revenue to the extent that it is probable that a significant revenue reversal will not occur in a future period. These estimates may differ from actual consideration received. The Company evaluates these estimates each reporting period to reflect known changes.

The most significant sales deductions relate to contract returns, contract rebates and coupon redemptions, and distribution service fees ("DSA fees"). Our estimates are based on factors such as our direct and indirect customers' buying patterns and the estimated resulting contractual deduction rates, historical experience, specific known market events and estimated future trends, current contractual and statutory requirements, industry data, estimated customer inventory levels, current contract sales terms with our direct and indirect customers, and other competitive factors. Significant judgment and estimation are required in developing the foregoing and other relevant assumptions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Company maintains a return policy that generally allows its customers to return either the prescription medication or medical device and receive credit for product. The provision for returns is based upon the Company's estimates for future returns and historical experience. The provision of returns is part of the variable consideration recorded at the time revenue is recognized.

Accounts Receivable

The Company extends credit to its customers in the normal course of business. Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount, net of chargebacks, distribution service fees, and cash discounts. Management determines each allowance based on historical experience along with the present knowledge of potentially uncollectible accounts.

Inventories

Inventories consist of finished goods held for sale and raw materials. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, with cost determined using the first-in, first-out method. Inventories are adjusted for excess and obsolescence. Evaluation of excess inventory includes such factors as expiry date, inventory turnover, and management's assessment of current product demand.

Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are carried at fair value under GAAP. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value are to be classified and disclosed in one of the following three levels of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs (other than Level 1 quoted prices), such as quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active for identical or similar assets or liabilities, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable markets.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to determining the fair value of the assets or liabilities, including pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques.

In connection with the Mergers in December 2020, each security holder of Metuchen received a liability classified earnout consideration to be paid in the form of Petros Common Stock. The Company estimated their fair value using the Monte Carlo Simulation approach as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021. This fair value measurement is based on significant inputs not observable in the market and thus represents a Level 3 measurement within the fair value hierarchy.

Intangibles

The Company accounts for recognized intangible assets at cost. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over the useful life which the assets are expected to contribute directly or indirectly to future cash flows. Intangible assets are amortized using an accelerated method based on the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are consumed. The Company reviews the carrying value and useful lives of its intangible assets with definite lives whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable or the period over which they should be amortized has changed. When indicators of impairment exist, the Company determines whether the estimated undiscounted sum of the future cash flows of such assets is less than their carrying amounts. If less, an impairment loss is recognized in the amount, if any, by which the carrying amount of such assets exceeds their respective fair values. The Company evaluates the remaining useful life of each intangible asset that is being amortized during each reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining period of amortization. If the estimate of the intangible asset's remaining useful life has changed, the remaining carrying amount of the intangible asset is amortized prospectively over that revised remaining useful life. The Company has determined that no impairment exists as of March 31, 2022. As indicators of impairment exist as of March 31, 2022, the Company prepared an undiscounted cash flow analysis. This analysis includes projections of future revenue and expenses, which if not achieved could result in future impairment charges. These projections include continued significant sales growth based in part on the increase in revenue in 2021, along the expectation of higher sales volume resulting from increased product availability as a result of the Vivus settlement. Additionally, we are planning to invest in research and development pursuant to our Non-Prescription / Over-The-Counter ("OTC") Strategies related to Stendra®, which we anticipate will dramatically increase product sales in the future.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements, refer to Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Results of Operations

The impact on our results of operations of the COVID-19 pandemic and related changes in economic conditions, including changes to consumer spending resulting from the rapid rise in local and national unemployment rates, are highly uncertain and, in many instances, outside of our control. The duration and severity of the direct and indirect effects of the pandemic continue to evolve and in ways that are difficult to anticipate. There are numerous uncertainties related to the COVID-19 pandemic that have impacted our ability to forecast our future operations as a company. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic, and the emergence of any new variants, will affect our business, financial position and operating results in the future cannot be predicted with certainty; however, any such impact could be material. The COVID-19 pandemic could also increase the degree to which our results, including the results of our business segments, fluctuate in the future.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 (unaudited)

The following table sets forth a summary of our statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021:

	For the Th	For the Three Months		
	Ended M	Tarch 31,		
	2022	2021		
Net sales	\$ 2,465,169	\$ 4,075,606		
Cost of sales	472,340	643,386		
Gross profit	1,992,829	3,432,220		
Operating expenses:				
Selling, general and administrative	3,897,738	3,881,717		
Gain on settlement with Vivus	(3,389,941)	_		
Research and development	405,360	19,181		
Depreciation and amortization expense	1,560,870	1,728,829		
Total operating expenses	2,474,027	5,629,727		
Loss from operations	(481,198)	(2,197,507)		
Change in fair value of derivative liability	460,000	5,380,000		
Interest expense, senior debt	_	(173,412)		
Interest expense, promissory note	(153,026)			
Net income (loss)	\$ (174,224)	\$ 3,009,081		

Net Sales

Net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2022, were \$2,465,169, composed of \$1,524,768 of net sales from Prescription Medicines and net sales of \$940,401 from Medical Devices.

Net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2021 were \$4,075,606, composed of \$3,200,647 of net sales from Prescription Medicines and net sales of \$874,959 from Medical Devices.

For the three months ended March 31, 2022, gross sales to customers representing 10% or more of the Company's total gross sales included three customers that represented approximately 30%, 23%, and 22% of total gross sales, respectively.

For the three months ended March 31, 2021, gross sales to customers representing 10% or more of the Company's total gross sales included one customer that represented approximately 88% of total gross sales.

Prescription Medicines sales consist of sales of Stendra® in the U.S. for the treatment of male ED. Stendra® is primarily sold directly to the three main customers as described above, which collectively accounted for approximately 88% of Stendra® net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2022. Individually, sales to the three main customers, accounted for 35%, 27%, and 25%, respectively, of Stendra® gross sales for the three months ended March 31, 2022.

Medical Device sales consist of domestic and international sales of men's health products for the treatment of ED. The men's health products do not require a prescription and include Vacuum Erection Devices ("VEDs and related accessories").

Net sales were \$1,610,437, or 40% lower during the three months ended March 31, 2022 than in the same period in 2021 consisting of a \$1,675,879 decrease in the net sales of Stendra® offset by a \$65,442 increase in Medical Device Sales. The decrease in net sales of Stendra® was primarily due to increased coupon redemptions to support higher wholesale demand as the Company worked to resolve its supply chain challenges and increased wholesaler returns related to the sale of short-dated product. The increase in net sales for Medical Devices included an increase in international sales of VED systems partially offset by a decreased in domestic sales of VED systems.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for the three months ended March 31, 2022, were \$472,340, composed of \$138,181 of cost of sales for our Prescription Medicines segment and \$334,159 for our Medical Devices segment.

Cost of sales for the three months ended March 31, 2021 were \$643,386, composed of \$389,281 of cost of sales for our Prescription Medicines segment and \$254,105 for our Medical Devices segment.

Cost of sales for the Prescription Medicine segment for the three months ended March 31, 2022 consisted of 55% royalty expenses, 41% third-party product cost of sales, 2% inventory obsolescence and 2% 3PL order fulfillment and shipping expenses.

Cost of sales for the Medical Device segment for the three months ended March 31, 2022 consisted of 90% raw materials and 10% production labor.

Cost of sales decreased by \$171,046 or 27% during the three months ended March 31, 2022 compared to the same period 2021. For the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, cost of sales as a percentage of net sales were 19% and 16%, respectively. The increase in cost of sales as a percentage of net sales was a result of an increased sales order fulfillment costs (on a per unit basis).

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the three months ended March 31, 2022 was \$1,992,829, or 81% of net sales, composed of \$1,386,587 of gross profit from Prescription Medicines and \$606,242 from Medical Devices. Gross profit for the three months ended March 31, 2021 was \$3,432,220, or 84% of net sales, composed of \$2,811,366 of gross profit from Prescription Medicines and \$620,854 from Medical Devices. The decrease in gross profit was driven by the factors noted above.

Operating Expenses

Selling, general and administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2022, were \$3,897,738, composed of \$1,711,019 of selling, general and administrative expenses of our Prescription Medicines segment, \$663,591 of selling, general and administrative expenses of our Medical Devices segment and \$1,523,128 of general corporate expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2021 were \$3,881,717, composed of \$1,734,333 of selling, general and administrative expenses of our Prescription Medicines segment, \$546,995 of selling, general and administrative expenses of our Medical Devices segment and \$1,600,389 of general corporate expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for both segments include selling, marketing and regulatory expenses. Unallocated general corporate expenses include costs that were not specific to a particular segment but are general to the group, including expenses incurred for administrative and accounting staff, general liability and other insurance, professional fees and other similar corporate expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were relatively consistent during the three months ended March 31, 2022 compared to the same period of 2021. Increased selling, general and administrative expenses were primarily driven by increased direct selling expenses of \$160,724 which were partially offset by decreased direct marketing expenses of \$99,491 as management sought to reduce expenses to improve operational efficiencies, as well as lower payroll expenses of \$60,115 resulting from decreased headcount.

Gain on settlement with Vivus

As a result of the Vivus Promissory Note, as discussed in Note 8 and Note 13, the Company's total liabilities were decreased by \$3,389,941 in the form of concession of customer returns, which were recognized as a gain on settlement during the three months ended March 31, 2022. There was no such activity in the same period of 2021.

Research and development

Research and development expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2022, were \$405,360 in our Prescription Medicines segment.

Research and development expenses for Prescription Medicines segment are composed of \$191,565 for consulting fees related to the Company's Non-Prescription / Over-The-Counter ("OTC") strategies related to Stendra®, \$150,000 for upfront licensing fees and \$33,421 for clinical development expenses and \$30,374 for consulting fees related to the H100 licenses acquired in March 2020.

Research and development expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2021 were \$19,181, in our Prescription Medicines segment. Research and development expenses for Prescription Medicines segment are composed entirely of consulting fees.

Research and development expenses increased by \$386,179 or 2013% during the three months ended March 31, 2022, compared to the same period in 2021. Increased research and development expenses were primarily driven by increased licensing fees related to the H100 license acquired in March 2020 and increased consulting fees related to the Company's Non-Prescription / Over-The-Counter ("OTC") strategies related to Stendra®.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2022, were \$1,560,870, composed of \$1,269,663 of depreciation and amortization expenses of our Prescription Medicines segment and \$291,207 of depreciation and amortization expenses of our Medical Devices segment.

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2021 were \$1,728,829, composed of \$1,398,270 of depreciation and amortization expenses of our Prescription Medicines segment and \$330,559 of depreciation and amortization expenses of our Medical Devices segment.

Prescription Medicines depreciation and amortization consists primarily of the amortization of the intangible assets related to Stendra® over its estimated useful life of 10 years. Medical Devices depreciation and amortization primarily consists of the amortization of the intangible assets related to Timm Medical and PTV over their estimated useful life of 12 years. The increase in amortization expense was primarily driven by the accelerated method of amortization related to the Stendra® product.

Change in fair value of derivative liability

In connection with the Mergers consummated on December 1, 2020, each security holder of Metuchen received a liability classified earnout consideration to be paid in the form of Petros Common Stock if either Petros' Market Capitalization (as defined in the Merger Agreement) or Petros receives aggregate gross proceeds from securities offerings that equals or exceeds certain milestones set forth in the Merger Agreement. The earnout contingent consideration met the criteria to be classified as a derivative with fair value remeasurements recorded in earnings each reporting period. As a result, the \$460,000 represents the change in fair value of the derivative during the three months ended March 31, 2022, primarily

	34		

Interest expense, senior debt

Interest expense, senior debt for the three months ended March 31, 2021 was \$173,412 consisting of interest payments on our senior debt, with a weighted average balance of \$5,597,203. There was no interest expense, senior debt for the three months ended March 31, 2022.

Interest expense, promissory note

In January 2022, the Company executed a promissory note in favor of Vivus with a principal amount of \$10,201,758 as part of the settlement. Interest expense, promissory note for the three months ended March 31, 2022 was \$153,026 consisting of interest payments on our promissory note. There was no interest expense, promissory note for the three months ended March 31, 2021.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

Cash and cash equivalents totaled \$17,671,871 at March 31, 2022, compared to \$23,847,572 at December 31, 2021.

We have experienced net losses and negative cash flows from operations since our inception. As of March 31, 2022, we had cash of \$17.7 million, positive working capital of \$16.5 million, and an accumulated deficit of \$70.9 million. Our plans include, or may include, utilizing our cash and cash equivalents on hand, as well as exploring additional ways to raise capital in addition to increasing cash flows from operations. In January 2022, the Company executed a promissory note in favor of Vivus in connection with the Vivus Settlement Agreement in the principal amount of \$10,201,758. The terms of this promissory note are discussed in the section titled "—Vivus Settlement Agreement, Promissory Note and the Security Agreement" above. The Company believes the cash on hand is sufficient to fund its operations and debt service through at least May 31, 2023, however for periods after May 31, 2023, the Company may need to raise additional funds or curtail certain discretionary expenditures in order to maintain an appropriate level of cash to fund our operations. While we are optimistic that we will be successful in our efforts to achieve our plans, there can be no assurances that we will be successful in doing so.

To date, our principal sources of capital used to fund our operations have been the revenues from product sales, private sales, registered offerings and private placements of equity securities.

In March 2020, the Company acquired the Hybrid License, providing an exclusive license to H100TM. H100TM is a topical candidate with at least one active ingredient and potentially a combination of ingredients responsible for the improvement of penile curvature during the acute phase of Peyronie's disease. We paid an initial license fee of \$100,000 and an additional payment of \$250,000 and additional annual milestone payments of \$125,000, \$150,000 and \$200,000 are due on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the license agreement and \$250,000 annual payments due thereafter. The Company is also required to make a \$1,000,000 payment upon first commercial sale and a sliding scale of percentage payments on net sales in the low single digits. Annual anniversary payments will not be required after commercialization. The Company is also obligated to make royalty payments between 3 6% of any net sales.

On September 24, 2020, the Company and Hybrid entered into a letter agreement, pursuant to which the term of the Hybrid License was extended for an additional six months to March 24, 2021. In consideration for the extension, the Company paid Hybrid \$50,000 in October 2020 and an additional \$100,000 in December 2020. On March 31, 2021, the Company and Hybrid, entered into a second letter agreement, pursuant to which the parties agreed to extend the Second Period (as defined in the Hybrid License) for an additional six (6) months to September 24, 2021. Additionally, the Company agreed to pay Hybrid a one-time, non-creditable and non-refundable payment of two hundred thousand U.S. Dollars (\$200,000), which was paid within seven calendar days of entering into the second letter agreement. On September 24, 2021, the Company entered into an amendment to the license agreement in which the Company exercised its right not to terminate the Hybrid License even though orphan drug status had not yet been granted by the FDA. Along with this election, the Company paid Hybrid \$150,000 on October 1, 2021, \$200,000 on October 31, 2021, \$200,000 on December 1, 2021, \$200,000 on December 23, 2021 and \$150,000 on March 24, 2022.

The Company also expects to incur approximately \$14 million of research and development expenses relating to H100TM over the estimated four to six-year period of clinical development prior to FDA approval, including approximately \$10 million for clinical trials and \$4 million of other expenses. The Company anticipates funding these future expenses through additional capital raises or issuance of debt, until revenues become sufficient to cover these ongoing expenses.

October 2021 Financing

On October 13, 2021, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the "October SPA") with certain accredited and institutional investors, pursuant to which we sold 3,323,616 shares of our common stock in a registered direct offering (the "October RD") at an offering price of \$1.715 per share and associated October Warrant (as defined below). Also pursuant to the October SPA, in a concurrent private placement (together with the October RD, the "October Offering"), the Company sold to the purchasers warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 3,323,616 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$1.715 per share (the "October Warrants"). The October Warrants became exercisable immediately upon the closing of the October Offering on October 18, 2021 and will expire five years following that date. In connection with the October Offering, the Company issued warrants to purchase 130,000 shares of common stock to Katalyst as compensation for financial advisory services. The Company received net proceeds from the October Offering, after deducting fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company, of approximately \$5.5 million.

The October Warrants and the warrants issued to Katalyst in connection with the October Offering were issued in reliance upon the exemption from the registration requirements in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Regulation D promulgated thereunder. Each purchaser represented that it was an "accredited investor" (as defined by Rule 501 under the Securities Act).

November 2021 Financing

On November 29, 2021, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the "November SPA") with certain accredited and institutional investors, pursuant to which we sold 2,153,333 shares of our common stock in a registered direct offering (the "November RD) at an offering price of \$3.00 per share and associated November Warrant (as defined herein). Also pursuant to the November SPA, in a concurrent private placement (together with the November RD, the "November Offering"), the Company sold to the purchasers (i) 1,180,000 unregistered shares of the Company's common stock (the "November PIPE Shares) at an offering price of \$3.00 per share and associated November Warrant and (ii) the warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 2,500,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$3.50 per share (the "November Warrants"). The November Warrants became exercisable immediately upon the closing of the November Offering on December 2, 2021 and will expire five years following that date. In connection with the November Offering, the Company issued warrants to purchase 150,000 shares of common stock to Katalyst as compensation for financial advisory services. The Company received net proceeds from the November Offering, after deducting fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company, of approximately \$9.3 million.

The November PIPE Shares, the November Warrants, and the warrants issued to Katalyst in connection with the November Offering were issued in reliance upon the exemption from the registration requirements in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Regulation D promulgated thereunder. Each purchaser represented that it was an "accredited investor" (as defined by Rule 501 under the Securities Act).

December 2021 Financing

On December 22, 2021, we entered into the Securities Purchase Agreement (the "December SPA") with certain accredited and institutional investors, pursuant to which we sold 1,545,183 shares of our common stock in a registered direct offering (the "December RD) at an offering price of \$3.43 per share and associated December Warrant (as defined herein). Also pursuant to the December SPA, in a concurrent private placement (together with the December RD, the "December Offering"), the Company sold to the purchasers (i) 641,406 unregistered shares of the Company's common stock (the "December PIPE Shares) at an offering price of \$3.43 per share and associated December Warrant and (ii) the warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 1,639,942 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$3.50 per share (the "December Warrants"). The December Warrants became exercisable immediately upon the closing of the December Offering on December 27, 2021 and will expire five years following that date. In connection with the December Offering, the Company issued warrants to purchase 110,000 shares of common stock to Katalyst as compensation for financial advisory services. The Company received net proceeds from the December Offering, after deducting fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company, of approximately \$6.9 million.

The December PIPE Shares, the December Warrants, and the warrants issued to Katalyst in connection with the December Offering were issued in reliance upon the exemption from the registration requirements in Section 4(a)(2)

of the Securities Act and Regulation D promulgated thereunder. Each purchaser represented that it was an "accredited investor" (as defined by Rule 501 under the Securities Act).

We will require additional financing to further develop and market our products, fund operations, and otherwise implement our business strategy at amounts relatively consistent with the expenditure levels disclosed above. We are exploring additional ways to raise capital,

but we cannot assure you that we will be able to raise capital. Our failure to raise capital as and when needed would have a material adverse impact on our financial condition, our ability to meet our obligations, and our ability to pursue our business strategies. We expect to seek additional funds through a variety of sources, which may include additional public or private equity or debt financings, collaborative, or other arrangements with corporate sources, or through other sources of financing.

We are focused on expanding our service offering through internal development, collaborations, and through strategic acquisitions. We are continually evaluating potential asset acquisitions and business combinations. To finance such acquisitions, we might raise additional equity capital, incur additional debt, or both.

Debt

Vivus Note

As noted above, in January 2022, the Company executed a promissory note in favor of Vivus with a principal amount of \$10,201,758 as part of the settlement. For more information, see the section above titled "—Vivus Settlement Agreement, Promissory Note and the Security Agreement."

Senior Debt

On September 30, 2016, the Company entered into a loan and security agreement (the "Loan Agreement") with Hercules Capital, Inc. ("Hercules"), for a \$35 million term loan. The Loan Agreement included an additional Payable-In-Kind ("PIK") interest that increases the outstanding principal on a monthly basis at an annual rate of 1.35% and a \$787,500 end of term charge. The end of term charge was being recognized as interest expense and accreted over the term of the Loan Agreement, as amended, using the effective interest method. We refer to the amounts available under the credit facility with Hercules as Senior Debt.

On November 22, 2017, the Company entered into Amendment No. 1 to the Loan Agreement (the "First Amendment"). A covenant was added, in which the Company must achieve a certain minimum EBITDA, as defined in the First Amendment, target for the trailing twelve-month period, ending June 30, 2018. The end of term charge was increased from \$787,500 to \$1,068,750. The minimum EBITDA for each of the trailing six months and the fixed charge coverage ratio were reduced from 1:1 to 0.9:1. The Company was also required to prepay \$10,000,000 in principal.

On August 13, 2019, the Company entered into a forbearance agreement with Hercules under which Hercules agreed to forbear exercising any remedies under the loan for events of default through the earlier of September 30, 2019 or the occurrence of an event of default under the Loan Agreement, as amended.

Effective April 13, 2020, the Company and Hercules entered into Amendment No. 2 to the Loan Agreement, (the "Second Amendment"), to extend the maturity date to December 1, 2021, if the Company should raise at least \$20 million through an equity or debt financing or other transaction. All previously accrued PIK interest was added to principal, and no further PIK interest would accrue. The cash interest accrued at a rate of the greater of (i) the prime rate reported in the Wall Street Journal plus 11.50% minus 4.25% and (ii) 11.50%. The end of term charge of \$1,068,750 was partially extended with \$534,375 due on October 1, 2020, and \$534,375 due on February 1, 2021. The Company incurred a \$50,000 amendment fee upon closing of the Second Amendment.

Effective September 30, 2020, the Company and Hercules entered into Amendment No. 3 to the Loan Agreement (the "Third Amendment") to provide for interest only payments commencing on October 1, 2020 and continuing through December 22, 2020. The Third Amendment also amended the minimum cash, minimum net revenue and minimum EBITDA financial covenants. On that same date, Juggernaut Capital Partners III, L.P., an affiliate of JCP Investor, Hercules, and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. entered into an escrow agreement (the "Escrow Agreement") to escrow certain funds in an aggregate amount equal to certain principal payments owed under the Loan Agreement, as amended. In connection with the consummation of the Mergers, the funds held in escrow were disbursed back to Juggernaut Capital Partners III, L.P. and the Escrow Agreement was terminated.

The Company	satisfied the	maturity	date extensio	n requirement	pursuant 1	to funds	retained	upon th	e closing	of the
Mergers in De	cember 2020.	As a result	t, the Senior I	Debt had a mat	urity date o	f Decem	ber 1, 20	21.		

On November 3, 2021, the Company repaid the remaining balance due on the Senior Debt.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021:

	For the Three Months Ended March 31,		
	2022	2021	
Net cash used in operating activities	\$(5,275,701)	\$ (446,581)	
Net cash used in financing activities	(900,000)	(2,126,403)	
Net decrease in cash	\$(6,175,701)	\$(2,572,984)	

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2022 was \$5,275,701, which primarily reflected our net loss of \$174,224, in addition to noncash adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities of \$2,087,394 consisting primarily of depreciation and amortization, changes in the fair value of derivative liability and stock compensation, and changes in operating assets and liabilities of \$3,014,083.

Net cash used in operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2021 was \$446,581, which primarily reflected our net income of \$3,009,081, more than offset by cash adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities of \$3,117,296 consisting primarily of depreciation and amortization, inventory obsolescence reserves, changes in the fair value of derivative liability, and changes in operating assets and liabilities of \$338,366.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

No cash was provided by or used in investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was \$900,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2022, consisting of prepayments of promissory note of \$900,000.

Net cash used in financing activities was \$2,126,403 for the three months ended March 31, 2021, consisting of payments of senior debt of \$1,592,028 and a payment for the senior debt end-of-term fee of \$534,375.

Off-Balance Sheet Commitments and Arrangements

We have not entered into any off-balance sheet financial guarantees or other off-balance sheet commitments to guarantee the payment obligations of any third parties. We have not entered into any derivative contracts that are indexed to our shares and classified as stockholder's equity or that are not reflected in our financial statements included as Exhibit 99.1 to this Form 10-Q. Furthermore, we do not have any retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support to such entity. We do not have any variable interest in any unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit support to us or engages in leasing, hedging or product development services with us.

Contingencies

Certain conditions may exist as of the date the financial statements are issued, which may result in a loss to the Company, but which will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The Company's management, in consultation with its legal counsel as appropriate, assesses such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against the Company or unasserted claims that may result in such proceedings, the Company, in consultation with legal counsel,

evaluates the perceived merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims, as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein. If the assessment of a contingency indicates it is probable that a material loss has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be estimated, then the estimated liability would be accrued in the Company's financial statements. If the assessment indicates a potentially material loss contingency is not probable, but is reasonably possible, or is probable, but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the contingent liability, together with an estimate of the range of possible loss, if determinable and material, would be disclosed. Loss contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they involve guarantees, in which case the guarantees would be disclosed.

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure utilized by management to evaluate the Company's performance on a comparable basis. The Company believes that Adjusted EBITDA is useful to investors as a supplemental way to evaluate the ongoing operations of the Company's business as Adjusted EBITDA may enhance investors' ability to compare historical periods as it adjusts for the impact of financing methods, tax law and strategy changes, and depreciation and amortization and to evaluate the Company's ability to service debt. In addition, Adjusted EBITDA is a financial measurement that management and the Company's Board of Directors use in their financial and operational decision-making and in the determination of certain compensation programs. Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure commonly used in the Company's industry and should not be construed as an alternative to net income as an indicator of operating performance (as determined in accordance with GAAP). The Company's presentation of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

Adjusted EBITDA is adjusted to exclude certain items that affect comparability. The adjustments are itemized in the tables below. You are encouraged to evaluate these adjustments and the reason the Company considers them appropriate for supplemental analysis. In evaluating adjustments, you should be aware that in the future the Company may incur expenses that are the same as or similar to some of the adjustments set forth below. The presentation of these adjustments should not be construed as an inference that future results will be unaffected by unusual or recurring items.

The Company defines Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) adjusted to exclude (i) interest expense, net, (ii) depreciation and amortization and (iii) income taxes, as further adjusted to eliminate the impact of certain items that the Company does not consider indicative of its ongoing operating performance or that are non-recurring in nature. For example, Adjusted EBITDA:

- does not reflect the Company's capital expenditures, future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual commitments:
- does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, the Company's working capital needs;
- does not reflect the significant interest expense, or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal payments, on the Company's debt; and
- does not reflect payments related to income taxes, if applicable.

The following table presents a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021:

	For the Three Months Ended			
	Marc	March 31,		
	2022	2021		
Net income (loss)	\$ (174,224)	\$ 3,009,081		
Interest expense, senior debt	_	173,412		
Interest expense, promissory note	153,026	_		
Depreciation and amortization expense	1,560,870	1,728,829		
EBITDA	1,539,672	4,911,322		
Gain on settlement with Vivus	(3,389,941)	_		
Change in fair value of derivative liability	(460,000)	(5,380,000)		
Adjusted EBITDA	\$(2,310,269)	\$ (468,678)		

Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation, or as a substitute for analysis of the Company's results as reported under GAAP.

Gross Billings

Gross billings is a non-GAAP financial measure utilized as a key performance metric by management and the Company's Board of Directors in their financial and operational decision-making as well as for the preparation of the annual budget. The Company believes that gross billings is useful to investors as a supplemental way to provide an alternative measure of the total demand for the products

sold by the Company. Gross billings is a non-GAAP financial measure commonly used in the Company's industry and should not be construed as an alternative to net sales as an indicator of operating performance (as determined in accordance with GAAP). The Company's presentation of gross billings may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

Gross billings is adjusted to exclude certain items that affect comparability. The adjustments are itemized in the tables below. You are encouraged to evaluate these adjustments and the reason the Company considers them appropriate for supplemental analysis. In evaluating adjustments, you should be aware that in the future the Company may incur expenses that are the same as or similar to some of the adjustments set forth below. The presentation of these adjustments should not be construed as an inference that future results will be unaffected by unusual or recurring items.

The Company defines gross billings as the amount of its aggregate sales billed to customers at standard prices before the application of certain adjustments that reduce the net amount received from customers, including product returns, certain rebates and coupon redemptions, discounts and fees.

The following table presents a reconciliation of net sales to gross billings for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021:

		For the Three Months Ended March 31,		
	2022	2021		
Net Sales	\$2,465,169	\$4,075,606		
Product returns	743,753	609,705		
Contract rebates	450,231	871,734		
Chargebacks	36,273	237,148		
Cash discounts	68,233	199,874		
Distribution service fees	396,937	595,278		
Coupon redemptions	2,351,285	946,378		
Gross billings	\$6,511,881	\$7,535,723		

Gross billings has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation, or as a substitute for analysis of the Company's results as reported under GAAP.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

We are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and are not required to provide the information required under this item.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act")) as of the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed by us under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the required time periods and is accumulated

and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

A material weakness is a control deficiency (within the meaning of Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB) Auditing Standard No. 5) or combination of control deficiencies that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. As disclosed in Part II Item 9A Controls and Procedures in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, we identified a material weaknesses in internal control related to (1) Petros has an insufficient level of monitoring and oversight controls and does not enforce the implementation of key controls reflected on its internal control process matrices; (2) the sizes of Petros' accounting and IT departments make it impracticable to achieve an appropriate segregation of duties; and (3) Petros does not have appropriate IT access related controls.

Table of Contents

Management plans to expand the scope of its remediation of its internal controls over financial reporting at the consolidated level and has developed a plan to address the remediation of the foregoing deficiencies in 2022. The Company has hired an external consultant to assist in the remediation of the deficiencies.

Our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal controls will prevent all errors or fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Due to the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. Management believes that the financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fairly present in all material respects our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2022, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting other than as noted above.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

From time to time, we may become involved in legal proceedings or be subject to claims arising in the ordinary course of our business.

The information set forth in Note 14 Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

There are no additional risk factors other than those previously disclosed in "Item 1A. Risk Factors" of our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, as filed with the SEC on March 31, 2022. Our business, financial condition and operating results can be affected by a number of factors, whether currently known or unknown, including but not limited to those described in our annual report, any one or more of which could, directly or indirectly, cause our actual financial condition and operating results to vary materially from past, or from anticipated future, financial condition and operating results. Any of these factors, in whole or in part, could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, operating results, and stock price.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.			
Issuance of Unregistered Securities			
None.			
ATEM A DEFAULTS ADON SENIOD SECUDITIES			
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES.			
None.			
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.			
Not applicable.			
not applicable.			

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS.

Exhibit No.	Description		
10.1+†*	Settlement Agreement, dated January 18, 2022, between Metuchen Pharmaceuticals LLC and VIVU		
	LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.		
10.2†*	Promissory Note, dated January 18, 2022, by Metuchen Pharmaceuticals LLC in favor or VIVUS L		
	a Delaware limited liability company.		
10.3	Security Agreement, dated January 18, 2022, between Metuchen Pharmaceuticals LLC and VIVUS		
	LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the		
	Company's Form 8-K filed on January 21, 2022).		
10.4†*	Amendment No. 1 to License and Commercialization Agreement, dated January 18, 2022, between		
	Metuchen Pharmaceuticals LLC and VIVUS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.		
10.5*	Technology Transfer Service Agreement, dated January 20, 2022, between Patheon Pharmaceuticals		
	Inc., part of Thermo Fisher Scientific, and Metuchen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.		
10.6#	Severance and General Release Agreement, dated March 1, 2022, between Andrew Gesek and Per		
	Pharmaceuticals, Inc., its affiliates, subsidiaries and successor entities (incorporated by reference to		
	Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed on March 4, 2022).		
31.1*	Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification – Principal Executive Officer.		
31.2*	Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification – Principal Financial Officer.		
32**	Section 1350 Certification – Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer.		
101	The following materials from Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for th		
	quarter ended March 31, 2022, formatted in iXBRL (Inline eXtensible Business Reporting Language):		
	(i) Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations; (iii) Consolidated		
	Changes in Stockholders' Equity/Members' Capital; (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; and		
	(v) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.		
104	Cover Page Interactive Data File, formatted in iXBRL and contained in Exhibit 101.		

^{*} Filed herewith.

^{**} Furnished herewith.

⁺ Certain of the schedules (and similar attachments) to this Exhibit have been omitted in accordance with Regulation S-K Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, because they do not contain information material to an investment or voting decision and that information is not otherwise disclosed in the Exhibit or the disclosure document. The registrant hereby agrees to furnish a copy of all omitted schedules (or similar attachments) to the SEC upon its request.

Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(10)(iv) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, because they are both (i) not material and (ii) the type that the registrant treats as private or confidential. A copy of the omitted portions will be furnished to the SEC upon its request.

[#] Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Date: May 16, 2022 By: /s/ Fady Boctor

Fady Boctor

Chief Commercial Officer and Principal Executive

Officer

Date: May 16, 2022 By: /s/ Mitchell Arnold

Mitchell Arnold

Vice President of Finance and Principal Financial

Officer

Certain information has been excluded pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item 601(b)(10)(iv) from this Document because it is both not material and is the type that the registrant treats as private or confidential.

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

This SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, dated as of January 18, 2022, (this "Agreement") is entered into by and between METUCHEN PHARMACEUTICALS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Metuchen") and VIVUS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and formerly VIVUS, Inc. ("VIVUS"). Metuchen and VIVUS are collectively referred to as the "Parties" and each a "Party."

WHEREAS, Metuchen and VIVUS are parties to that certain License and Commercialization Agreement, dated September 30, 2016 (as amended, restated, amended and restated, supplemental or otherwise modified, the "<u>License Agreement</u>"), pursuant to which VIVUS granted to Metuchen an exclusive license in the Territory (as defined below) for, among other things, the development and commercialization of the therapeutic drug known as STENDRA® (avanafil) ("STENDRA");

WHEREAS, Metuchen and VIVUS were parties to that certain Commercial Supply Agreement, dated September 30, 2016 (as amended, restated, amended and restated, supplemental or otherwise modified, the "Supply Agreement"), pursuant to which, among other things, VIVUS supplied to Metuchen, and Metuchen agreed to purchase from VIVUS, the Product (as defined below) in quantities no less than the Minimum Purchase Obligation (as defined in the Supply Agreement);

WHEREAS, the Supply Agreement was terminated on September 30, 2021;

WHEREAS, Metuchen sells its finished product STENDRA tablets to, and VIVUS sells its finished product of a drug known as QSYMIA® (phentermine/topiramate) ("QSYMIA") tablets to, the retail chain CVS Pharmacy ("CVS");

WHEREAS, on or about February 2018 and thereafter, CVS [***] deducted monies [***] from its sale of VIVUS's product QSYMIA in an amount equal to Six Million and Three Hundred Eighty Thousand Three Hundred Forty-Two Dollars and Four Cents (\$6,380,342.04) to cover costs owed to CVS by Metuchen for the return of Metuchen's product STENDRA (the "CVS Principal Amount");

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2020, Metuchen consummated a merger with Neurotrope, Inc., a Nevada corporation, including its acquisition by a new publicly traded parent holding company, Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Petros");

WHEREAS, on March 3, 2021, Metuchen submitted to VIVUS that certain Purchase Order MT 2021-01 dated March 3, 2021 for the Product (the "2021 Purchase Order") and has agreed to pay, concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, One Million Five Hundred Forty-Two Thousand Nine Hundred Four Dollars (\$1,542,904), representing the full amount payable for the 2021 Purchase Order;

WHEREAS, Metuchen has acknowledged, and hereby reaffirms, that VIVUS is not responsible for the STENDRA products returned by CVS or any costs incurred by CVS in connection with the returned STENDRA products and that Metuchen is obligated to indemnify VIVUS for the total amount of the CVS Principal Amount pursuant to its indemnification obligations under Article 10 of the License Agreement;

WHEREAS, Metuchen also has acknowledged, and hereby reaffirms, that VIVUS is not responsible for Metuchen's failure to fulfil its Minimum Purchase Obligations under the Supply Agreement and that it owes VIVUS an amount equal to Nine Million Two Hundred Twenty-One Thousand Four Hundred and Sixteen Dollars (\$9,221,416) less Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$250,000) that Metuchen has paid VIVUS and One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) that VIVUS has reduced the indebtedness by (and in consideration for the execution and performance of this Agreement) (the "Vivus Debt Reduction") with Seven Million Nine Hundred Seventy-One Thousand Four Hundred and Sixteen Dollars (\$7,971,416) remaining payable to VIVUS for Metuchen's failure to fulfil its Minimum Purchase Obligation under the Supply Agreement for the calendar years 2018 and 2019 (the "MPO Principal Amount" and, together with the CVS Principal Amount, the "Principal Amount") in addition to (and not deductive of) the CVS Principal Amount;

WHEREAS, in order to repay the Principal Amount to VIVUS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement and document Metuchen's obligation to pay such Principal Amount and interest thereon in the form of the promissory note attached hereto as Exhibit A (the "Promissory Note"), which Promissory Note will be secured by certain assets of Metuchen as described and in accordance with the terms of the security agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B ("Security Agreement");

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the payment and security obligations set forth in the Promissory Note and Security Agreement and to ensure Metuchen's full and prompt performance of its obligations hereunder and under such documents, the Parties desire to enter into the additional agreements set forth in this Agreement, including certain amendments to the License Agreement, agreements concerning regulatory matters relating to VIVUS' ability to sell and commercialize STENDRA; and

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge and agree that the Vivus Debt Reduction granted and agreed by Vivus constitutes valid and sufficient consideration for the mutual agreements set forth herein and in the Promissory Note and Security Agreement and other documents attached hereto.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

- 1. Definitions.
- (a) Definitions of Certain Terms Used Herein. The following terms used herein shall have the following meanings:

"Affiliate" means, with respect to a Person, any current or future person, firm, trust, corporation, company, partnership, or other entity or combination thereof that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such Person. For the purposes of this definition, the word "control" (including, with correlative meaning, the terms "controlled by" or "under the common control with") means (a) ownership of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting and equity rights of such person, firm, trust, corporation, company, partnership or other entity or combination thereof, or (b) the power to direct the management of such person, firm, trust, corporation, company, partnership, or other entity or combination thereof.

- "Applicable Law" means any and all laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations, permits, orders, decrees, judgments, directives, rulings or rules of any kind whatsoever that are promulgated by a federal, state, province, or other Governmental Authority, in each case pertaining to any of the activities contemplated by this Agreement, including any regulations promulgated by any Regulatory Authority in the Territory, all as amended from time to time.
- "Bankruptcy Code" means Title 11 of the United States Code entitled "Bankruptcy," as amended from time to time, or any successor statute.
- "Business Day" means each day other than a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in New York City are authorized or required by law to remain closed.
- "CVS" has the meaning assigned to such term in the preamble.
- "CVS Principal Amount" has the meaning assigned to such term in the preamble.
- "Confidential Information" means all confidential and proprietary Information of VIVUS or a Group Member that is disclosed to or accessed without breach of the Settlement Documents.
- "<u>Debtor Relief Laws</u>" means the Bankruptcy Code, and all other liquidation, conservatorship, bankruptcy, assignment for the benefit of creditors, moratorium, rearrangement, receivership, insolvency, reorganization, or similar debtor relief laws of the United States or other applicable jurisdictions from time to time in effect.
- "Dollars" or "\sums " means the lawful money of the United States.
- "Event of Default" has the meaning assigned to such term in the Security Agreement.
- "FDA" means the United States Food and Drug Administration or its successor.
- "Fiscal Year" means the twelve-month period ending on December 31st.
- "Governmental Authority" means any transnational, domestic or foreign federal, provincial, state or local governmental, regulatory or administrative authority (including any Regulatory Authority), department, court, agency or official, including any political subdivision thereof.
- "Group Member" means Petros, and each of its current and future subsidiaries and affiliates, including Metuchen and Metuchen's current and future subsidiaries and affiliates.
- "License Agreement" has the meaning assigned to such term in the preamble.
- "Settlement Documents" shall mean, collectively, this Agreement, the Promissory Note, the Security Agreement, the License Agreement, and all other documents, instruments, and agreements executed or delivered in connection with, or pursuant to, any of the foregoing, and all exhibits, schedules, annexes, appendices, and other attachments thereto, in each case, as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time.

"<u>Material Adverse Effect</u>" means (a) a material adverse effect upon the validity, performance, or enforceability of any of the Settlement Documents or any of the transactions contemplated by any of the Settlement Documents; (b) a material adverse effect upon the properties, operations, business, prospects, or condition (financial or otherwise) of Petros and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or on Metuchen or any of its subsidiaries, individually or taken as a whole; (c) a material adverse effect upon the ability of any Group Member to fulfill any obligation under any of the Settlement Documents; or (d) a material adverse effect on the Collateral (as defined in the Security Agreement).

"Minimum Purchase Obligation" has the meaning assigned to such term in the Supply Agreement.

"Person" means any natural person, corporation, firm, business trust, joint venture, association, organization, company, partnership or other business entity, or any government, or any agency or political subdivisions thereof.

"Pricing Approval" means the approval, agreement, determination, or governmental decision establishing the price or level of reimbursement for the Product, as required in a given jurisdiction.

"Product" means formulated tablets containing Compound (as defined in the License Agreement) in bulk form which, if appropriately packaged and labeled would constitute the pharmaceutical product STENDRA, as described in the FDA-approved New Drug Application (as defined in the United States Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act) for such product (as such New Drug Application may be modified in the future in accordance with the Supply Agreement and/or the License Agreement).

"Promissory Note" has the meaning assigned to such term in the preamble.

"QSYMIA" has the meaning assigned to such term in the preamble.

"Regulatory Approval" means all approvals necessary for the manufacture, marketing, importation and sale of the Product for one or more indications in a country or regulatory jurisdiction, which may include satisfaction of all applicable regulatory and notification requirements, but which shall exclude any Pricing Approval.

"Regulatory Authority" means, in a particular country or regulatory jurisdiction, any applicable Governmental Authority involved in granting Regulatory Approval and/or, to the extent required in such country or regulatory jurisdiction, Pricing Approval, including the FDA in the case of the Territory.

"Responsible Officer" means, with respect to any Person, any of the president, chief executive officer, chief financial officer, treasurer, controller, managing director, managing member or general partner of such Person but, in any event, with respect to financial matters, any such officer that is responsible for preparing or reviewing the financial statements delivered hereunder.

"STENDRA" has the meaning assigned to such term as defined in the preamble.

"Supply Agreement" has the meaning assigned to such term as defined in the preamble.

"<u>Territory</u>" means the United States and its territories and possessions, including Puerto Rico and U.S. military bases abroad, Canada, South America and India.

"Third Party" means any legal person, entity or organization other than Metuchen, VIVUS or an Affiliate of either Party, including any Governmental Authority.

"VIVUS Exploitation Rights" means VIVUS' right to Develop, Manufacture, Commercialize (as such terms are defined in the License Agreement) and otherwise exploit STENDRA in the Licensee Territory (as defined in the License Agreement), as to each, without limitation.

- 2. Promissory Note; Future Financings.
- (a) <u>Payment</u>. Metuchen shall repay the entire unpaid Principal Amount then outstanding to VIVUS, together with all accrued and unpaid interest thereon, at the times and in accordance with the terms of the Promissory Note.
- (b) <u>Additional Payments</u>. As a condition to the release and shipment of the Product specified in the 2021 Purchase Order, Metuchen shall immediately (i) make an initial payment with respect to the Promissory Note in the amount of Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$900,000) and (ii) make the payment with respect to the 2021 Purchase Order in the amount of One Million Five Hundred Forty-Two Thousand Nine Hundred Four Dollars (\$1,542,904), which amount represents payment for the Product only and does not include the associated cost, freight and insurance which Metuchen is solely responsible to pay.
- (c) <u>Future Financings</u>. VIVUS is hereby granted a right of first refusal (including in respect of any financing proposal received from a Group Member or Third Party) to provide any debt financing, convertible debt or equity, or debt-linked instrument (e.g. common or preferred equity, or warrants, options or other agreements that act like, may be exercised for, or converted into debt) issued by or to Metuchen (including any subsidiaries and intermediaries) until the Promissory Note is irrevocably paid in full in cash.
- 3. Withholding. If any Applicable Law requires the deduction or withholding of any tax from amounts otherwise payable pursuant to this Agreement, the Promissory Note or any other Settlement Document, then Metuchen shall be entitled to make such deduction or withholding and shall timely pay the full amount deducted or withheld to the relevant Governmental Authority in accordance with Applicable Law, and if such tax is imposed, then the sum payable by Metuchen shall be increased as necessary so that after such deduction or withholding has been made (including, such deductions and withholdings applicable to such additional sums payable under this Section 3), VIVUS (or the applicable transferee) receives an amount equal to the sum it would have received had no such deduction or withholding had been made.

- 4. <u>Termination of Supply Agreement</u>. The Parties hereby agree and acknowledge that the Supply Agreement terminated effective as of September 30, 2021, and except as set forth herein (a) Metuchen has no further obligation to make any further purchases or pay any further amounts to VIVUS under the Supply Agreement and (b) VIVUS has not further obligation to manufacture (or have manufactured) and supply Product or API to Metuchen. For the avoidance of doubt, Metuchen shall not have any Minimum Purchase Obligations under the Supply Agreement for calendar year 2020, 2021 or otherwise.
- 5. <u>Amendments to License Agreement</u>. In order to ensure that, upon an Event of Default, VIVUS will already have all of the rights under the License Agreement to exercise the VIVUS Exploitation Rights (regardless of whether the termination of the license is stayed or deemed ipso facto by a bankruptcy court), the License Agreement will be amended in the form of Amendment No. 1 to License Agreement attached hereto as <u>Exhibit C</u> ("<u>First License Amendment</u>"), including to achieve the following:
- (a) VIVUS will retain co-exclusive rights to exercise the VIVUS Exploitation Rights in the Licensee Territory (and otherwise exclusively on a worldwide basis);
- (b) VIVUS will undertake a limited forbearance from exercising the VIVUS Exploitation Rights in the Licensee Territory unless or until an Event of Default occurs;
- (c) Upon an Event of Default, the License Agreement will terminate;
- (d) VIVUS will have such rights to use all Metuchen regulatory documentation, rights of reference to all regulatory submissions to Regulatory Authorities and other rights as may be necessary or appropriate in VIVUS' discretion in order to enable VIVUS to immediately commence the exercise of the VIVUS Exploitation Rights; and
- (e) Metuchen will agree and stipulate that (i) VIVUS is the sole and exclusive owner of all of the API unless or until such time that certain quantities of API are shipped to Metuchen against payments made under the Promissory Note in accordance with Section 7 below, and (ii) VIVUS' exercise of the VIVUS Exploitation Rights would not be subject to the automatic stay, any need for a court order (including that of a bankruptcy court) or in any way impact property of a Metuchen bankruptcy estate upon the occurrence of an Event of Default.
- 6. <u>Regulatory Matters</u>. Metuchen agrees to the following and to take any and all further actions and to enter into or amend any agreement (including the License Agreement) in each case deemed necessary or appropriate by VIVUS in its sole discretion to effectuate and accomplish the following:
- (a) <u>Labeler Code</u>. VIVUS shall have the right to exercise the VIVUS Exploitation Rights under its own labeler code. VIVUS has the right to take all steps it deems necessary and appropriate to prepare for the immediate exercise of the VIVUS Exploitation Rights, including entering into any agreements with a third party in respect thereof, but will forbear from actually exercising the VIVUS Exploitation Rights only unless or until an Event of Default occurs (the "<u>Limited</u> Forbearance").

(b) Regulatory Authorities. Metuchen agrees to perform in a timely manner all steps as may be required or as otherwise requested by VIVUS to effectuate VIVUS' ability to engage in the VIVUS Exploitation Rights, including submitting an NDC Labeler code request SPL to FDA via ESG or CDER Direct Portal, indicating a new labeler and label addition (together, the "Labeler Addition") and such other documentation as FDA, VIVUS and other third parties may require or request. The Parties acknowledge and agree that Metuchen's regulatory advisor, OneSource Regulatory ("OneSource"), shall assist Metuchen and VIVUS with respect to the foregoing, and will submit the Labeler Addition documents in form and substance acceptable to VIVUS (estimated to be within 1 business day from the date of this Agreement), with confirmation of receipt estimated to be within three (3) days or less from submission. Any other steps in addition to those stated above deemed necessary or desired by VIVUS to exercise the VIVUS Exploitation Rights will be promptly performed by Metuchen upon request by VIVUS (collectively such requirements in addition to those stated in this Section 6, the "Regulatory Requirements"). The Regulatory Requirements may be performed by OneSource with the prior written consent of VIVUS. The Regulatory Requirements will be performed and completed (i) at Metuchen's sole cost and expense, (ii) in accordance with applicable laws, (iii) pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Settlement Documents as well as subject to the additional requirement of VIVUS's reasonable satisfaction and (iv) in accordance with the time period and other requirements set forth in this Agreement and the other Settlement Documents. A failure to perform the Regulatory Requirements in accordance with this Agreement shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and accordingly, and Event of Default.

7. <u>Transfer of Ownership to Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient.</u>

- (a) <u>Initial Transfer</u>. Upon Metuchen's (i) submission of the Labeler Addition (in accordance with Section 6(b)), and (ii) a nonrefundable payment of \$2,442,904 to VIVUS (in accordance with Section 2(b)), VIVUS will agree to promptly (but in any event, within three (3) business days of satisfaction of conditions (i) and (ii) of this Section 7(a)) release to Metuchen 50% of quantity of bulk STENDRA tablets under Metuchen's existing open purchase order being held by VIVUS ("Open Purchase Order"), which represents approximately a six (6) month supply of inventory. No shipment of STENDRA will occur unless and until the requirements of both Section 7(a)(i) and 7(a)(ii) are performed.
- Upon the timely completion of the remaining Regulatory Requirements (estimated to be within a subsequent 30-60 days of all required submissions by Metuchen or OneSource, VIVUS, or Metuchen in connection therewith, but not to exceed 180 days from the date hereof), VIVUS will release the remaining 50% of the bulk STENDRA tablets covered by the Open Purchase Order to Metuchen. Time is of the essence in respect of the completion of the Regulatory Requirements, and Metuchen shall (and shall cause OneSource) to use its best efforts to do so as quickly as possible. Failure to use such best efforts, complete the Regulatory Requirements within the 180 day time period stated above or achieve the FDA validation of VIVUS's rights to exercise the VIVUS Exploitation Rights (including specifically the right to manufacture, commercialize, or distribute STENDRA in the Licensed Territory) shall constitute an Event of Default under the Settlement Documents and shall trigger any and all of the rights and remedies available to VIVUS under the Settlement Documents or otherwise.

- (c) With respect to all of VIVUS' inventory of API, the Parties agree that for so long as the Principal Amount remains outstanding, upon the tender of payment by Metuchen on each Payment Date under the Promissory Note, Metuchen shall accrue a Principal Credit Balance (as defined below) against which Metuchen may upon submission of a written API PO (as defined below) to VIVUS request VIVUS to transfer title to the API Quantity (as defined below) to Metuchen against the API Quantity Amount (as defined below) applicable to such API PO. In connection with each API PO submitted in accordance with this Section 7, VIVUS shall convey, assign and transfer to Metuchen title to the applicable API Quantity without any further documentation required to effectuate such transfer; provided that if any other actions are reasonably required in order to effectuate such transfer, VIVUS shall promptly perform any and all such actions. Metuchen shall be the rightful owner of the API Quantity that is the subject of an API PO following tender of payment by Metuchen and transfer of title, including all risks of loss of such API, subject in each case to the security interests granted to VIVUS under the Security Agreement to secure the prompt and full payment of the Principal Amount and all interest accrued in connection therewith under the Promissory Note and such other Obligations (as defined in the Promissory Note).
- (d) For purposes of this Agreement, an "API PO" means a purchase order conforming to the terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit D attached hereto. The Parties agree that any and all terms and conditions included in any API PO and not otherwise set forth in Exhibit D shall be disregarded and not of any force or effect hereunder or under such API PO unless expressly agreed by the Parties in writing and executed by an authorized representative of each Party.
- (e) ALL API TRANSFERRED BY VIVUS TO METUCHEN UNDER THIS SECTION 7 IS TRANSFERRED "AS-IS" AND VIVUS DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES CONCERNING THE API, INCLUDING REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.
- (f) For purposes of this Agreement and this <u>Section 7</u>, the follow definitions shall apply:
- (i) The "<u>Principal Credit Balance</u>" means the aggregate amount of all payments of the Principal Balance received by VIVUS under and in accordance with the Promissory Note <u>less</u> the aggregate API Quantity Amount applied by Metuchen to acquire title to each transfer of API Quantity.

- (ii) The "API Quantity" means the quantity of API (as defined in the Supply Agreement) in weight equivalent to each API Quantity Amount requested to be applied by Metuchen and as determined using VIVUS' then current pricing for API.
- (iii) The "API Quantity Amount" means the U.S. dollar amount of the Principal Credit Balance that Metuchen requests VIVUS to apply and release a corresponding API Quantity to Metuchen.
- 8. <u>No Duty to Mitigate</u>. Metuchen agrees that VIVUS, its Affiliates and each of their representatives shall have no duty or other obligation to mitigate in respect of any breach, enforcement or action concerning the Settlement Documents, and waives any right, claim, or defense with respect thereto. The Settlement Documents are hereby amended by this Section 8, as applicable.

9. **Intentionally Omitted**.

- 10. Representations and Warranties. Metuchen represents and warrants the following:
- (a) Metuchen is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of formation. Metuchen has all requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and each of the Settlement Documents and to perform its obligations under this Agreement and each of the Settlement Documents. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and each of the Settlement Documents by Metuchen has been duly authorized and approved by all necessary action in accordance with Applicable Law and no other action on the part of Metuchen is necessary to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and each of the Settlement Documents. This Agreement and each of the Settlement Documents has been duly executed and delivered by Metuchen and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Metuchen. All documents and financial data (other than any projections or other forward-looking information) that have been or will be provided to VIVUS by Metuchen or any of its Affiliates are, when furnished, true, complete and correct in all material respects.
- (b) Each of the Group Members is solvent and able to pay its obligations as they become due, that this Agreement and the Settlement Documents provide fair consideration and reasonably equivalent value to it (quantitatively and/or qualitatively), and that by entering into and performing the Settlement Documents it is not actually hindering, delaying, or defrauding its creditors.
- (c) Metuchen's exact legal name is correctly set forth on the signature page hereof. Metuchen will not change its name or identity without giving prior written notice to VIVUS. Metuchen has been duly organized as a Delaware limited liability company. Metuchen's chief executive office is located at 200 US Hwy 9, Suite 500, Manalapan, NJ 07726. Metuchen will not change the location of its chief executive office, type of organization, business structure or place of incorporation or organization without giving not less than 30 days' prior written notice to VIVUS.

- (d) Metuchen has no knowledge of any Lien held by any third party or other facts or circumstances that would prevent or adversely impact VIVUS obtaining a first priority Lien in and to the Collateral (as defined in the Security Agreement) upon execution of the Settlement Documents (and assuming VIVUS promptly and properly perfects its security interest in and to the Collateral).
- 11. <u>Covenants</u>. Metuchen agrees that, from the date of execution of this Agreement until the obligations hereunder and the Obligations (as defined in the Security Agreement) have been fully paid and satisfied, Metuchen will not challenge its obligations to fulfill requirements set forth in the Settlement Documents and in addition to any and all covenants and obligations under the Promissory Note, the Security Agreement and the other Settlement Documents will perform the following:
- (a) <u>Financing Statements and other Information</u>. Metuchen shall deliver to VIVUS each of the following:
- (i) Annual Financial Statements. Upon the earlier of (A) fifteen (15) days following a filing of its annual reports (or the reports of Petros) with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") or (B) one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of each Fiscal Year of Metuchen, Metuchen shall provide VIVUS with its audited consolidated balance sheet and related statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows as of the end of and for such year, setting forth in each case in comparative form the figures for the previous fiscal year, accompanied by an audit opinion from an accounting firm (that is not subject to qualification as to the scope of such audit, but that may contain a "going concern" statement) to the effect that such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of Metuchen and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP.
- Quarterly Financial Statements. Upon the earlier of (A) fifteen (15) days following a filing of its quarterly reports (or the reports of Petros) with the SEC or (B) seventy-five (75) days after the end of each fiscal quarter of Metuchen not corresponding with the fiscal year end, Metuchen shall provide VIVUS with its unaudited consolidated balance sheet and related statements of operations and cash flows as of the end of and for such fiscal quarter and the then elapsed portion of the fiscal year, setting forth in each case in comparative form the figures for the corresponding period or periods of (or, in the case of the balance sheet, as of the end of) the previous fiscal year, all certified by a Responsible Officer as presenting fairly in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of Metuchen and its consolidated subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP, subject to normal year-end audit adjustments and the absence of footnotes.
- (b) VIVUS shall have the right to interview and obtain such additional information from Metuchen's management concerning any financial or business information set forth or otherwise reflected in the annual and quarterly financial statements required to be delivered under <u>Section 11(a)</u> as may be reasonably requested from time to time.

- (c) <u>Pay Indebtedness and other Liabilities</u>. Each Group Member will pay and discharge when due all of its and its subsidiaries' indebtedness and all of its and its subsidiaries' taxes, assessments, charges, levies and other liabilities imposed upon such Person, such Person's income, profits, property or business, except those which currently are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which Metuchen shall have set aside adequate reserves with respect thereto.
- (d) <u>Compliance with Laws, Etc.</u> Metuchen and each Group Member will comply in all material respects with all Applicable Laws applicable to the Group Members and to the operation of their business (including without limitations any statute, rule or regulation relating to employment practices and pension benefits or to environmental, occupational and health standards and controls) and take all actions necessary to maintain, renew and keep in full force and effect all New Drug Applications, Regulatory Approvals, permits, governmental authorizations, patents, trademarks, copyrights or other rights related to the Product or otherwise necessary to enable it to continue its business.
- 12. <u>Acknowledgements; Release of Claims</u>.
- (a) <u>Acknowledgements</u>. Metuchen hereby acknowledges and agrees to the following:
- (i) that VIVUS is not responsible for the STENDRA products returned by CVS or any costs incurred by CVS in connection with the returned STENDRA products and that Metuchen is obligated to indemnify and hold harmless VIVUS for the total amount of the CVS Principal Amount pursuant to its indemnification obligations under <u>Article 10</u> of the License Agreement; and
- (ii) that VIVUS is not responsible for Metuchen's failure to fulfil its Minimum Purchase Obligations under the Supply Agreement and that it owes VIVUS the MPO Principal Amount for failure to fulfil its Minimum Purchase Obligation under the Supply Agreement for the calendar years 2018 and 2019.
- (b) Release of Claims. Metuchen, on behalf of itself and each of its former and future subsidiaries, Affiliates and other Group Members and its and their former and future respective predecessors, managing agents, employees, officers, directors, stockholders, managers, representatives, agents, administrators, successors and assigns (each, the applicable Party's "Releasees"), hereby absolutely and unconditionally, to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law, surrenders, relinquishes, releases, holds harmless and forever discharges VIVUS and its Releasees from and against any and all actions, causes of action, setoffs, claims, cross-claims, suits, debts, accounts, demands, proceedings, arbitrations, limitations, covenants, contracts, controversies, agreements, promises, damages, losses, demands, costs and expenses (including attorney's fees and costs actually incurred), liabilities, obligations, defenses, orders, executions, claims for relief or judgments, of whatsoever kind or character, whether known or unknown, knowable or not knowable, foreseen or unforeseen, suspected or unsuspected, whether or not concealed or hidden, fixed or unfixed, direct or indirect, contingent or otherwise, at law or in equity, that have existed, may have existed, do exist as of the date of this Agreement or which may exist in the future and are based on any facts, events, matters, acts or omissions arising of out of or relating to the subject of the acknowledgments made in Section 12(a).

13. Amendment or Waiver.

- (a) <u>Amendment or Waiver</u>. No change, modification, or amendment of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless such change, modification or amendment is in writing and shall have been consented to by Metuchen and VIVUS in writing.
- (b) Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision to any Person or circumstance, shall be held invalid under the Applicable Law of any jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such provision to other Persons or circumstances or in other jurisdictions shall not be affected thereby. Further, if any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable under any Applicable Law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such law. Any provision hereof that may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof, and this Agreement shall be amended to give the Parties the benefit of their bargain to the maximum extent possible in that event..
- 14. <u>Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue; Consent to Service of Process.</u>
- (a) <u>Governing Law</u>. Resolution of all disputes arising out of or related to this Agreement or the validity, construction, interpretation, enforcement, breach, performance, application or termination of this Agreement and any remedies relating thereto, shall be governed by and construed under the substantive laws of the State of New York, excluding any conflicts or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise refer construction or interpretation of this Agreement to the substantive law of another jurisdiction.
- (b) JURISDICTION. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO AGREES THAT DISPUTES MAY BE RESOLVED BY LITIGATION IN THE FIRST INSTANCE AND HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLY AND IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS, FOR ITSELF AND ITS PROPERTY, TO THE EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF THE NEW YORK STATE COURT SITTING IN THE BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN, IN THE CITY OF NEW YORK (OR ANY APPELLATE COURT THEREFROM) OVER ANY SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR OTHER SETTLEMENT DOCUMENTS AND AGREES THAT ALL CLAIMS IN RESPECT OF ANY SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING SHALL BE HEARD AND DETERMINED IN SUCH NEW YORK STATE COURT; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT ANY SUIT BY VIVUS SEEKING ENFORCEMENT AGAINST ANY COLLATERAL OR OTHER PROPERTY MAY BE BROUGHT, AT VIVUS'S OPTION, IN THE COURTS OF ANY JURISDICTION WHERE VIVUS ELECTS TO BRING SUCH ACTION OR WHERE SUCH COLLATERAL OR OTHER PROPERTY MAY BE FOUND. THE SETTLEMENT DOCUMENTS ARE HEREBY AMENDED BY THIS SECTION 14(B), AS APPLICABLE.

- (c) <u>VENUE</u>. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLY AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY OBJECTION WHICH IT MAY NOW OR HEREAFTER HAVE TO THE LAYING OF VENUE OF ANY DISPUTE, SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER SETTLEMENT DOCUMENT BROUGHT IN ANY COURT SPECIFIED ABOVE, OR ANY DEFENSE OF INCONVENIENT FORUM FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF SUCH DISPUTE, SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING.
- CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES PERSONAL SERVICE OF ANY AND ALL PROCESS UPON THEM WITH RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER SETTLEMENT DOCUMENTS AND AGREES THAT ALL SUCH SERVICE OF PROCESS MAY BE MADE BY REGISTERED MAIL (OR ANY SUBSTANTIALLY SIMILAR FORM OF MAIL) DIRECTED TO IT AT ITS ADDRESS FOR NOTICES AS PROVIDED IN <u>SECTION 19</u> OF THIS AGREEMENT. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY WAIVES ANY OBJECTION TO SUCH SERVICE OF PROCESS AND FURTHER IRREVOCABLY WAIVES AND AGREES NOT TO PLEAD OR CLAIM IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING COMMENCED HEREUNDER THAT SUCH SERVICE OF PROCESS WAS INVALID AND INEFFECTIVE. NOTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT WILL AFFECT THE RIGHT OF ANY PARTY HERETO TO SERVE PROCESS IN ANY OTHER MANNER PERMITTED BY LAW.
- (e) <u>WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL</u>. EACH PARTY HERETO IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE SETTLEMENT DOCUMENTS OR THE ACTIONS OR OMISSIONS OF ANY PARTY HERETO IN THE NEGOTIATION, ADMINISTRATION, PERFORMANCE OR ENFORCEMENT THEREOF.
- 15. <u>Headings</u>. The section headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not be deemed to alter or affect the meaning or interpretation of any provision hereof.
- Other Terms. Whenever in this Agreement the singular number is used, the same shall include the plural where appropriate (and vice versa), and words of any gender shall include each other gender where appropriate. As used in this Agreement, the following words or phrases shall have the meanings indicated: (a) "day" means a calendar day; (b) "include," "including," or their derivatives means "including without limitation"; and (c) "laws" means statutes, regulations, rules, judicial orders, and other legal pronouncements having the effect of law. To the extent that the License Agreement (for the avoidance of doubt, including Amendment No. 1 thereto) is in any way inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, this Agreement shall control and such inconsistent provisions shall be revised to fulfill the agreements set forth in this Agreement.
- 17. <u>Counterparts; Electronic Mail Execution</u>. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties on separate counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which, when taken together, shall constitute but one and the same Agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of this Agreement by electronic mail shall be equally as effective as delivery of an original executed counterpart of this Agreement. Any party delivering an executed counterpart of this Agreement by electronic mail also shall deliver an original executed counterpart of this Agreement but the failure to deliver an original executed counterpart shall not affect the validity, enforceability, and binding effect of this Agreement.

- 18. <u>Set Off.</u> Metuchen shall not be entitled to set off, offset or net amounts owed to VIVUS against or in respect of any claim against VIVUS under this Agreement or under any of the Settlement Documents.
- 19. <u>Notices</u>. All notices and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be effective if in writing and (a) delivered personally, (b) sent by electronic mail, (c) sent by nationally recognized overnight courier, or (d) sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, in each case, addressed as follows:
- (i) if to VIVUS, to it at the following address:

VIVUS LLC

900 E. Hamilton Avenue, Suite 550

Campbell, CA 95008

Attention: Chief Financial Officer <u>and</u> General Counsel Email: CFO@vivus.com <u>and</u> GeneralCounsel@vivus.com

With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Greenberg Traurig, LLP MetLife Building 200 Park Avenue New York, NY 10166 Attention: Oscar N. Pinkas Email: pinkaso@gtlaw.com

(ii) If to Metuchen, to:

Metuchen Pharmaceuticals LLC 200 US Hwy 9 Suite 500 Manalapan, NJ 07726 Attention: Fady Boctor

Email: fboctor@metuchenpharma.com

With a copy to:

Morgan, Lewis & Bockius LLP 1111 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20004 Attention: Andrew M. Ray, Esq.

Fax: (202) 373-6001

Email: andrew.ray@morganlewis.com

Unless otherwise specified herein, such notices or other communications shall be deemed effective, (a) on the date received, if personally delivered or sent by electronic mail during normal business hours on a Business Day, or (b) if delivered by registered or certified mail or by overnight courier, on the date delivered as established by return receipt or courier service confirmation or the date on which the return receipt or courier service confirms that acceptance of delivery was returned by the addressee. Each of the parties hereto shall be entitled to specify a different address by giving notice as aforesaid to each of the other parties hereto.

- 20. <u>Expenses and Indemnification</u>. In addition to VIVUS's indemnification and other rights under the Security Agreement and other Settlement Documents:
- (a) Metuchen shall reimburse VIVUS on demand for all reasonable and documented out-of-pocket costs, expenses and fees (including reasonable expenses and fees of its external counsel) incurred by VIVUS in connection with the enforcement of VIVUS's rights hereunder and under the Loan Documents or in any bankruptcy case or insolvency proceeding. Failure by Metuchen to pay VIVUS any amounts due under this Section 20(a) within ten (10) days of demand for payment shall result in such amount being added to the Principal Amount under the Promissory Note.
- (b) Metuchen shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless VIVUS and each of VIVUS's Affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, members, managers, employees, attorneys, consultants, and agents from and against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, obligations, penalties, fines, fees, costs, and expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys' and paralegals' fees, costs and expenses, and fees, costs and expenses for investigations and experts) (collectively "Losses") incurred by such indemnitees, whether before or from and after the date hereof, arising from or relating to any suit, investigation, action, or proceeding by any Person, whether threatened or initiated, asserting a claim for any legal or equitable remedy against any Person under any statute, regulation, or common law principle, arising from or in connection with the Excluded Liabilities. The obligations of Metuchen under this paragraph shall survive the payment in full of this Agreement. Failure by Metuchen to pay VIVUS any amounts due under this Section 20(b) within ten (10) days of demand for payment shall result in such amount being added to the Principal Amount under the Promissory Note.

- 21. <u>Confidentiality</u>. Each Party will maintain the Confidential Information in accordance with Article 11 of the License Agreement. The Parties agree not to disclose any financial or otherwise commercially sensitive terms or conditions of this Agreement to any Third Party without the prior written consent of the other Party, except as required by Applicable Law or to the extent necessary in a dispute between the Parties (including between VIVUS and any Group Member). If either Party is required to disclose any financial term or condition of this Agreement due to the reporting obligations under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended or other legal obligation, then the Party seeking disclosure shall notify the other Party of such fact prior to any such disclosure and proceed to redact such provisions as the non-disclosing Party reasonably requests pursuant to a confidential treatment request order.
- 22. Cleansing. Notwithstanding anything, under any of the Settlement Documents or otherwise, the receipt of Confidential Information shall not in any way limit or restrict VIVUS or any of its affiliates, and does not constitute, and shall not be construed to create, a standstill or any other restriction whatsoever on the ability of VIVUS or any of its affiliates to (i) purchase or sell securities or other instruments, including those of a Group Member, (ii) purchase or sell any such companies substantially in their entirety (whether by merger, asset sale or otherwise), (iii) provide financing to any such companies or (iv) conduct similar activities in the ordinary course of VIVUS or any of its affiliates' businesses in the same manner as they are presently conducted. In the event that any Confidential Information disclosed to VIVUS constitutes material nonpublic information about Metuchen or any Group Member, within 5 days following the end of each quarterly fiscal period or any material breach or default or a Settlement Document, Petros shall file a document (the "Cleansing Document") containing such Confidential Information (or an appropriate summary thereof) (the "Disclosure Information") with the SEC, including appropriate exceptions for information disclosed to VIVUS's outside advisors and specifically designated as "non-cleansing" or "advisors' eyes only" information (or other similar designation) with VIVUS' prior written consent. As promptly as practicable, but in no event less than 48 hours before the filing of the Cleansing Document, Petros will provide VIVUS with a draft of the Cleansing Document and will consider in good faith any timely comments VIVUS has with respect to the Cleansing Document. In the event that Petros fails to timely file the required Cleansing Document or such Cleansing Document does not contain all of the Disclosure Information as determined by VIVUS based on the advice of its legal counsel, then Petros, on behalf of itself and any Group Member, agrees that VIVUS or its representatives (each an "Authorized Cleansing Party") shall be authorized to make available to the public at any time more than two (2) business days thereafter (and notwithstanding if this Agreement has been terminated) all the Disclosure Information not so disclosed by Petros in a single disclosure; provided that before any such disclosure such Authorized Cleansing Party shall (i) so long as (but only if) the Cleansing Document is delivered by Petros, notify Petros of its intent to disclose any such Disclosure Information within 48 hours after its receipt of the Cleansing Document and (ii) provide Petros with a draft of the documents VIVUS intends to use to publicly disclose such Disclosure Information at least 48 hours prior to any such disclosure. During such periods, such Authorized Cleansing Party and its legal counsel will make a reasonable effort to consult with Petros and its legal counsel regarding the content of any such disclosure and to consider in good faith any comments that Petros has with respect thereto (including, without limitation, as to whether Petros has previously disclosed all Disclosure Information). Petros agrees, on behalf of itself and each Group Member, that none of VIVUS or its affiliates, or any of their representatives, shall have any liability to any Group Member, or any of their representatives in connection with the disclosure of the Disclosure Information in accordance with the foregoing except in the case of an intentional misrepresentation. Petros shall agree to and acknowledge this section on behalf of itself and all of its present and future subsidiaries and affiliates.
- 23. <u>Entire Agreement</u>. This Agreement (including its Exhibits) and the other Settlement Documents represent the entire agreement of Metuchen and VIVUS with respect to the subject matter hereof, and there are no promises, undertakings, representations or warranties by VIVUS related to the subject matter hereof not expressly set forth or referred to herein or in the other Settlement Documents.

[signature pages follow]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed and delivered this Agreement on the date first above written.

METUCHEN:

METUCHEN PHARMACEUTICALS LLC

By:/s/ Fady Boctor

Name: Fady Boctor Title: Authorized Person

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT]

VIVUS:

VIVUS LLC

By:/s/ John Amos

Name: John Amos Title: Chief Executive Officer

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT]

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED AS TO SECTION 22:

Petros, on behalf of itself and its present and future subsidiaries and affiliates

By:/s/ Fady Boctor Name: Fady Boctor Title: President

Exhibit A

Promissory Note

Exhibit B

Security Agreement

EXHIBIT C

Amendment No. 1 to License Agreement

EXHIBIT D

API PO

The following shall constitute the terms of each API PO submitted by Metuchen for API in accordance with <u>Section 5</u> of the Agreement:

Certain information has been excluded pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item 601(b)(10)(iv) from this Document because it is both not material and is the type that the registrant treats as private or confidential.

PROMISSORY NOTE

\$10,201,758.04 January 18, 2022

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, METUCHEN PHARMACEUTICALS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Maker"), hereby executes this Promissory Note (this "Note") and hereby unconditionally promises to pay to the order of VIVUS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("VIVUS"; VIVUS, together with its successors and assigns, "Payee"), in accordance with the payment instructions set forth below, the principal sum of TEN MILLION TWO HUNDRED ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY-EIGHT AND 4/100 DOLLARS (\$10,201,758.04), plus interest thereon on the terms provided below.

Capitalized terms which are used, but not defined, herein shall have the meanings given such terms in that certain Settlement Agreement dated as of the date hereof by and among Maker and Vivus (as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time, the "Settlement Agreement").

- 1. <u>Payment of Principal</u>. Maker shall pay the principal amount of this Note in consecutive quarterly installments, each of which shall be due and payable on the "Installment Due Dates" set forth in <u>Schedule A</u>, attached hereto and made a part hereof, in the "Principal Amount" set forth each of such dates in <u>Schedule A</u> (each such installment due on an applicable date in an applicable amount, an "<u>Installment</u>"), with the first Installment due on the first date set forth in <u>Schedule A</u>. In any event, the outstanding principal amount of this Note shall be due and payable in full on January 1, 2027.
- 2. <u>Interest</u>. Interest shall accrue on the outstanding principal under this Note from the date hereof until all principal under shall have been repaid. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a year of 365/6 days based on the actual number of days elapsed. The interest rate under this Note is 6.00% per annum; provided, however, that, upon and at all times after the occurrence of any Event of Default (as defined below), the interest rate otherwise payable under this Note shall be increased by 3.00% per annum, automatically and without notice to any person or entity, to a total rate of 9.00% per annum, and such increased rate shall remain effective until the full and final payment of all principal and interest under this Note (regardless of whether any such Event of Default is waived or cured). All accrued and unpaid interest under this Note shall be due and payable, in arrears, on the first day of each January, April, July, and October of each calendar year, commencing with the first of such dates to occur after the date hereof.
- 3. Payments. If any day on which any payment is otherwise due and payable under this Note (whether principal, interest, or otherwise) is not a business day, then such payment shall be made on the immediately following business day (and interest shall accrue for each such day). All payments on this Note shall be applied, first, to all accrued and unpaid interest, next to all costs, fees, and expenses which are, at the time of such payment, due and payable, and, then, to principal. All payments on account of this Note (whether principal, interest, or otherwise) shall be payable in U.S. dollars, in immediately available funds, and in accordance with the following instructions (or such other instructions provided by Payee to Maker in a writing from time to time):

4. Occurrence of Event of Default. During the existence of any Event of Default, Payee may (in addition to all rights and remedies of Payee under applicable law or otherwise, all such rights and remedies being cumulative, not exclusive and enforceable alternatively, successively and concurrently), at its option, declare any or all amounts owing under this Note (whether principal, interest, or otherwise), to be due and payable, whereupon the same shall become immediately due and payable; provided, however, that upon the occurrence of any Event of Default of the kind described in Sections 9(e) or 9(f) of the Security Agreement (as defined below), the obligations of Maker hereunder shall automatically become and be due and payable in full, without notice of any kind.

As used herein, "Event of Default" has the meaning given such term in the Security Agreement.

- 5. <u>Prepayments</u>. Maker shall have a right to prepay all or any part of the principal of this Note before it is due and any such prepayment shall be without penalty or premium. All prepayments under this Note shall be applied, first, to any accrued and unpaid interest and, secondly, to the then-remaining principal Installments in the inverse order of the maturities thereof.
- 6. <u>Security for Payment</u>. The indebtedness evidenced by this Note is secured by that certain Security Agreement dated as of the date hereof, by Maker in favor of Payee (as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time, the "<u>Security Agreement</u>"), which creates legal and valid encumbrances on and an assignment of all of the Collateral (as defined in the Security Agreement).
- 7. <u>Legal Fees</u>. If this Note is placed in the hands of any attorney for collection, or if it is collected through any legal proceeding at law or in equity or in bankruptcy, receivership, or other court proceedings, Maker agrees to pay all costs of collection including, but not limited to, court costs and attorneys' fees.
- 8. <u>Waivers.</u> Maker, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby waives diligence, presentment, protest and demand and notice of protest, demand, dishonor and non-payment of this Note. No waiver by Payee of any of its rights or remedies hereunder or under any other document evidencing or securing this Note or otherwise shall be considered a waiver of any other subsequent right or remedy of Payee; no delay or omission in the exercise or enforcement by Payee of any rights or remedies shall ever be construed as a waiver of any right or remedy of Payee; and no exercise or enforcement of any such rights or remedies shall ever be held to exhaust any right or remedy of Payee.
- 9. <u>Choice of Law; Waiver of Jury Trial</u>. This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York. MAKER, BY EXECUTION HEREOF, AND PAYEE, BY ACCEPTANCE HEREOF, MUTUALLY AND WILLINGLY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY AND ALL CLAIMS MADE BETWEEN THEM WHETHER NOW EXISTING OR ARISING IN THE FUTURE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DEFENSES, COUNTERCLAIMS, CROSS CLAIMS, THIRD PARTY CLAIMS AND INTERVENOR'S CLAIMS WHETHER ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THE NEGOTIATION, EXECUTION AND PERFORMANCE OF THE TRANSACTIONS TO WHICH THIS NOTE RELATES.

- 10. Amendments. This Note may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed by Payee and Maker.
- 11. <u>Severability</u>. The unenforceability of any provision of this Note will not affect the enforceability or validity of any other provision herein.
- 12. <u>Continuing Obligations</u>. The obligations and liabilities of Maker under this Note shall be binding upon and enforceable against Maker and its successors and assigns. The representations, undertakings, and covenants made by the undersigned under this Note are, and shall be deemed to be, of continuing force and effect until all indebtedness and obligations of the undersigned under this Note have been fully and finally paid and performed.
- 13. <u>Authority</u>. Maker hereby represents and warrants to Payee that, by its execution below, Maker has the full power, authority, and legal right to execute and deliver this Note and that the indebtedness evidenced hereby constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Maker without exception or limitation.
- 14. <u>Successors-in-Interest; Assignment</u>. This Note binds and may be enforced against the successors-in-interest of Maker, except as otherwise provided. This Note shall inure to the benefit of and may be enforced by Payee and its successors and assigns. This Note may not be assigned by Maker without the prior written consent of Payee.
- 15. <u>Time is of the Essence</u>. Time is of the essence to all terms and provisions set forth herein.

[Continued on following page.]

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Promissory Note to be duly executed and delivered on the date first given above.

METUCHEN PHARMACEUTICALS LLC, as Maker

By:/s/ Fady Boctor Name: Fady Boctor Title: Authorized Person

VIVUS—METUCHEN PROMISSORY NOTE

SCHEDULE A

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Installment	Installment Due Date	Principal Amount
1	4/1/2022	\$176,973.63
2	7/1/2022	\$179,628.23
3	10/1/2022	\$182,322.66
4	1/1/2023	\$185,057.50
5	4/1/2023	\$357,833.36
6	7/1/2023	\$363,200.86
7	10/1/2023	\$368,648.87
8	1/1/2024	\$374,178.61
9	4/1/2024	\$379,791.29
10	7/1/2024	\$385,488.15
11	10/1/2024	\$391,270.48
12	1/1/2025	\$397,139.53
13	4/1/2025	\$763,096.63
14	7/1/2025	\$774,543.08
15	10/1/2025	\$786,161.22
16	1/1/2026	\$797,953.64
17	4/1/2026	\$809,922.95
18	7/1/2026	\$822,071.79
19	10/1/2026	\$834,402.87
20	1/1/2027	\$872,072.71

Certain information has been excluded pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item 601(b)(10)(iv) from this Document because it is both not material and is the type that the registrant treats as private or confidential.

AMENDMENT N_0 . 1 TO LICENSE AND COMMERCIALIZATION AGREEMENT

This Amendment No. 1 (this "Amendment") to the License and Commercialization Agreement dated as of September 30, 2016, is hereby entered into and effective as of January 18, 2022 (the "Amendment Effective Date") by and between VIVUS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, ("VIVUS"), and Metuchen Pharmaceuticals LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Metuchen"). VIVUS and Metuchen are sometimes referred to in this Amendment collectively as the "Parties" and individually as a "Party".

WHEREAS, VIVUS and Metuchen entered into the License and Commercialization Agreement dated September 30, 2016 (as amended, restated, amended and restated, supplemental or otherwise modified, the "License Agreement"), pursuant to which, among other things, in Section 2.1 of the License Agreement VIVUS granted to Metuchen an exclusive, royalty-bearing license to "(i) to use, distribute, import, Promote, market, sell, offer for sale, and otherwise Commercialize Products in the Field in the Licensee Territory; (ii) make and have made Products in the Manufacturing Territory, where such Product is solely for use or sale in the Field in the Licensee Territory (subject to Section 2.2), and (iii) to conduct certain Development activities on the Product in the Field pursuant to ARTICLE 4 solely in support of Regulatory Approval in the Licensee Territory";

WHEREAS, in connection with the settlement of certain amounts that Metuchen has agreed are due and payable by Metuchen to VIVUS under that certain Commercial Supply Agreement dated September 30, 2016 (as amended, restated, amended and restated, supplemental or otherwise modified, the "Supply Agreement"), by and between Metuchen and VIVUS and in connection with amounts [***] deducted by CVS Pharmacy ("CVS") of amounts owed to VIVUS from sale of VIVUS's product QSYMIA, (i) Metuchen and VIVUS have entered into a Settlement Agreement dated as of even date herewith ("Settlement Agreement"), (ii) Metuchen has executed a promissory note payable to the order of VIVUS, dated as of even date herewith (the "Promissory Note") and (iii) Metuchen has executed a security agreement to secure the obligations under the Promissory Note, dated as of even date herewith ("Security Agreement");

WHEREAS the Supply Agreement was terminated on September 30, 2021;

WHEREAS, under the Settlement Agreement, Metuchen has expressly agreed (among other things) that (i) VIVUS will retain co-exclusive rights to exercise the VIVUS Exploitation Rights (as defined in the Settlement Agreement) in the Licensee Territory, (ii) upon an Event of Default (as defined in the Security Agreement), the License Agreement will terminate, (iii) VIVUS will have and maintain such rights to use all Metuchen regulatory documentation, rights of reference to all regulatory submissions to Regulatory Authorities and other rights as may be necessary or appropriate in VIVUS' discretion in order to enable VIVUS to immediately commence the exercise of the VIVUS Exploitation Rights; and (iv) Metuchen will agree and stipulate (A) that VIVUS is the sole and exclusive owner of all of the API unless or until such time that certain quantities of API are shipped to Metuchen against payments made under the Promissory Note in accordance with Section 7 of the Settlement Agreement, and (B) VIVUS' exercise of the VIVUS Exploitation Rights will not be subject to the automatic stay, any need for a court order (including that of a bankruptcy court) or in any way impact property of a Metuchen bankruptcy estate upon the occurrence of an Event of Default;

WHEREAS, as a condition to acceptance of the Settlement Agreement, the Promissory Note and Security Agreement by VIVUS, the Parties have agreed to amend the License Agreement as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the agreements contained herein, Metuchen and VIVUS hereby agree as follows:

- 1. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Amendment shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the License Agreement.
- 2. The Article 1 of the License Agreement is hereby amended to add the following definition:

"VIVUS Exploitation Rights" means VIVUS' right to Develop, Commercialize (as such terms are defined in the License Agreement), make and have made and otherwise exploit the Product in the Licensee Territory (as such terms are defined in the License Agreement), as to each, without limitation.

The Article 1 of the License Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

The last sentence of the defined term "Financing Entity" shall be amended to insert (x) the underlined text that follows "(i) ... are <u>not</u> Financing Entities" and "(ii) ... are <u>not</u> Financing Documents" as the Hercules Loan Agreements and the "Agent" and "Lenders" have been irrevocably satisfied in full and the Hercules Loan Agreements (including the letter agreement dated September 30, 2016 between VIVUS and Hercules Capital, Inc.) have been terminated without further obligation or liability, and (y) just prior to the last sentence, the following: "The Parties acknowledge that the note, security agreement and ancillary or related documents entered into on January 18, 2022 by Metuchen and VIVUS (and as amended from time to time) constitute Financing Documents and that VIVUS is a Financing Entity in its capacity as countersignatory to those documents.

- 3. The License Agreement is hereby amended to delete Section 2.1 and replace it with a new Section 2.1 as follows:
- License to Licensee. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement (including VIVUS' retained rights as set forth in Section 2.4), VIVUS hereby grants to Licensee a co-exclusive, royalty-bearing (subject in all respects to Section 7.2), sublicensable (subject to ARTICLE 6) license under the VIVUS Technology, (i) to use, distribute, import, Promote, market, sell, offer for sale, and otherwise Commercialize Products in the Field in the Licensee Territory; (ii) make and have made Products in the Manufacturing Territory, where such Product is solely for use or sale in the Field in the Licensee Territory (subject to Section 2.2), and (iii) to conduct certain Development activities on the Product in the Field pursuant to ARTICLE 4 solely in support of Regulatory Approval in the Licensee Territory and solely in accordance with the terms of this Agreement (collectively, the "License").

- 4. The License Agreement is hereby amended to delete Section 2.3 and replace it with a new Section 2.3 as follows:
- License to VIVUS. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Licensee hereby grants to VIVUS (a) a non-exclusive, royalty-free, sublicensable (subject to ARTICLE 6) license under the Licensee Technology, Regulatory Materials (including rights of reference to all of Licensee's submissions to Regulatory Authorities) and Promotional Materials (i) to the extent necessary or desirable to fulfill obligations under this Agreement, including manufacturing and supply obligations under ARTICLE 6 and (ii) to conduct research, Development, Commercialization and manufacturing activities in the Licensee Territory; (b) an exclusive, royalty-free, sublicensable (subject to ARTICLE 6) license under the Licensee Technology, Regulatory Materials (including rights of reference to all of Licensee's submissions to Regulatory Authorities) and Promotional Materials to conduct research, Development, Commercialization and manufacturing activities of Products in the VIVUS Territory; and (c) a non-exclusive, royalty-free, sublicensable (subject to ARTICLE 6) license under the Licensee Technology, Regulatory Materials (including rights of reference to all of Licensee's submissions to Regulatory Authorities) and Promotional Materials to otherwise exercise the VIVUS Exploitation Rights (collectively, the "VIVUS License").
- 5. The License Agreement is hereby amended to delete Section 2.4 and replace it with a new Section 2.4 as follows:

2.4 VIVUS Retained Rights.

- (a) Notwithstanding the rights granted to Licensee under the License, VIVUS retains its rights under the VIVUS Technology within the Field in the Licensee Territory, and retains all rights to conduct Development, Commercialization, manufacturing and all other activities associated with exercise of the VIVUS Exploitation Rights within the Licensee Territory, including all rights as may be necessary or desirable to exercise in connection with the Regulatory Approval, Pricing Approval, or Commercialization of the Product in the Licensee Territory and in the VIVUS Territory (including the right to grant licenses to Affiliates or Third Parties with respect to such activities). VIVUS retains all rights to the VIVUS Technology outside the Field.
- (b) Licensee acknowledges and agrees that VIVUS' co-exclusive rights as stated in Section 2.1 and its retained rights as set forth in Section 2.4(a) above enable VIVUS, at any time, to exercise the VIVUS Exploitation Rights, without restriction within the Licensee Territory; provided however, that unless or until an Event of Default occurs, VIVUS agrees to forbear from exercising the VIVUS Exploitation Rights in the Licensee Territory; provided further however, that upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Metuchen shall not have, and waives, any and all rights and defenses under the License Agreement, the Settlement Agreement, the Promissory Note, the Security Agreement or otherwise at law or in equity to challenge, delay, restrict, impede, or otherwise interfere with VIVUS' immediate and automatic right to exercise any or all of the VIVUS Exploitation Rights and any other rights retained by VIVUS. Neither Licensee nor any of its sublicensees shall (or seek to) challenge, delay, restrict, impede, or otherwise interfere with VIVUS's retained rights and any such action by Licensee or any of its sublicensees shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and VIVUS may immediately terminate this Agreement.

- 6. The License Agreement is hereby amended to delete Section 12.2(a) and replace it with a new Section 12.2(a) as follows:
- Material Breach. Metuchen shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, upon written notice to VIVUS if VIVUS, after receiving written notice from Metuchen identifying a material breach by VIVUS of its obligations under this Agreement, fails to cure (or if not curable within such time period, adopt a plan for cure during such time period) such material breach within [***] from the date of such notice (or, in the case of payment obligations, [***] from the date of such notice); provided, however, that in the event the VIVUS contests any such asserted breach in good faith and diligently pursues the dispute resolution procedures set forth in ARTICLE 13, such [***] cure period shall be tolled or suspended until the final resolution of such dispute pursuant to the terms of, and in accordance with, the terms and provisions of ARTICLE 13, subject to any exercise by MTPC of its right of termination of the MTPC Agreement due to any material breach of the provisions or conditions of the MTPC Agreement by VIVUS arising from the facts or circumstances that resulted in the material breach by VIVUS hereunder. For the avoidance of doubt (and without limiting VIVUS' remedies for any other breaches by Licensee's failure to pay the amounts set forth in Section 7.1 by the deadlines set forth therein shall each be deemed to be a material breach of this Agreement.
- 7. The License Agreement is hereby amended to add a new Section 12.2(e) as follows:
- (e) VIVUS Termination of License Upon Event of Default. Licensee is the maker of that certain Promissory Note dated as of January 18, 2022, payable to the order of VIVUS (the "Promissory Note"), which Promissory Note is secured under the terms of that certain Security Agreement by and between Licensee and VIVUS dated January 18, 2022 (the "Security Agreement"). VIVUS and Licensee agree that, in the event of (i) any Event of Default (as defined in the Security Agreement) or (ii) material breach of this Agreement by Metuchen, this Agreement shall terminate.
- 8. Section 14.5 of the License Agreement is amended to insert the following underlined text in the second line thereof: "... except that, subject in each instance to the terms of the Financing Documents entered into with VIVUS as Financing Party and compliance therewith, (a) ..."
- 9. Section 14.8 of the License agreement is amended to replace the words "Hercules Capital, Inc." with "VIVUS as Financing Party."
- 10. **Further Assurances and Inconsistencies**. Licensee acknowledges and agrees that this Amendment is intended to fully vest in VIVUS all of the necessary rights and privileges to practice and exploit the VIVUS Technology and to Develop, manufacture, have manufactured and otherwise Commercialize the Product in the Licensee Territory at such time and in such manner as VIVUS may determine. To the extent that VIVUS deems the execution of any agreement, further amendment to the License Agreement or such other document or any action (including with respect to FDA or any other Regulatory Authority), omission or otherwise as VIVUS may determine as necessary or appropriate in its sole discretion, Metuchen will and will cause any sublicensee or subcontractor to execute such document or perform such action, omission or otherwise in a prompt and timely manner. Any failure of Metuchen or any sublicensee or subcontractor to execute such documents or perform such further action, omission or otherwise in a prompt and timely manner as requested by VIVUS shall constitute a material breach of the License Agreement and VIVUS may immediately terminate the License Agreement.

- 11. The License Agreement is amended as set forth in this Amendment as of the Amendment Effective Date. To the extent that the License Agreement is in any way inconsistent with the terms of this Amendment, this Amendment shall control and such inconsistent provisions shall be revised to fulfill the agreements set forth in this Amendment. To the extent that the License Agreement, as amended by this Amendment, is in any way inconsistent with the terms of the Financing Documents entered into with VIVUS as Financing Party, such Financing Documents shall control and such inconsistent provisions shall be revised to fulfill the agreements set forth in the Financing Documents entered into with VIVUS as Financing Party.
- 12. The defined terms "VIVUS" and "Party" or "Parties" in the License Agreement or this Amendment shall not include VIVUS in its capacity as Financing Party unless expressly provided for therein absent notice from VIVUS provided after the Amendment Effective Date.
- 13. Except as specifically provided for in this Amendment (including the resolution of any conflicts between this Amendment and the terms of the License Agreement in favor of the terms of this Amendment), all of the terms and conditions of the License Agreement shall remain in full force and effect as legally binding obligations of the Parties enforceable in accordance with their terms. Metuchen and VIVUS hereby ratify and confirm their respective obligations under the Agreement, as modified pursuant to this Amendment.
- 14. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. All signatures need not be on the same counterpart.

[signature page follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed or caused this Amendment to be executed as of the Amendment Effective Date.

VIVUS, LLC	METUCHEN PHARMACEUTICALS LLC
BY:/s/ John Amos	BY:/s/ Fady Boctor
NAME: John Amos	NAME: Fady Boctor
TITLE: Chief Executive Officer	TITLE: Authorized Person
[Amendment to License and	Commercialization Agreement]
	6



Stendra Tablets

patheon

Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC

Revision History

Proposal Number	Date Issued	Key Revisions
C-CRC-286511-R0	November 11, 2021	First Issue
C-CRC-286511-R1	November 24, 2021	 Made Validation stability optional Made Bulk Hold Time Study included in project Updated validation costs
C-CRC-286511-R2	January 7, 2022	Updated T&C's/Signature BoxUpdated Budget Summary
C-CRC-286511-R3	January 13, 2022	- Updated T&C's/Signature Box

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 2 of 31

Contents

Part A: Project Overview	4
1.Executive Summary of the Opportunity	4
2.Proposed Site – Cincinnati Operations	5
3.Product Features and Assumptions	6
4.Key Assumptions to be Finalized	7
Part B: Budget Summary	8
1.Pricing	8
2.Costs Included in Grand Total	12
3.Costs Not Included in Grand Total (Non-Exhaustive)	12
4.Key Pricing Requisites:	13
5.Capital Requirements	13
Part C: Technology Transfer & Feasibility Activities	14
1.Project Start Up	14
2.Analytical Services	15
3.Microbiology	15
4.Feasibility Batch Manufacturing	16
5.Comparative Dissolution	16
6.Packaging Line Trial Bottles - Optional	16
7.Bulk Hold Time Study	16
8.Stability – Bulk Hold Optional	17
9. Validation Services	18
10.Stability – Validation (Optional)	19
11.Regulatory Management	20
Part D: Key Technical Parameters	21
1.Manufacturing Parameters	21
2.Packaging Parameters	23
3.Testing Conditions	23
4.Supply Chain	24
Part E: Legal Terms and Conditions	25
Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022	Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets
Confidential	Page 3 of 31

Part A: Project Overview

1. Executive Summary of the Opportunity

Patheon, part of Thermo Fisher Scientific ("Patheon"), values the opportunity to collaborate with Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC ("Metuchen") as a strategic partner for the manufacturing and packaging of Stendra Tablets. Patheon strives to meet key project milestones such as, the successful technology transfer and subsequent support for commercial manufacturing and packaging.

Certain details of this project require clarification between the parties and therefore a number of assumptions have been made based on Patheon's best estimates. Patheon would be pleased to discuss this opportunity further and breakout the activities into executable phases for the convenience of Metuchen. Commercial supply activities and prices are presented in the Commercial Pricing Proposal C-CRC-286512-R0 (or latest revision).

Patheon will be responsible for the following core services:

- 1.1 Supply of raw materials and packaging components, with the exception of the Drug Substance ("DS"), which is to be furnished by Metuchen.
- 1.2 Technology transfer activities per Part B: Budget Summary.
- 1.3 API identification test and all QC testing requirements for raw materials, packaging components and finished product.

This Project Proposal and the Legal Terms and Conditions herein represent the full agreement regarding the subject matter between the parties identified below (the "Contract"). The Contract describes the Services to be performed by Patheon in accordance with the Legal Terms and Conditions of the Contract. In the event of a conflict between this Project Proposal and the Legal Terms and Conditions the Legal Terms and Conditions shall control. Unless earlier terminated in accordance with the Contract, the term of the Contract is from the Effective Date until completion by Patheon of these Services.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 4 of 31

2. Proposed Site - Cincinnati Operations



Patheon's Cincinnati Operations, Ohio USA, offers both commercial manufacturing and fully integrated pharmaceutical development services (PDS). Cincinnati Operations also serves as a Center of Excellence for controlled and sustained release solid oral dosage forms. Development scale soft and hard gel capsules, osmotic release dosage forms, multi-layer tablets, active coating, hot melt extrusion and pelletization are among the dosage forms and technologies offered at the site.

Cincinnati Operations has been registered with the US DEA for more than 30 years. With US DEA manufacturing registrations (schedule II to V), analytical registrations (schedule I to V), and

distribution registrations (schedule III to V), the facility is equipped to fully accommodate controlled drug product requirements.

Site Regulatory History

Date of Inspection	Regulatory Authority	Inspection Type
Mar-2021	Russian	PAI
Jan-2021	Russian MIT	PAI
Mar-2020	Health Canada	PAI + General GMP
Feb-2020	Russian MIT	Product Renewal
Jan-2020	US FDA	PAI + General GMP
Dec-2019	US FDA	PAI
Feb-2019	US FDA	PAI
Jul-2018	Russian Inspection	PAI
Feb-2018	FDA (US)	General GMP and PAI
Sep-2017	ANVISA (Brazil)	General GMP
May-2017	FDA (US)	Follow-Up Inspection
Mar-2017	Russian Authority	General GMP
Feb-2017	US FDA	Follow-Up Inspection
Dec-2016	German Inspectorate	PAI
Mar-2016	FDA (US)	PAI and GMP
Mar-2016	ANVISA (Brazil)	PAI and GMP
Aug-2015	FDA (US)	PAI
Jan-2015	EMA (Germany)	PAI and GMP

3. Product Features and Assumptions

3.1 API: Avanafil

- Indication: Erectile Dysfunction
- Patheon's preliminary categorisation: Category 2
- Pending Patheon's receipt and review of the mechanism of action, therapeutic indication and therapeutic dose, and receipt of the Investigator's Brochure or Toxicity Summaries for the API, then it is assumed for the purposes of this project proposal that Patheon can handle the API from a current capability, safety and licensing perspectives.

3.2 Key product parameter overview:

Product	Strength	Solid Form	Packaging Configuration				
Stendra Tablets	50mg, 100mg, 200mg	Tablet	Bulk, Optional 30ct Bottle				

3.3 Territories – U.S.A.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 6 of 31

4. Key Assumptions to be Finalized:

Certain details of this project require clarification between the parties and therefore a number of assumptions have been made at this point in time. The following key estimations will be discussed and agreed between the parties either during the technology transfer project phase. All technical parameters will be confirmed during the validation phase.

Assumption	Justification/Action
An optimum batch size for the manufacturing area/ equipment has been proposed.	To maximize efficiency and reduce cost.
The standard Patheon hold times are suitable for the batch size proposed. Batch size to be further evaluated during the feasibility activities and confirmed on completion of the process validation phase.	Further details on the stability data and hold times for the finished product should be provided by Metuchen.
Defect characteristics and AQL limits are according to Patheon Standard Protocols and within the visual inspection equipment's capability.	AQL limits to agreed and defined during the technology transfer phase.
Patheon's standard hours for testing have been considered.	Testing costs for raw materials, packaging components and finished product are based on Patheon's best estimates. Testing labour may be subject to change after agreement on testing methods and specifications.
The number of PV batches to be manufactured to qualify the process is 3.	The number of PV batches required has been estimated based on Patheon's standard approach. Number of PV batches and scope of validation can change based on risk assessment. A process validation strategy should be provided by Metuchen.
The number of feasibility and process validation batches required has been estimated based on Patheon's standard approach.	The number of feasibility and process validation batches required is to be agreed between the parties.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 7 of 31

Part B: Budget Summary

1. Pricing

HE FOLLOWING CO	STS ARE ALL QUOTED IN: U	USD					
	910.1112.1122.400.122.1111						
ACTIVITY					P		
Project Start-Up				\$			
ACTIVITY					P		
Cleaning Residuals	Assay (Multiple Surfaces Deve	elopment and Validation)		\$	3		
Drug Substance Ide	entification by IR (Method Eval	luation and Method Transfer)		\$			
Drug Substance Pot	ency and Related Substances A	Assay by HPLC (Method Evaluation and Transfer)		\$	1		
Product Content Ur	niformity Assay (Method Evalu	nation and Method Transfer)		\$	1		
IR - Product Dissolu	ation Assay by HPLC - (Metho	d Evaluation and Method Transfer)		\$	1		
Karl Fischer (Meth	od Evaluation and Method Tra	unsfer)		\$			
Specification Gener	ation (Assumed 3 Specification	is)		\$			
Total				\$	9		
IICROBIOLOGY					US		
ACTIVITY			ACTIVITY PRICE		PI		
Preparation			\$ 1,224				
Protocol			\$ 204				
No. of Trials	No. of Materials	Pharmacopeia					
One Trial	3	1 \$ 6,924					
Two Trials	3	1 \$ 10,386					
Three Trials	3	1 \$ 13,848	\$ 17,310				
Four Trials SUB TOTAL (Num	3 ber of Trials Assumed = 4 Tria	1 (als)	¥ 17901U	\$	1		
Total	7 111	y		s	1		
Iotai				J	,		
			ACTIVITY				
ACTIVITY			PRICE	Pl	RIC		
Protocols	(Assumes 1 protoc	col(s))		\$			
	Manufacturing And Analytical \$ 92,567						
Manufacturing And	Analytical		\$ 92,567				

Back to Back Batch Manufacturing and 92,567 Analytical Total Per Batch 92,567 2 Back to Back Batch TOTAL 185,134 7,824 **Manufacturing Report** (Assumes 1 report(s)) Total 288,785 Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC January 13, 2022 Stendra Tablets

Page 8 of 31

Confidential

COMPARITIVE DISSOLUTION USD

ACTIVITY

Number of Lots 3
Total Samples 27

Protocol Generation \$ 4,708

Pullpoint Months	50mg Tablets	100mg Tablets	200mg Tablets	Microbiology _{AET}	Samples per pullpoint	Cost per pullpoint (Activity price)
C1	X	X	X		9	\$ 135
C2	X	X	X		9	\$ 135
C3	X	X	X		9	\$ 135
		Summary Report Go	eneration			\$ 4,066

Total \$ 9,179

PACKAGING LINE TRIAL-BOTTLES USD

ACTIVITY ACTIVITY PRICE PRICE Protocols (Assumes 1 protocol(s)) 1,630 Bottle Packaging Line Trial, 3 SKU's \$ 26,607 Total Per Batch \$ 26,607 1 Batch TOTAL \$ 26,607 Report 3,912 (Assumes 1 report(s)) \$

Total Optional, not included in the Budget Total: \$ 5,363

BULK HOLD TIME STUDY USD

ACTIVITY

Number of Lots 2
Total Samples 12

Protocol Generation \$ 3,745

Pullpoint Days	Blend	Core	Microbiology	AET	Samples per pullpoint	(Cost per pullpoint Activity Price)
0 (Initial)	X				2	\$	3,422
T = 15	X				2	\$	3,542
T = 30	X		М		2	\$	4,308
0 (Initial)		X			2	\$	3,422
T = 15		X			2	\$	3,542
T = 30		X	М		2	\$	4,308

Summary Report Generation \$ 3,531

Total \$ 29,820

STABILITY - BULK HOLD USD

PRICE

Number of Lots 2
Total Samples 22

Protocol Generation \$ 3,745

Pullpoint Months	40C / 75% RH	30C / 65% RH	25C / 60% RH	Microbiology AI	Samples per pullpoint	Cost per pullpoint (Activity Price)
0 (Initial)	R	R				\$ 0
T = 1	X	С			2	\$ 3,636
T = 2	X	С			2	\$ 3,836
T = 3	X	С	X		4	\$ 5,933
T = 6	X	С	X		4	\$ 6,833
T = 9		С	X		2	\$ 5,236
T = 12		С	X	M	2	\$ 6,482
T = 18			X		2	\$ 5,222
T = 24			X	М	2	\$ 6,468
T = 36			X	М	2	\$ 7,668
	ъ .					

Summary Report \$ 3,531 Generation

Total

Optional cost, not included in the Budget Total: \$58,590

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 9 of 31

ACTIVITY	PRICE
Continued Process Verification (CPV) Program Start-up	\$ 35,000
Cleaning Validation Assessment	\$ 3,313
Master Validation Plan	\$ 4,821
Process Validation (3 Strengths)	\$ 40,042
Equipment Cleaning Validation	\$ 42,439
Total	\$ 125,615

ACTIVITY

Number of Lots 9
Total Samples 99

Protocol Generation \$ 10,486

Pullpoint Months	40C / 75% RH	30C / 65% RH	25C / 60% rh	Microbiology AET	Samples per pullpoint	ost per pullpoint (Activity Price)
0 (Initial)	R	R				\$ 0
T = 1	X	С			9	\$ 9,994
T = 2	X	С			9	\$ 10,714
T = 3	X	С	X		18	\$ 20,270
T = 6	X	С	X		18	\$ 23,510
T = 9		С	X		9	\$ 15,754
T = 12		С	X	M	9	\$ 20,856
T = 18			X		9	\$ 15,754
T = 24			X	M	9	\$ 20,856
T = 36			X	M	9	\$ 25,176
	Summary R	eport				

Summary Report
Generation \$ 7,276

Total Optional cost, not included in the Budget Total: \$ 180,646

AC	CTIVITY		AC	TIVITY PRICE	Ξ	PRICE
50mg Tablets Bu	ulk					
	Manufacturing and Bulk Packaging	Total Per Batch	\$	44,600		
	rackaging	3 Batch TOTAL	\$	133,800	_	
					\$	133,800
100mg Tablets E	Bulk					
	Manufacturing and Bulk Packaging	Total Per Batch	\$	100,500	_	
	Tuckuging	3 Batch TOTAL	\$	301,500		
200mg Tablets F	Bulk				\$	301,500
	Manufacturing and Bulk	Total Per Batch	\$	103,800		
	Packaging	3 Batch TOTAL	\$	311,400		

\$

311,400

Total \$ 746,700

VALIDATION SERVICES - SUB TOTAL	USD \$	590,011
VALIDATION BATCHES - SUB TOTAL	USD \$	746,700
GRAND TOTAL	USD \$	1,336,711
Optional Items are not included in the Budget Total	USD \$	324,599

^{**}Please note that Patheon reserves the right to check Client's creditworthiness and request additional advance payments or additional financial documentation prior to commencement of any Services.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3	Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC
January 13, 2022	Stendra Tablets
Confidential	Page 10 of 31

STANDARD SHIPMENT SUPPORT

Standard Shipment Support Fee (applies to all shipments originating from a Patheon facility)

\$850.00 Per Shipment

Patheon will provide support to Client in preparing the shipment of project material (non-cGMP and cGMP material) for the fixed fee per shipment stated above ("Standard Shipment Support Fee"). The Standard Shipment Support Fee provides for the following Patheon services ("Standard Shipment Support Services"):

- Preparation of internal documentation to support shipment dispatch (e.g. commercial invoice)
 - Assembly of the shipment
 - Tender shipment to selected courier

For budget purposes, a Standard Shipment Support Fee will be applied for each planned shipment whether electing Courier Management through Total Transportation Management or Client Managed Shipping (Client Carrier) as more fully described in the **Shipping Options** below.

SHIPPING OPTIONS							
Service Selection	Description						
(A) Courier Management through Total Transportation Management ("TTM")	TTM is a service whereby Patheon will manage the couriers for all shipments and lanes, such selection being based on data relating to courier performance across all shipments executed across the Patheon logistics network. The TTM fees will be based on actual shipment characteristics and provides for the following services:						
	 Patheon will select the courier from a broad array of vendors managed and qualified through TTM's quality management system Patheon will coordinate the dispatch of the shipment with selected carrier Patheon will support the facilitation and coordination of necessary documentation as required by a receiving country, including the generation and creation of such documents All shipments will be tracked and traced via the Global Logistics Help Desk from origin to final destination Patheon will assist with the resolution of shipment issues arising during transit and will escalate such issues to the Client in accordance when necessary The TTM fees will be quoted at the time of shipment in a TTM Freight Quote. Client will be responsible for any charges with respect to services that were not contemplated in this quote including, but not limited to, charges for supplementary services such as detention or demurrage. The Terms and Conditions specified in the applicable TTM Freight Quote issued at the time of shipment will apply.						
(B) Client Managed Shipping (Client Carrier)	Client will select the couriers for all shipments and lanes and manage the shipment from origin to destination. All Client carriers will bill any and all freight charges and other costs associated with all Client shipments directly to Client using the Client's account number(s), and Client shall be solely responsible for the payment of all such charges and other costs.						

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Confidential Page 11 of 31

2. Costs Included in Grand Total

- 2.1 Product manufactured, tested and packaged according to the processing instructions.
- 2.2 Estimated material costs. Material costs included in this proposal are best estimates based on Patheon's current standards and specifications and do not include any extraordinary or custom raw materials. Final material costs will be provided after confirmation of Specifications and formal quotations have been received from the suppliers.
- 2.3 Procurement, storage, inventory control and QC testing of all required raw materials & packaging materials to complete the Services.
- 2.4 Qualification and auditing of all Common Materials and Supplies suppliers.
- 2.5 Batch record copies for validation batches.
- 2.6 Validation Batches and Validation Batch Stability testing.
- 2.7 API identity test according to Patheon standard incoming process. If Client stipulates a vendor, Client will audit and approve the vendor and ensure cGMP compliance. If Patheon is to release an API or other Client stipulated material based on "ID only", Client will ensure the required verification testing by an independent laboratory has been completed.
- 2.8 First Product Approval Inspection ("PAI") and copy of FDA Report. Additional PAI support will be subject to additional fees.

3. Costs Not Included in Grand Total (Non-Exhaustive)

- 3.1 Items listed as "Optional" in the Budget Summary
- 3.2 DS, Client supplied materials and reference standards to be supplied by Client at no cost to Patheon. Reference standards are an Exclusive Item.
- 3.3 Ongoing annual stability testing program is not included. Patheon can store and test in accordance with an agreed protocol and ICH guidelines.
- 3.4 Any additional data or report requested by Client beyond the scope of cGMPs and customary FDA or other regulatory agencies requirements will be subject to an additional fee to be agreed upon between Patheon and Client.
- 3.5 Any specific visual inspection of the bulk or of the finished products outside of standard release testing.
- 3.6 Regulatory support (such as preparation of Annual Report and Chemistry, Manufacturing, and Controls ("CMC") files). Regulatory support work is subject to an additional fee see section 11 below for additional details.
- 3.7 Label copy change and batch record changes initiated by Client.
- 3.8 Artworks origination and update costs including one off costs at suppliers.
- 3.9 Testing required to support OOS results or stability failures, testing required in support of complaint investigations and testing of Products that are not related to Patheon's performance.

January 13, 2022
Confidential
Stendra Tablets
Page 12 of 31

3.10 Testing does not include Stage II testing. If Stage II testing is needed, it will be covered under a COS (change of scope).

4. Key Pricing Requisites:

- 4.1 All stated Values / Invoices are in USD (\$).
- 4.2 The Budget in Part B, Section 1, is based on the assumptions set out in this Project Proposal. Should any of the assumptions prove to be incorrect, Patheon reserves the right to amend the Budget Summary.
- 4.3 Technology Transfer activities to be invoiced on submission of (as applicable):
- First draft of associated deliverable (e.g. protocol, report, or other executed documentation)
- Patheon Batch Certificate of Analysis or executed documentation as applicable
- For stability studies, invoice will be raised:
 - Upon Batch issuance of the protocol first draft
 - Upon issuance of the analytical data sheet after every intermediate time point,
- Or completion of activity if no deliverable is identified
- 4.4 Additional services will be agreed under a Change of Scope Agreement.
- 4.5 The fee for project management is incorporated in the breakdown cost for each activity in the Budget Summary.

5. Capital Requirements

Dedicated equipment, tooling, and change parts will be required to be sourced and purchased at the sole expense of Metuchen to support the manufacture of Stendra Tablets at Patheon. Client will be responsible for the dedicated part requirements listed in this Capital Requirements section. Capital estimates are subject to change pending design of the manufacturing process and would be confirmed at the time of placing an order.

Dedicated Part Requirements - Customer Funded- Patheon Owned	Quantity	Unit cost	Total
Visual Inspection	3	\$10,000	\$30,000
Compression Tooling	3	\$25,000	\$75,000
Screens	1	\$10,000	\$10,000
Contingency			\$11,500
Engineering Support			\$17,250
Total - Dedicated Part Requirements - Customer Funded - Part Requirement - Customer Funded - Customer Fun	atheon Owned		\$143,750

Prior to expending the capital expenditures, Metuchen will provide confirmation to Patheon to proceed with the purchase of the capital expenditures. Patheon will order the necessary equipment and provide invoices to Metuchen for the costs of the equipment

Part C: Technology Transfer & Feasibility Activities

1. Project Start Up

- Scientific review of technical documentation, literature review in preparation for project implementation.
- Technical Risk Assessment: Patheon will perform a technical risk assessment based on the key technical parameters, listed in Part D, relating to the manufacturing process for Stendra Tablets. Patheon will perform the specific activities/items as follows:
 - o Identify and assess the criticalities of the project
 - o Perform GAP analysis
 - Identify possible solutions
 - Recommend any action/actions to alleviate any identified criticalities
- Project team set up: scheduling and attendance of cross functional team meeting with for project kick off.
- Creation of detailed project plan with established timelines.
- Environmental Health and Safety ("EH&S") assessment: EH&S safety categorisation for the API, Safe System of Work report, training of Patheon staff and documentation support for receipt of Metuchen materials.
 - o Project/Operational Documentation
 - Business and project management
 - Technology transfer protocols and subsequent reports.
 - o Bill of materials (BOM)
 - Master Batch Records (MBR)
 - Components specifications
 - o API and excipient specification
 - Product specifications
 - Change Control Documents
 - Standard Operating Procedures (SOP)
 - Quality Agreement
 - Validation Master Plan (VMP)

A full compliance check of all existing manufacturing equipment/utilities involved in the manufacturing process used for each product will be performed to ensure qualification and compliance. Preparations and review of protocols and reports associated with all the planned qualification/validation activities are included.

Active Blend - Combustible Dust Data & Industrial Hygiene

- MIE (Minimum Ignition Energy) and Kst Data for active blend will be required if batch sizes greater than 15kg is planned. If data is unavailable, Patheon can contract third party services to obtain. An approximate 500-600g sample of the active blend will be required for testing. Cost is approximately \$3,500 USD for both tests and will be billed back to client. Tests will take approximately 2-3 weeks to complete.
- An air sampling (industrial hygiene) method for the API will be required to be provided by the client upon commercialization. If no method is available, Patheon can contract third party services to obtain. An active ingredient sample will be required for method development. The cost is approximately

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 14 of 31 \$15,000 to \$16,000 USD per Industrial Hygiene Method and will be billed back to client. Method development will take approximately 2-3 weeks to complete.

2. Analytical Services

For each specific analytical method to be transferred, a protocol with pre-defined acceptance criteria will be prepared and agreed with Metuchen, and only upon the successful completion and approval of the associated protocol and report, the method will be deemed successfully transferred. Successful completion means that Patheon's test results must be within the acceptance criteria range of Metuchen QC laboratory test results.

Cleaning residuals assay method validation is based on a single surface. If multiple surfaces
validation is required, additional bench hours may be necessary and changes to the price will be
covered by a Change of Scope Agreement.

It is assumed that a validated cleaning test method is not available and will be developed and validated by Patheon. It is assumed that full cleaning occurs after each campaign OR batch (where applicable).

Patheon will verify the cleaning process when scaling up to the commercial batch size. Protocol, report and execution activities are included.

Analytical Services							
Method Validation	Method Evaluation and Method Transfer						
Cleaning Residuals Assay	API by IR						
	Potency and Related Substances						
	Content Uniformity						
	Dissolution						
	Karl Fischer						

3. Microbiology

Patheon will validate Microbiological USP/EP test methods required Microbial Limit Tests (MLT) as part of the release and stability testing requirements for cGMP batches. Pricing includes preparation of the appropriate documents to initiate verification, and a summary report upon completion of the suitability study for Client review.

Patheon will perform verification of microbial recovery from pharmacopoeial articles following USP<1227> guideline and USP Harmonized methods (USP<61> and <62>) on Stendra Tablets. A harmonized specification based on USP<1111> will be suggested to meet USP/EP/JP acceptance criteria for pharmaceutical preparations and substances for pharmaceutical use. The verified methods will cover USP, EP and JP compendia for Microbiological Examination of Non-Sterile Products and Antimicrobial Effectiveness Testing (AET).

Each formulation and non proportional dose strength should be verified unless there is justification for matrixing. Adequate trials will be performed with different dilutions targeted to establish recovery. The cost shown applies to three formulations and strengths and four trials. If required, additional costs will be covered by a Change of Scope Agreement.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 15 of 31

4. Feasibility Batch Manufacturing

R0 Standard approach is to present pricing for 1 manufacturing feasibility batch for each of the three strengths for representative pricing purposes. Patheon will confirm scope with the Client for approval before finalizing the proposal. Manufacture of three feasibility batches would be performed to implement and verify the full operational process. Activities include: Documentation preparation including batch records, protocol generation, execution, QC testing, QA review and manufacturing report.

Upon completion of QA review, recommendations will be made to proceed to process validation/pre-validation or to re-evaluate critical processing requirements, experimentation, equipment train, etc. in an additional feasibility batch.

Pricing is for 3 feasibility batches for the entire project. Patheon will finalize strategy with customer before final approval.

5. Comparative Dissolution

Study to be agreed upon before execution to demonstrate the equivalence between the existing Product manufacture by Bayer and the product manufactured by Patheon a Comparative dissolution study will be performed. The study will be performed on the feasibility batches, prepared by Patheon. Dissolution profile (3 time points, n=12) in 3 different media will be done for each.

6. Packaging Line Trial Bottles - Optional

Packaging line trial performed for 3 SKU's. Price is representative of 3 SKU's, scope to be discussed in further revisions. Patheon will finalize strategy with the Client before final approval. Packaging parameters will be established via a dry run of the packaging components prior to packaging validation runs. Patheon will prepare a protocol and summary report for review.

7. Bulk Hold Time Study

To establish holding time parameters prior to commencing process validation. Study conducted for two strengths, for each of the blends (solid of liquid), and cores / or uncoated tablets and on the bulk finished product at T=0, 15 days and 30 days. See Part B: Budget Summary for scope details. Includes protocol and report.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 16 of 31

8. Stability - Bulk Hold Optional

The precise strategy to be adopted for the stability studies has to be discussed with Metuchen and therefore several assumptions have been made at this stage. Patheon will make a detailed assessment and supply an accurate revised price for this work on provision of the full testing specification and stability requirements.

Patheon will design a stability program (single strength, single orientation, and single container type) to monitor the stability profiles of two feasibility batches packaged into 2 SKU's.

The following assumptions have been made:

- Samples will be placed on store concurrently and also tested concurrently at each test point.
- Unless indicated in the stability protocol, analytical data required for the release of each validation batch manufactured at Patheon will be used for the initial time point (T=0) for all conditions.
- A stability protocol will be prepared prior to samples being placed on store and a final report will be prepared upon completion of the stability program. Data summaries will be provided upon completion of individual time points.

Testing Matrix:

The following storage conditions and test-points are suggested for testing (to be confirmed):

Storage Conditions					Time	Point (M	(onths				
Conditions	0	1	2	3	6	9	12	18	24	36	60
25°C / 60% RH				X	X	X	XM	X	XM	XM	
30°C / 65% RH	R	С	С	С	С	С	С				
40°C / 75% RH		X	X	X	X						

R: Release testing

X: Physical/Chemical testing (assuming Patheon standard testing regime) M: Microbiology testing

C: Contingency samples – testing to be performed only if significant change is observed or at the request of Metuchen. Testing of these samples is not included in budget.

Actual testing requirements can be adapted at a later stage to meet the specific requirements

Stability Testing Requirements						
Appearance	Dissolution (profile by HPLC, n=6)					
Moisture (KF)	Potency and Related Substances					
ID by IR	Uniformity					

Patheon will store the stability samples. Should there be insufficient space at Patheon when the project initiates, then samples can be stored off site at a Patheon approved third party supplier. Storage of samples beyond the conclusion of the stability study will be charged back to Metuchen in accordance with the Legal Terms and Conditions/Master Agreement. In the unlikely event that Metuchen requests a stability program to be terminated early, any costs associated with the disposal of any remaining drug product or shipment of any remaining drug

product back to Metuchen will be charged back to Metuchen in accordance with the Legal Terms and Conditions/Master Agreement.

Metuchen may instruct Patheon to amend the stability schedule as required. For Minor Changes such as those that increase the number of pull points but maintain the testing and number of batches as outlined above, an invoice will be issued for the new pull points without issuance of a formal Change of Scope Agreement. For Significant Changes that affect the type and number of tests (as mentioned above) to be performed at a given time point, the price per pull point may be re-evaluated. A formal Change of Scope Agreement will be issued to capture the Significant Changes.

Patheon will prepare a stability summary report following completion of the study. The summary report will consist of a high level evaluation of whether the data for each test indicates that a change has occurred on stability and compared to specification. The report will not include any statistical interpretations or shelf life evaluations (these would be agreed between the parties via a Change of Scope Agreement if required).

9. Validation Services

To demonstrate that the manufacturing process is capable of consistently producing a finished product that meets the quality attributes as specified in the established product specification via manufacturing of three consecutive validation batches. Activities include:

- Equipment Cleaning Validation
- Validation Batches: R0 Standard approach is to present pricing for 3 manufacturing validation batches per strength for representative pricing purposes. Patheon will confirm the scope with Metuchen for approval before finalizing the proposal.
- Includes generation of a protocol, execution and reporting.
- Validation Batches –3 process validation batches per strength
- Continued Process Verification PV Program Start Up Risk Assessment and Protocol
- It is assumed that a Patheon standard testing regime will be performed at the following steps: blend/powder/granulation, cores / or uncoated tablets, and on the bulk finished product. Refer to Part D for the key technical parameters used.

The continued validation approach will be discussed and agreed with Metuchen during the technical transfer project.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC
Stendra Tablets
Page 18 of 31

10. Stability - Validation (Optional)

The precise strategy to be adopted for the stability studies has to be discussed with Metuchen and therefore several assumptions have been made at this stage. Patheon will make a detailed assessment and supply an accurate revised price for this work on provision of the full testing specification and stability requirements.

Patheon will design a stability program (single strength, single orientation, and single container type) to monitor the stability profiles of three process validation batches per strength packaged into 3 SKU's.

The following assumptions have been made:

- Samples will be placed on store concurrently and also tested concurrently at each test point.
- Unless indicated in the stability protocol, analytical data required for the release of each validation batch manufactured at Patheon will be used for the initial time point (T=0) for all conditions.
- A stability protocol will be prepared prior to samples being placed on store and a final report will be prepared upon completion of the stability program. Data summaries will be provided upon completion of individual time points.

Testing Matrix:

The following storage conditions and test-points are suggested for testing (to be confirmed):

Storage Conditions					Time	Point (M	lonths)				
Conditions	0	1	2	3	6	9	12	18	24	36	60
25°C / 60% RH				X	X	X	XM	X	XM	XM	
30°C / 65% RH	R	С	С	С	С	С	С				
40°C / 75% RH		X	X	X	X						

R: Release testing

X: Physical/Chemical testing (assuming Patheon standard testing regime) M: Microbiology testing

C: Contingency samples – testing to be performed only if significant change is observed or at the request of Metuchen. Testing of these samples is not included in budget.

Actual testing requirements can be adapted at a later stage to meet the specific requirements

Stability Testing Requirements						
Appearance	Dissolution (profile by HPLC, n=6)					
Moisture (KF)	Potency and Related Substances					
ID by IR	Uniformity					

Patheon will store the stability samples. Should there be insufficient space at Patheon when the project initiates, then samples can be stored off site at a Patheon approved third party supplier. Storage of samples beyond the conclusion of the stability study will be charged back to Metuchen in accordance with the Legal Terms and Conditions/Master Agreement. In the unlikely event that Metuchen requests a stability program to be terminated early, any costs associated with the disposal of any remaining drug product or shipment of any remaining drug

product back to Metuchen will be charged back to Metuchen in accordance with the Legal Terms and Conditions/ Master Agreement.

Metuchen may instruct Patheon to amend the stability schedule as required. For Minor Changes such as those that increase the number of pull points, but maintain the testing and number of batches as outlined above, an invoice will be issued for the new pull points without issuance of a formal Change of Scope Agreement. For Significant Changes that affect the type and number of tests (as mentioned above) to be performed at a given time point, the price per pull point may be re-evaluated. A formal Change of Scope Agreement will be issued to capture the Significant Changes.

Patheon will prepare a stability summary report following completion of the study. The summary report will consist of a high level evaluation of whether the data for each test indicates that a change has occurred on stability and compared to specification. The report will not include any statistical interpretations or shelf life evaluations (these would be agreed between the parties via a Change of Scope Agreement if required).

11. Regulatory Management

Regulatory support may be provided to Client throughout the project by the European Regulatory Affairs network, part of ThermoFisher Scientific Pharmaceutical Services Group.

The wide range of integrated services proposed is built upon successful regulatory support across a wide variety of program, and may typically cover (but is not limited to):

- ? Regulatory guidance, ranging from general guidance to customized regulatory strategies;
- ? Project regulatory liaison and phase-appropriate consultancy;
- ? Common Technical Document (CTD) Quality/Module 3 (Drug Substance/Drug Product) authoring of clinical and commercial applications for major markets (EU/USA/Japan/CA);
- ? Registration support for Rest-of-World (RoW)/International applications (including assistance within GMP compliance certifications);
- ? Documentation review/gap analysis to the latest regulatory standards;
- ? Responses support to authorities questions/deficiencies within registration procedures;
- ? Variations/Post Approval Changes packages preparation;
- ? Regulatory compliance preparedness activities in relation to Client product Pre/Post-Approval Inspections.

For further visibility on our holistic regulatory offerings, please explore our **Regulatory Services Menu**, which can be provided on a separate basis as required.

As the extent of any regulatory support required can be uncertain at the project conception stages, a combination of fixed prices and hourly rates may be applied depending upon the scope of support requested.

Any regulatory support services requested following contract execution and project initiation can be agreed and documented via the Change of Scope process.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC
Stendra Tablets
Page 20 of 31

Part D: Key Technical Parameters

The following technical parameters apply to the production of Stendra Tablets and the materials used therein. Pricing may be adjusted to reflect any technical changes during this project to reflect any specification or process changes.

1. Manufacturing Parameters

1.1 Batch Size/Yields – The core tablet weight, theoretical manufacturing batch size and product yields considered by Patheon are summarized in the following table.

Product	Core Tablet Weight (mg)		Batch Size at Patheon (kg)		Packaging Yield (%)
Stendra 50mg	97.6	254,752	25	95%	100%
Stendra 100mg	195.2	1,313,037	256	95%	100%
Stendra 200mg	390.4	720,368	281	95%	100%

Product	Core Tablet Weight (mg)		Batch Size at Patheon (kg)	tacturing	Packaging Yield (%)
Stendra 50mg	97.6	254,752	25	95%	99%
Stendra 100mg	195.2	1,313,037	256	95%	99%
Stendra 200mg	390.4	720,368	281	95%	99%

- 1.2 Manufacturing campaign PV batches will not be produced in campaign unless otherwise specified.
- 1.3 Hold times It is assumed that the process is carried out at room temperature and the holding times throughout the process are suitable for the batch size proposed. It is assumed that only standard light protection is employed and that no special precautions are required during formulation or packaging. Further details on the hold time and stability data for the drug product should be provided by Metuchen.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 21 of 31

1.4 Other Technical Parameters-

Other Technical Parameters			
API Storage	Ambient Conditions		
Bulk Density assumed	0.5g/mL		
Number of Granulation sub-lots	1 per Mannitol Granules 1 per Fumaric Acid Granules		
100% Visual Inspection	Included		
Finished Product Storage	Room Temperature (15-30°C).		

1.5 Manufacturing Equipment Train – The following manufacturing equipment train is proposed.

	Equipment			
Process Step	Mannitol Granules	Fumaric Acid Granules	Final Blend	Compression / Inspection
Screening	Comil	Comil	-	-
Solution Prep	Aqueous Solution Tanks	Aqueous Solution Tanks	-	-
Fluid Bed Granulation	Glatt	Glatt	-	-
Blending	-	-	4 CF In-Bin/40 CF In-Bin	-
Compression	-	-	-	Fette 2090
Inspection	1	1	-	Viswell

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 22 of 31

2. Packaging Parameters

2.1 Packaging Components:

Bulk Tablets	30ct. Bottles		
7.5-Gal Fibre Drum	60 Cc HDPE, Round, 38 Mm		
4 Mil PE Liner	38 Mm CR, Induction Seal		
Bubble Pack	Label, 3 Color		
Wire Tie Bands	Topsert		
Wire Seal	Shrink Wrap		
Drum Label	Shipper, (24) 60 Cc Bottles		
Pallet	Pallet		
Slip Sheet	-		

- 2.2 **Secondary packaging** Further assessment and discussion will follow once the secondary packaging requirements are fully defined. Patheon assumes that a whole bulk batch will be packed off into a single Stock Keeping Unit (SKU).
- 2.3 **Secondary packaging campaign** It is assumed that PV batches will not be produced in campaign.
- 2.4 The packaging component specifications assumed in this project proposal have been estimated by Patheon. Changes to the specifications will result in review of the final pricing outlined within this Project Proposal.

3. Testing Conditions

- 3.1 Testing for raw materials, packaging components and finished product are based on information provided by Metuchen and Patheon's best estimates.
- 3.2 It is assumed that QC test methods are fully validated and robust at the time of manufacture.
- 3.3 The analytical tests included in the project proposal are listed below:

Testing Requirements			
In-Process Controls	Finished Product Testing		
Physical - Appearance	Physical - Appearance		
Physical - Hardness	 Potency (Assay) / ID 		
Physical - Friability	Related Substances / Impurities		
Physical - Weight variation	Uniformity of Dose		
Physical - Thickness	• Dissolution HPLC (single point)		
	Physical - Karl Fischer/Water		

3.4 Microbiological testing has been included.

January 13, 2022
Confidential
Stendra Tablets
Page 23 of 31

3.5 Testing labour may be subject to change after the final agreements on testing specifications and requirements.

4. Supply Chain

- 4.1 Patheon will procure Exclusive Items and Common Materials and Supplies for the manufacture of Product from Patheon qualified suppliers. Should Metuchen require Patheon to source any Exclusive Items or Common Materials and Supplies from specified suppliers, then these suppliers will remain under the quality audit control of Metuchen unless an agreement is reached for Patheon to take on this responsibility.
- 4.2 Patheon recommends review of the Common Materials and Supplies source to reduce the risk of delays and ensure delivery continuity e.g. secondary source suppliers.
- 4.3 Exclusive Items and Common Materials and Supplies will be supplied by Patheon in accordance with the specifications agreed. Patheon will issue formal Patheon specifications for each material.
- 4.4 Each lot of incoming components and excipients will be sampled and tested according to the agreed specifications.
- 4.5 The DS will be provided free issue/released to Patheon by Metuchen or its qualified supplier.
- 4.6 The DS and all excipients used for the manufacture will be GMP grade and from TSE/BSE certified sources.
- 4.7 Finished product will be made available at Patheon's proposed manufacturing site (supplied EXW according to Incoterms® 2010).

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC
Stendra Tablets
Page 24 of 31

Part E: Legal Terms and Conditions

The parties are negotiating an Umbrella Development Services Agreement (the "Master Agreement"). The parties acknowledge and agree that upon its execution, the terms and conditions in the Master Agreement will govern this Project Proposal and will supersede Part E, Legal Terms & Conditions, of this Project Proposal. Each of the parties agrees to use reasonable, diligent efforts to negotiate and enter into the Master Agreement by January 31, 2021.

LEGAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR

PHARMACEUTICAL DEVELOPMENT AND TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER SERVICES (Certain capitalized terms used herein but not defined are defined elsewhere in this Project Proposal)

1. Services:

- (a) Patheon agrees to perform the pharmaceutical development or technology transfer services described in this Project Proposal ("Services").

 The term of this Project Proposal will be from the Effective Date until completion by Patheon of the Services.
- (b) Patheon will perform the Services in compliance with cGMP as and where specified and applicable under this Project Proposal. Client acknowledges that certain aspects of the Services may include non-cGMP activities as specified in further detail in this Project Proposal.
- (c) If Patheon manufactures validation batches under this Project Proposal, the validation batches will not be considered commercially saleable and will be subject the Legal Terms and Conditions in this Project Proposal. In order for the validation batches to be commercially saleable, (i) the validation batches must be manufactured and released for commercial sale (i.e. validation must be successfully completed) and (ii) a commercial manufacturing services agreement (with associated quality agreement) must have been entered into between Client and Patheon (the "Commercial Agreement"). After commercial release, the legal terms and conditions of the Commercial Agreement will apply to the validation batches and their use and will supersede the Legal Terms and Conditions in this Project Proposal.
- (d) The parties must agree on changes, deletions or additions to the Services ("Changes") as follows: Minor Changes (i.e. changes that do not affect the timeline or cost of Services) will be confirmed by electronic mail or other written document. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, the implementation of optional items set forth in this Project Proposal will be considered a Minor Change. Significant Changes (such as a request by Client to change the Project Activities and other changes that impact the timeline or cost of the Services) will be confirmed by a written change of scope agreement.
- (e) Client will have a right of access to the Patheon facility performing the Services (each a "Facility") for auditing purposes, limited to one audit every two years after the initial audit unless 'for cause' and as further set forth in the quality agreement between Patheon (including an applicable Affiliate) and Client. Audits performed at Patheon, outside the scope as agreed in the quality agreement, will be charged \$2500 per day per auditor.
- (f) Each party will comply with applicable federal, state and local laws in connection with the performance of this Project Proposal.

2. Advance Payment and Activity Payments:

(a) Advance Payment. Client will pay Patheon a proportion of the agreed fees in advance as set forth in the Budget Summary of this Project Proposal (the "Advance Payment") before the start of the project. Patheon will invoice Client for the Advance Payment immediately upon execution of this Project Proposal. There is no set term for Client's payment of the Advance Payment invoice, but Patheon will not start the Services until the Advance Payment is paid unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Advance Payment will be automatically applied until exhausted to the first invoices for the project as activities are completed as described below in Section 2(b)(i).

(b) Activity Payments.

- (i) Client will pay Patheon for the Services as outlined in this Project Proposal and for any Changes which will be invoiced separately for the fees agreed to by Patheon and Client. Patheon may issue an invoice upon completion of each activity set out in the Budget Summary of this Project Proposal and in accordance with the invoicing schedule (if included in this Project Proposal).
- (ii) Client agrees that the fees set out in the Budget Summary are based upon the assumptions contained in this Project Proposal and the fees may require adjustment if these assumptions are incorrect.
- (iii) Each Patheon invoice will be due and payable on or before 30 days of the date of the invoice. Patheon will email the invoice on the date issued to the email address provided by Client.
- (iv) If any portion of an invoice is disputed, Client will pay Patheon the undisputed amount and the parties will use good faith efforts to reconcile the disputed amount as soon as practicable. Interest on undisputed past due accounts will accrue at a rate of 1.5% per month.
- (v) Upon prior written notice to Client, Patheon may suspend all Services until all undisputed outstanding invoices have been paid in full and Patheon will have no liability to Client if this suspension results in delayed performance of any Services or cancellation or rescheduling of any manufacturing slots.
- (c) Currency. All monetary amounts will be invoiced and paid in Euros or US Dollars or such other currency as set forth in the Budget Summary of this Project Proposal, unless otherwise agreed. For amounts expressed in US Dollars herein, an equivalent amount may be charged in the currency as agreed in this Project Proposal.

3. Supply of Materials:

(a) Client will, at its expense, supply Patheon with sufficient quantities of any substances, raw materials, intermediates, or active pharmaceutical ingredient ("Drug Substance") specified in this Project Proposal to be provided by Client (collectively, the "Client- Supplied Materials") for Patheon to perform the Services. All shipments of Client-Supplied Materials from Client or Client's supplier to Patheon will be made DDP (Incoterms 2020) Patheon's site unless otherwise agreed. All shipments of Client-Supplied Materials will be accompanied by certificate(s) of analysis from the manufacturer including confirmatory results demonstrating compliance with the manufacturer's specifications. Client warrants that the Client-Supplied Materials will be suitable, safe and non-hazardous for use in the Services.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 25 of 31

- (b) Patheon will purchase common materials and supplies required to perform the Services ("Common Materials and Supplies"). The cost for the Common Materials and Supplies is included within each activity price in the Budget Summary.
- (collectively "Non-Included Items") such as excipients, pre-filled syringes and plungers, vials, packaging components, caps and stoppers (liquid and lyophilisate), compression tooling, blister tooling, specialty laboratory columns, project specific change parts, and reference standards including those under the applicable United States Pharmacopoeia, the National Formulary, the British Pharmacopoeia, the European Pharmacopoeia or the Japanese Pharmacopoeia. The cost of Non-Included Items necessary for Patheon to perform the Services will be billed separately and charged to Client at Patheon's cost plus an additional 15% as a handling charge. Client will be invoiced on receipt of any Non-Included Items. For any Non-Included Items purchased by Patheon which have expired or which no longer have any forecasted requirements, Patheon will contact Client regarding instructions to either dispose of or ship these Non-Included Items to Client. If instructions are not received from Client within 30 days, Patheon reserves the right, at Client's cost, to dispose of the Non-Included Items.
- (d) Client is responsible for vendor qualification of Client-Supplied Materials to be used for cGMP purposes and for providing a certificate of compliance consistent with the requirements of cGMP, applicable laws and any applicable quality agreement between the parties. If Client wishes Patheon to use a specific vendor to purchase materials or supply testing or other services and this vendor is not an approved vendor currently used by Patheon, it will be Client's responsibility to audit and approve the vendor. At Client's request and for an additional fee, Patheon will audit the vendor on Client's behalf and provide an audit report to Client.
- (e) If Client-Supplied Materials or materials supplied by Client appointed vendors are not supplied timely or in accordance with the relevant specification, any cancellation, rescheduling or termination of scheduled Services will be subject to applicable batch rescheduling or cancellation fees as set out in Section 4(f) ("Cancellation Fees"). Client will pay the full fees and costs for any failed or non-conforming Services that are the result of defects or other non-conformities in Client-Supplied Materials that could not have been discovered by Patheon by reasonable inspection or by using the agreed-upon testing methods (if any).
- (f) Unless otherwise agreed in a separate capital equipment and expenditure agreement ("Capital Agreement"), if any capital equipment expenditures are required to perform the Services, Client hereby directs Patheon to incur, on its behalf, all expenses and costs for the Client capital requirements (the "Client Capital Requirements"). Patheon will invoice Client for the actual cost of Client Capital Requirements plus any applicable administrative fees as set forth in this Project Proposal. Client acknowledges that advance payments may be required for Client Capital Requirements. Client will pay Patheon for all amounts owing under these invoices. If the Client Capital Requirements will be owned by Client and Patheon purchases the Client Capital Requirements on behalf of Client, Client agrees that Patheon will be the buying agent for Client and Client hereby grants to Patheon a limited power of attorney for this purpose.
- (g) If Patheon is required to buy any marketed drug product to complete the Services, Client acknowledges that the purchases will be made by Patheon on behalf of Client and that Patheon will assume no responsibility or liability whatsoever for the marketed drug product. All marketed drug product purchases will be prepaid by Client and unless otherwise agreed to between the parties, Patheon will only place an order for the marketed drug product once an agreed upon prepayment has been received.
- (h) If applicable, Patheon and Client will reasonably cooperate to permit the import of the Client-Supplied Materials and other materials into the country where the Services will be performed. Client or Client's broker will be the "Importer" or "Importer of Record" (or equivalent, as understood under applicable law) for Client-Supplied Materials unless agreed otherwise and Client is responsible for compliance with applicable laws, and the cost of compliance, relating to that role. Client's obligation will include obtaining the proper release of Client-Supplied Materials from the applicable customs agency and regulatory authority.
- (i) To assist Patheon in performing the Services, Client will provide Patheon, in a timely fashion, with all relevant information as Patheon may reasonably request and any delayed or incomplete delivery of information, approvals or other documentation referred to in this Section that causes a cancellation, rescheduling or termination of Services will be subject to applicable Cancellation Fees. Documentation and data supplied to Patheon by or on behalf of Client (as may be set forth in this Project Proposal) will be suitable for use under this Project Proposal, comply with all applicable laws and regulations (including without limitation those relating to the import of these materials), and receive all required governmental and regulatory approvals, including without limitation customs, regulatory and FDA approvals.
- (j) Client will be responsible for disclosing to Patheon all information available to it regarding health risks which may be involved in performing the Services, utilizing specified Client-Supplied Materials, excipients, and other components, including without limitation, industrial hygiene data, industrial hygiene analytical methods, exposure limitations for workers involved in production, toxicology reports, and other health-related data. If reasonable industrial hygiene data is not available, Patheon may develop reasonable data at Client's expense.

4. Termination:

- (a) Either party may terminate this Project Proposal on written notice if the other party is in material breach of any part of this Project Proposal and fails to remedy the breach on or before 30 days, or such other time period as may be reasonably necessary to remedy the breach, after receiving notice of the breach from the aggrieved party or if the other party is subject to any insolvency event.
- (b) Client may terminate this Project Proposal by giving 30 days' notice for any business reason. A termination by Client for any reason other than under Section 4(a), will be subject to Cancellation Fees.
- (c) Patheon may terminate this Project Proposal on written notice to Client:
- if Client requests to reschedule any part of the Services beyond 120 days (it being understood however that Patheon will be under no obligation to accept any rescheduling of Services);
- (ii) after 12 months of inactivity on the project at Client's request; or

- (iii) if Patheon determines that it is unable to perform the Services or manufacture Client's Product in a safe and effective way in accordance with applicable regulatory requirements (including OSHA and FDA regulations, and the equivalent regulations in the relevant territory) and applicable specifications, subject to Section 6(d)(iv).
- (d) If this Project Proposal is completed, expires, or is terminated by either party as provided for herein, Patheon will credit any outstanding balances owed to Client including any un-applied Advance Payment and Client will pay:
 - any fees and expenses due to Patheon for the Services rendered up to the date of completion, expiry or termination;
 - all actual costs and expenses, including any applicable administrative fee, incurred by Patheon to complete wind-down activities as agreed by the parties; and
 - any non-cancellable fees and expenses.
- (e) Client will arrange for the pickup from the Patheon site of all Client-Supplied Materials and any other Client property on or before 30 days after the earlier of the completion, termination or expiration of this Project Proposal. Patheon will charge a storage fee as described in Section 9 for Client property stored at the Patheon site after the 30th day following the completion, termination or expiration of this Project Proposal.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC
Stendra Tablets
Page 26 of 31

(f) The fees in the table below will apply if Client requests or causes the cancellation or rescheduling of the manufacturing of any batch on a cGMP line (the "Manufacturing Services") in any project (whether in isolation or through termination of this Project Proposal or as a result of any delay in supplying any Client-Supplied Materials or other breach of this Project Proposal):

Number of days (inclusive) before the date that any Drug Substance is scheduled for introduction into the manufacturing process under this Project Proposal that the cancellation or rescheduling occurs	Percentage of fee quoted for the relevant Service that is payable by Client
31-90 (applies to sterile lyophilisate or sterile liquid projects only)	20%
16-30	40%
6-15	60%
1-5	90%
On or after the date of the start of manufacturing	100%

Client will also pay the fee for the analytical support that is associated with the cancelled or rescheduled Service.

5. Intellectual Property:

- (a) The term "Intellectual Property" includes, without limitation, rights in patents, patent applications, formulae, trade-marks, trade-mark applications, trade-names, trade secrets, inventions, copyright, industrial designs, data and know-how.
- (b) For the term of this Project Proposal, Client hereby grants to Patheon, a non-exclusive, paid-up, royalty-free, non-transferable license of Client's Intellectual Property that is reasonably necessary for Patheon to perform the Services.
- (c) All Intellectual Property generated by Patheon as a consequence of performing the Services, to the extent it is specific to Client's Product that is the subject of the Services, will be the exclusive property of Client ("Arising Client Intellectual Property"). All Intellectual Property generated by Patheon as a consequence of performing the Services which is not Arising Client Intellectual Property will be the exclusive property of Patheon ("Patheon Intellectual Property"). Patheon hereby grants to Client, a non-exclusive, paid-up, royalty-free, transferable license of the Patheon Intellectual Property which Client may use for the manufacture of Client's Product.
- (d) If Client intends to file a patent application relating to any Arising Client Intellectual Property, Client will give Patheon reasonable time prior to the filing date to review the disclosure for adherence to this Section 5. Patheon will perform this review and make any comments concerning the filing as soon as reasonably practicable and Client will compensate Patheon for all reasonable time devoted and expenses incurred. In instances when Client requires a Patheon employee, who is an inventor on Arising Client Intellectual Property, to opine on the invention before an administrative agency, or participate in an adversarial proceeding in protecting Arising Client Intellectual Property, Client will reimburse Patheon for the time the Patheon employee devotes to this activity.
- (e) Client acknowledges that nothing in this Project Proposal will restrict Patheon from using any Intellectual Property owned or controlled by Patheon in the development or manufacture of products for other Patheon clients or for Patheon's own behalf.

6. Indemnity:

(a) Indemnification by Client.

Subject to Sections 6(b) and 6(c)(iii), Client will defend and indemnify Patheon, its Affiliates and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents (collectively, the "Patheon Indemnitees") from all third-party (other than Affiliate) actions, causes of action, subpoenas, summonses, costs (including reasonable legal fees), claims, damages, liabilities and expenses (collectively, "Losses") relating to or arising from:

- (i) the distribution of Client's Product or the use of Client's Product either as part of or outside of the scope of any clinical trials;
- (ii) personal injury to any employee of Patheon directly or indirectly caused by Client's Product;
- (iii) any misrepresentation, negligence or willful misconduct by Client or any of its Affiliates and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents (collectively, the "Client Indemnitees");
- (iv) any breach by Client of Client's obligations or warranties under this Project Proposal; or
- (v) any claim of infringement (i) of any third party's intellectual property rights in or by Client's Product or process; or (ii) that is related to Patheon's use of Client's Intellectual Property (including any Arising Client Intellectual Property) to perform the Services.

This indemnity will not apply to the extent that these Losses are those for which Patheon is obligated to indemnify the Client Indemnitees under Section 6(b).

(b) Indemnification by Patheon.

Subject to Sections 6(a) and 6(c)(iii), Patheon will defend and indemnify the Client Indemnitees from all Losses relating to or arising from:

- (i) any misrepresentation, negligence or willful misconduct by the Patheon Indemnitees;
- (ii) any failure to manufacture Client's Product in accordance with GMP, where applicable;
- (iii) the breach by Patheon of any of its obligations or warranties under this Project Proposal; or
- (iv) any claim of infringement of any third party's intellectual property rights in or by Patheon's Intellectual Property that is used to perform the Services.

This indemnity will not apply to the extent that these Losses are those for which Client is obligated to indemnify the Patheon Indemnitees under Section 6(a).

If a claim occurs under Section 6(a) or 6(b), the indemnified party will: (i) promptly notify the indemnifying party of the claim; (ii) use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate the effects of the claim; (iii) reasonably cooperate with the indemnifying party in the defense of

the claim; and (iv) permit the indemnifying party to control the defense and settlement of the claim, all at the indemnifying party's cost and expense.

(c) Limitation of Liability.

- (i) If Patheon fails to perform any part of the Services in accordance with this Project Proposal, then Client's sole remedy, whether in contract, tort, equity or otherwise, will be to request Patheon to:
 - (A) repeat that part of the Service at Patheon's cost except that Client will supply the Client-Supplied Materials; or
 - (B) reimburse Client for the price for that part of the Service, excluding the cost of the Client-Supplied Materials.
- (ii) Due to the inherent risk of pharmaceutical development, Patheon accepts no liability for the cost of any lost or replacement Client-Supplied Materials, however that liability arises (including, without limitation, as a result of negligence).
- (iii) Under no circumstances will either party will be liable to the other in contract, tort, negligence, breach of statutory duty, by indemnity or otherwise for (a) any (direct or indirect) delay, penalty, loss of profits, of production, of anticipated savings, of business, of goodwill or of use of Client's Product, or costs of any substitute services or (b) any other liability, damage, cost or expense of any kind incurred by the other party of an indirect or consequential nature, regardless of any notice of the possibility of these damages.
- (iv) Nothing in this Project Proposal is intended to limit either party's liability for: (a) death or personal injury caused by its negligence; or (b) fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 27 of 31 (v) Notwithstanding any other term of this Project Proposal, if Patheon fails to perform any part of any Clinical Supply Optimization Services in accordance with this Project Proposal, Patheon's liability for any and all obligations will not in the aggregate exceed 100% of the fees paid for the Clinical Supply Optimization Services. For the purpose of this Section, "Clinical Supply Optimization Services" means any project management for the strategic design and initiation phases for coordination of clinical supplies or other early demand planning services that are performed as part of the Services.

(d) No Warranty.

- (i) The parties recognize that the Services are of a developmental, experimental or research nature and Client's Product is not intended for commercial use. Client acknowledges and agrees that all timelines are good faith estimates. Patheon hereby disclaims any warranties that the Services will be successfully completed, or successfully completed within the contemplated time period, despite Patheon's commercially reasonable efforts to do so.
- (ii) PATHEON MAKES NO WARRANTY OR CONDITION OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, BY FACT OR LAW, OTHER THAN THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS PROJECT PROPOSAL. PATHEON MAKES NO WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY FOR CLIENT'S PRODUCT, OR FOR ANY PARTICULAR RESULTS FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS PROJECT PROPOSAL.
- (iii) Unless specified in this Project Proposal, Patheon makes no representation or warranty that any product resulting from the performance of the Services will conform to certain specifications.
- (iv) Client acknowledges that due to the uncertain and unpredictable nature of certain aspects of the Services, Patheon may make recommendations before or after the start of the Services to ensure that Client's Product can be manufactured in a safe and effective way in accordance with applicable regulatory requirements (including OSHA and FDA regulations, and the equivalent regulations in the relevant territory) and applicable specifications. The parties will discuss in good faith any Changes required to implement these recommendations. If Client opts to proceed against Patheon's recommendation (including by failing to agree a related Change proposed by Patheon), Section 4(c)(iii) will apply.

7. Regulatory Filings:

If the Services relate to a clinical phase III project or if Patheon is selected to be the site for commercial manufacture of Client's Product, then prior to filing with the relevant regulatory authority any clinical trial application, including any US Investigational New Drug Application or EU Investigational Medicinal Product Dossier or any documentation that is equivalent to these applications, Client will give Patheon a copy of the Quality Module of the Common Technical Document (the "CTD") that relates to the application as well as all supporting documents which have been relied upon to prepare the CTD. This disclosure will permit Patheon to verify that the CTD accurately describes the Services that Patheon has performed and the manufacturing and testing processes that Patheon will perform under this Project Proposal. Patheon will have a minimum of 21 days to perform this review or such other time as the parties may agree in writing.

If Client does not provide Patheon with the documentation requested above within the time stipulated and if Patheon reasonably believes that Patheon's relationship with the regulatory authority may be jeopardized, Patheon may, in its sole discretion, delay or postpone the regulatory authority inspection which is or is equivalent to the FDA's pre-approval inspection until Patheon has reviewed the requested documentation and is satisfied with its contents.

If Patheon determines that any of the information provided by Client is inaccurate or deficient in any manner whatsoever (the "Deficiencies"), Patheon will notify Client in writing of the Deficiencies. Until the Deficiencies have been resolved or agreement has been reached with Client for resolution, Patheon reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to not participate in the regulatory authority inspection. If this occurs, Patheon's non-participation in the inspection will not be construed as a breach of any of its obligations under this Project Proposal.

8. Delivery and Shipping:

(a) Delivery/Shipment. Any delivery by or on behalf of Patheon for Client will be made EXW (Incoterms 2020) the Facility unless otherwise agreed. Risk of loss or damage to shipments will transfer to Client when loaded onto the carrier's vehicle by Patheon. Each shipment will be packaged for transport in accordance with Client's instructions and this Project Proposal. Client will be responsible for obtaining insurance covering the shipment after Patheon delivers the shipment to the carrier. Client will obtain any required licenses and authorizations necessary for export, and will otherwise comply with all applicable laws and pay any applicable export or import fees, duties and taxes.

(b) Carrier Management.

(i) <u>Carrier Management through TTM</u>. If it is agreed that Patheon will coordinate collection of Client's Product or material using Patheon's carriers, as set out in this Project Proposal, then coordination will be provided through Patheon's Total Transportation Management Services ("TTM"), and the following terms will apply:

Client agrees that Patheon is to coordinate the transport of Client's Product or materials, and Patheon will do so as an agent of Client and at Client's sole risk and expense. In addition to the terms and conditions outlined in this Project Proposal, Client agrees to the following: (a) Client will pay, to Patheon, all freight charges as referenced in this Project Proposal and Client will be responsible for all final freight charges based on actual shipping characteristics and all charges with respect to services that were not contemplated in this Project Proposal including but not limited to charges for accessorial services such as detention and demurrage, (b) Client approves and accepts Patheon's selection of transportation mode and carrier, (c) Client agrees to grant Patheon the ability to coordinate customs clearance up to, and including, paying duties and taxes on Client's behalf, and (d) Client agrees that shipment will be subject to the terms and conditions of the selected carrier's waybill and that Client's sole recovery for loss, damage, destruction or delay will be directly against the underlying carrier, which carrier may limit its liability. In no event will Patheon be considered a freight forwarder or carrier in the provision of TTM.

(ii) <u>Client Managed Shipping (Client Carrier</u>). If Client expressly elects to provide its own transportation, Client will coordinate collection of Client's Product or material using its own carrier, and (i) Patheon will tender the shipment to Client's carrier as instructed from Patheon's location at Client's sole risk and expense, and (ii) Client will ensure that all costs of shipment are billed directly to Client by Client's carrier.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 28 of 31

9. Storage after Release or Project Completion:

- (a) Unless otherwise agreed between the parties, Client will pay Patheon the following storage fees if manufactured Client's Product, retained samples, stability samples, clinical trial materials, placebo, development, feasibility, scale-up, registration, validation or any other batches, Client-Supplied Materials, Non-Included Items or any other Client property (collectively "Materials") are stored at Patheon for more than 30 days after (i) their release for shipment or request for removal by Patheon; or (ii) the issuance of a report by Patheon for the final time point for that given storage condition (according to the agreed stability protocol) or after cancellation of a given program in the case of retained samples or stability samples ("Sample Release"):
 - (i) Non-controlled substances:
 - (A) \$500 per month, per pallet (one month, one pallet minimum) for storage under room temperature;
 - (B) \$100 per cubic foot, per month (one cubic foot, one month minimum) for storage under conditions of $2^{\circ}C 8^{\circ}C$; and
 - (C) \$200 per cubic foot, per month (one cubic foot, one month minimum) for storage under frozen conditions. For Materials in subsection (i) stored more than 90 days after their release for shipment or request for removal by Patheon, the stated fees above will double.
 - (ii) <u>Controlled-substances</u>: \$1,000 per month, per pallet (one month, one pallet minimum).
 - (iii) Retained samples or stability samples:
 - (A) \$500 per 50 liters of walk-in storage volume per month (one month, 50 liter minimum); and
 - (B) \$100 per liter of reach-in storage volume per month (one month, one liter minimum). For retained samples or stability samples in subsection (iii) stored more than 90 days after Sample Release, the stated fees above will double.
 - (iv) If Client requests storage at conditions different than those stated in Section 9(a), then this will be discussed and agreed between the parties on a separate basis.
- (b) Patheon reserves the right to refuse to store any Materials, at its sole discretion at any time following completion of the Services. Client will assume all risk of loss or damage to the Materials stored for more than 30 days after their release for shipment by Patheon, or in the case of retained samples and stability samples, after Sample Release unless Patheon agrees to the additional storage time, and it will be Client's responsibility to have appropriate insurance coverage in place for this risk. If Client asks Patheon to destroy any Materials, Client will be responsible for the cost of destruction. Patheon will, at Client's cost, destroy all stability samples and retained samples that remain in storage for more than 30 days after Sample Release unless Patheon agrees to the additional storage time.

10. Miscellaneous:

(a) Assignment and Subcontracting.

- (i) Neither this Project Proposal, nor any of either party's rights or obligations hereunder, may be assigned, novated or otherwise transferred by either party without the prior written consent of the other party, this consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. But either party may, upon written notification to the other party, assign, in whole or part, its rights and obligations under this Project Proposal to an Affiliate or, in connection with a merger, consolidation or sale of substantially all of the business to which this Project Proposal relates, to an unrelated third party. For purposes of this Project Proposal, "Affiliate" means an entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with Patheon or Client, where control is defined as ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the voting rights in the entity.
- (ii) Patheon may subcontract the Services hereunder to an Affiliate as specified in this Project Proposal or arrange for any of its Affiliates to perform specific Services under this Project Proposal. Client agrees that Patheon will remain exclusively liable to Client for any breach of this Project Proposal or negligence by its Affiliates in the course of performing: (a) subcontracted Services; or (b) obligations under the applicable Quality Agreement (if any).
- (iii) Patheon may also arrange for non-Affiliate third party subcontractors ("Third Party Subcontractors") to perform specific Services (such as testing or analysis) under this Project Proposal with Client's consent or at Client's request. Patheon's liability for Third Party Subcontractors will remain subject to all limitations on Patheon's liability as set out in this Project Proposal.
- (iv) Patheon will have no liability arising from the performance of Services by Third Party Subcontractors: (a) that are chosen or requested by Client; (b) that is a service provider not validated or utilized by Patheon prior to the date of this Project Proposal; or (c) to the extent that the Third Party Subcontractor is following the direct instructions of Client.

(b) Force Majeure.

Except for payment obligations, neither party will be responsible for delay or failure in performance resulting from acts beyond the reasonable control and without the fault or negligence of the party, including, but not limited to, strikes or other labor disturbances, lockouts, quarantines, communicable disease outbreaks, riots, wars, acts of terrorism, fires, floods, storms, interruption of or delay in transportation, defective equipment, lack of or inability to obtain fuel, power or components, or compliance with any order or regulation of any government entity.

(c) Survival.

Any termination or expiration of this Project Proposal will not affect any outstanding obligations or payments due hereunder prior to the termination or expiration, nor will it prejudice any other remedies that the parties may have under this Project Proposal. The following will survive the expiration or termination of this Project Proposal: the Confidentiality Agreement and Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 9 and 10 (as applicable) of this Project Proposal.

(d) Independent Contractors.

The parties are independent contractors and this Project Proposal will not be construed to create between Patheon and Client any other relationship such as, by way of example only, that of employer-employee, principal, agent, joint-venturer, co-partners or any similar relationship.

(e) Confidentiality.

The Confidentiality Agreement entered into between the parties will apply to all confidential information about the parties and the Services to be conducted under this Project Proposal and the Confidentiality Agreement is incorporated herein by reference. If the Confidentiality Agreement expires or terminates before the expiration or termination of this Project Proposal, then the terms of the Confidentiality Agreement will nonetheless continue to govern the parties' obligations of confidentiality for the term of this Project Proposal and for five years thereafter.

(f) Other Terms.

No terms, provisions or conditions of any purchase order or other business form or written authorization used by Client or Patheon will have any effect on the rights, duties or obligations of the parties, or otherwise modify, this Project Proposal, regardless of any failure of Client or Patheon to object to the terms, provisions, or conditions.

(g) Insurance.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 29 of 31 Each party will maintain during the term of this Project Proposal commercial general liability and product liability insurance which is sufficient to cover their respective liability under this Project Proposal. Either party will provide evidence of this insurance upon the request of the other party.

(h) Entire Agreement.

This Project Proposal, together with any quality agreements entered into thereunder, and any other agreements (e.g., a Capital Agreement) that are expressly entered into hereunder, are the complete agreement between the parties with respect to this subject matter and supersedes all other prior agreements, representations and understandings, whether written or oral. Except as otherwise provided in this Project Proposal, any modifications, amendment or supplement to this Project Proposal must be in writing and signed by authorized representatives of both parties.

(i) Severability.

If any provision of this Project Proposal is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, that determination will not impair or affect the validity, legality, or enforceability of the remaining provisions, because each provision is separate, severable, and distinct.

(j) Execution in Counterparts.

This Project Proposal may be executed in two or more counterparts, by original or electronic (including "PDF") signature, each of which will be considered an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.

(k) No Third Party Benefit or Right.

Nothing in this Project Proposal will confer on any third party (except that Patheon Affiliates acting as subcontractors under this Project Proposal may enforce Sections 6(c) and 6(d)) any benefit or the right to enforce any express or implied term of this Project Proposal. The rights of the parties to terminate, rescind or agree on any variation, waiver or settlement under this Project Proposal are not subject to the consent of any other person.

(1) Choice of Law.

This Project Proposal and any dispute or claim (including non-contractual disputes or claims) arising out of or in connection with it or its subject matter or formation is governed by the laws of (i) the State of Delaware if it is with a Patheon entity registered in the United States or Canada, or (ii) England if it is with a Patheon entity registered outside the United States or Canada, in each case without regard to any conflicts-of-law principle that directs the application to another jurisdiction's law. Both parties hereby submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts in the applicable location. The parties further expressly agree that the UN Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods will not apply to this Project Proposal.

(m) Patheon Staff.

During the term of this Project Proposal, and for one year after its termination, Client and its Affiliates will not, directly or indirectly, solicit, induce, recruit, encourage or otherwise endeavor to cause or attempt to cause any officer, employee, director or consultant of Patheon or any of its Affiliates who became known to Client or its Affiliates in connection with the Services or who has performed work in connection with the Services, to terminate or discontinue their employment, contract or other relationship with Patheon or any Patheon Affiliate.

(n) Anti-Bribery.

The parties agree:

- (i) to comply with all applicable laws, statutes and regulations relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption including but not limited to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the UK Bribery Act (collectively, the "Relevant Laws");
- (ii) to have and maintain in place throughout the term of this Project Proposal their own policies and procedures to ensure compliance with the Relevant Laws (and to provide a copy to the other party on request) and will appropriately enforce those policies and procedures including providing training; and
- (iii) that no employee, contractor, supplier, agent, broker, or entity will offer or pay anything of value to a public or private official intending to influence or induce an official act or decision or to obtain an improper advantage.

A material breach of this Section 10(n) will be considered a material breach of this Project Proposal. If there is a material breach of this Section 10(n), the aggrieved party will have the right to immediately terminate this Project Proposal, without any liability to the other party.

(o) Taxes.

- (i) \underline{VAT} .
 - (A) Fees for Services and any other payment due to Patheon under this Project Proposal in consideration for the provision of Services to Client by Patheon is exclusive of value added taxes ("VAT"), turnover taxes, sales taxes or similar taxes, including any related interest and penalties (together referred to as "Transaction Tax") which will be added to the invoice amount and will be reimbursable to Patheon by Client.
 - (B) Patheon will use its reasonable commercial efforts to ensure that its invoices to Client are issued in a way to meet the requirements for deduction of input VAT by Client, if Client is permitted by law to do so.
 - (C) If Patheon is acting as Client's buying agent, Patheon will always charge to Client Transaction Tax in the relevant territory in addition to the amount paid by Patheon to supplier.
 - (D) Reference to the Services in this Section also includes any element (or the entirety) of the Services characterized as a supply of goods by Patheon, its subcontractor or any tax authority for Transaction Tax purposes.
- (ii) <u>Duties</u>. Client will bear the cost of all duties, levies, tariffs and similar charges (and any related interest and penalties) (together "Duties") however designated, arising from the performance of the Services by Patheon, including (without limitation) those imposed as a result of the shipping of materials (including Drug Substance, materials, components and finished Client's Product) to, from or between Patheon facilities. If these Duties are incurred by Patheon, then Patheon will be entitled to invoice Client for these Duties at the time that they are incurred.

(iii) Withholding Tax.

(A) Where any sum due to be paid to Patheon hereunder is subject to any withholding or similar tax, Client will pay the withholding or similar tax to the appropriate government authority and deduct the amount then due to Patheon, in a timely manner and promptly transmit to Patheon an official certificate or other evidence of the withholding sufficient to enable Patheon to claim

- payment of these taxes. The parties agree to cooperate with one another and use reasonable efforts to reduce or eliminate or enable the recovery of any tax withholding or similar obligations for royalties, milestone payments, and other payments made by Client to Patheon under a Project Proposal.
- (B) Patheon will provide Client any tax forms that may be reasonably necessary in order for Client not to withhold tax or to withhold tax at a reduced rate under an applicable bilateral income tax treaty.
- (C) Each party will provide the other with reasonable assistance to enable the recovery, as permitted by applicable laws, of withholding taxes, or similar obligations resulting from payments made under a Project Proposal, any recovery to be for the benefit of the party bearing the withholding tax.

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 30 of 31

Patheon Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("Patheon") 2110 East Galbraith Road Cincinnati, OH 45237 Registered in Delaware By: DocuSigned by: By: Patheon Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("Patheon") Registered in Road DocuSigned by: By: Patheon Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("Patheon") Registered in Road DocuSigned by: By: Patheon Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("Patheon") Registered in Road DocuSigned by: By: Patheon Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("Patheon") Registered in Road DocuSigned by: By: Patheon Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("Patheon") By: DocuSigned by: By: DocuSigned by: By: DocuSigned by: Patheon Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("Patheon") By: DocuSigned by: B

Metuchen Pharmaceuticals LLC ("Client")

200 Route 9 North, Ste 500

Manalapan, NJ 07726

United States

By:

Name: Fady Boctor

Title: President, Chief Commercial
Officer

Date: 1/13/2022

Proposal # C-CRC-286511-R3 January 13, 2022 Confidential Metuchen Pharmaceutical LLC Stendra Tablets Page 31 of 31

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

- I, Fady Boctor, certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a–15(e) and 15d–15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a–15(f) and 15d–15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 16, 2022 By: /s/ Fady Boctor

Fady Boctor
Chief Commercial Officer and Principal Executive
Officer

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

- I, Mitchell Arnold, certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a–15(e) and 15d–15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a–15(f) and 15d–15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 16, 2022 By: /s/ Mitchell Arnold

Mitchell Arnold

Vice President of Finance and Principal Financial Officer

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2022 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), each of the undersigned, in the capacities and on the dates indicated below, hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
 and
- 2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Date: May 16, 2022 By: /s/ Fady Boctor

Fady Boctor

Chief Commercial Officer and Principal Executive

Officer

Date: May 16, 2022 By: /s/ Mitchell Arnold

Mitchell Arnold

Vice President of Finance and Principal Financial

Officer

Document and Entity 3 Months Ended Information - shares Mar. 31, 2022

May 13, 2022

Document and Entity Information [Abstract]

Document Type10-QDocument Quarterly ReporttrueDocument Transition Reportfalse

Document Period End Date Mar. 31, 2022 Entity File Number 001-39752

Entity Registrant Name Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Entity Incorporation, State or Country Code DE

Entity Tax Identification Number 85-1410058

Entity Address State Or Province NY

Entity Address, Address Line One 1185 Avenue of the Americas

Entity Address, Adress Line Two3rd FloorEntity Address, City or TownNew YorkEntity Address, Postal Zip Code10036City Area Code973

Local Phone Number 242-0005
Title of 12(b) Security Common stock

Trading SymbolPTPISecurity Exchange NameNASDAQ

Entity Current Reporting Status Yes
Entity Interactive Data Current Yes

Entity Filer Category Non-accelerated Filer

Entity Small BusinesstrueEntity Emerging Growth CompanytrueEntity Ex Transition PeriodfalseEntity Shell Companyfalse

Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding 20,684,723

Entity Central Index Key

Current Fiscal Year End Date

Document Fiscal Year Focus

Document Fiscal Period Focus

Amendment Flag

O001815903

--12-31

2022

Q1

Amendment Flag

false

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - USD (\$)	Mar. 31, 2022	Dec. 31, 2021
Current assets:		
<u>Cash</u>	\$	\$
	17,671,871	23,847,572
Accounts receivable, net	3,740,775	2,455,386
<u>Inventories</u>	1,942,873	519,649
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	3,482,586	3,720,088
Total current assets	26,838,105	30,542,695
Fixed assets, net	46,842	49,397
Intangible assets, net	23,734,834	25,293,149
API purchase commitment	4,796,771	11,029,260
Other assets	447,595	475,557
<u>Total assets</u>	55,864,147	67,390,058
Current liabilities:		
Accounts payable	3,700,326	4,557,969
Accrued expenses	5,512,006	11,957,384
Accrued inventory purchases		14,203,905
Other current liabilities	352,436	260,818
<u>Current portion of promissory note</u>	723,982	
Total current liabilities	10,288,750	30,980,076
Promissory note	9,477,776	
<u>Derivative liability</u>		460,000
Other long-term liabilities	371,053	405,018
<u>Total liabilities</u>	20,137,579	31,845,094
Stockholders' Equity:		
Preferred stock (par value of \$0.0001 per share, 50,000,000 shares authorized, 0		
shares issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,		
<u>respectively</u>)		
Common stock (par value of \$0.0001 per share, 150,000,000 shares authorized,		
20,684,723 shares issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2022, and December 31,	2,068	2,068
2021, respectively)	406 707 74	
Additional paid-in capital		106,231,716
Accumulated deficit)(70,688,820)
Total Stockholders' Equity		35,544,964
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity	\$	\$
	55,864,147	67,390,058

CONSOLIDATED

BALANCE SHEETS Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021

(Parenthetical) - \$ / shares

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Preferred stock, par value	\$ 0.0001	\$ 0.0001
Preferred stock, shares authorized	50,000,000	50,000,000
Preferred stock, shares issued	0	0
Preferred stock, shares outstanding	0	0
Common stock, par value	\$ 0.0001	\$ 0.0001
Common stock, shares authorized	150,000,000	150,000,000
Common stock, shares issued	20,684,723	20,684,723
Common stock, shares outstanding	20,684,723	20,684,723

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS - USD (\$)

3 Months Ended

Mar. 31, 2022 Mar. 31, 2021

CONSOLIDATED STAT		OF OPER	AHUNS
-------------------	--	---------	-------

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OTERATIONS	2	
Net sales	\$ 2,465,169	\$ 4,075,606
Cost of goods sold	472,340	643,386
Gross profit	1,992,829	3,432,220
Operating expenses:		
Selling, general and administrative	3,897,738	3,881,717
Gain on settlement with Vivus	(3,389,941)	
Research and development expense	405,360	19,181
Depreciation and amortization expense	1,560,870	1,728,829
Total operating expenses	2,474,027	5,629,727
<u>Loss from operations</u>	(481,198)	(2,197,507)
Change in fair value of derivative liability	460,000	5,380,000
Interest expense, senior debt		(173,412)
Interest expense, promissory note	(153,026)	
Net income (loss)	\$ (174,224)	\$ 3,009,081
Net income (loss) per common share		
Basic (in dollars per share)	\$ (0.01)	\$ 0.31
Diluted (in dollars per share)	\$ (0.01)	\$ 0.31
Weighted average common shares outstanding		
Basic	20,684,723	9,753,086
Effects of common share equivalents		1,600
<u>Diluted</u>	20,684,723	9,754,686

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY - USD (\$)	Preferred Stock	Common Stock	Additional Paid- in Capital	Accumulated Deficit	Total
Balance at Dec. 31, 2020		\$ 971	\$ 79,170,225	\$ (61,702,144)	\$ 17.460.052
Balance (in shares) at Dec. 31, 2020	500	9,707,655			17,409,032
Conversion of Preferred Stock to Common Stock		\$ 6	(6)		
Conversion of Preferred Stock to Common Stock (in shares)	(500)	60,606			
Non-employee stock-based compensation	<u>l</u>	\$ 3	97,797		97,800
Non-employee stock-based compensation (in shares)	<u>l</u>	30,000			
Stock-based Compensation Expense			347,207		347,207
Net (loss) income				3,009,081	3,009,081
Balance at Mar. 31, 2021		\$ 980	79,615,223	(58,693,063)	20,923,140
Balance (in shares) at Mar. 31, 2021		9,798,261			
Balance at Dec. 31, 2021		\$ 2,068	106,231,716	(70,688,820)	35,544,964
Balance (in shares) at Dec. 31, 2021		20,684,723	3		
Stock-based Compensation Expense			355,828		355,828
Net (loss) income				(174,224)	(174,224)
Balance at Mar. 31, 2022		\$ 2,068	\$ 106,587,544	\$ (70,863,044)	\$ 35,726,568
Balance (in shares) at Mar. 31, 2022		20,684,723	3		

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - USD (\$)	3 Mont Mar. 31, 2022	hs Ended Mar. 31, 2021
Cash flows from operating activities:		
Net income (loss)	\$ (174,224)	\$ 3,009,081
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in operating		
activities:		
Depreciation and amortization	1,560,870	1,728,829
Bad debt expense (recoveries)	(115,364)	2,984
<u>Inventory and sample inventory reserve</u>	3,594	48,228
Amortization of deferred financing costs and debt discount		12,500
<u>Lease expense</u>	27,962	25,156
<u>Derivative liability</u>	(460,000)	(5,380,000)
<u>Deferred revenue</u>	(70,343)	
Gain on settlement with Vivus	(3,389,941)	
Employee stock-based compensation	355,828	347,207
Non-employee stock-based compensation		97,800
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:		
Accounts receivable	(1,170,025)	(1,044,213)
<u>Inventories</u>	(1,426,818)	193,987
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	237,502	172,051
Accounts payable	(857,643)	(333,273)
Accrued expenses	74,905	698,498
Other current liabilities	161,961	74,992
Other long-term liabilities	(33,965)	(100,408)
Net cash used in operating activities	(5,275,701)	(446,581)
Cash flows from financing activities:		
Payment of promissory note	(900,000)	
Payment of senior debt		(1,592,028)
Payment of portion of senior debt end of term fee		(534,375)
Net cash used in financing activities	(900,000)	(2,126,403)
Net decrease in cash	(6,175,701)	(2,572,984)
Cash, beginning of period		17,139,694
Cash, end of period	17,671,871	14,566,710
Supplemental cash flow information:		
Cash paid for interest during the period		\$ 176,677
Noncash Items:		
Noncash decrease in accrued expenses related to Vivus settlement	(6,520,283)	
Noncash decrease in accrued inventory purchases related to Vivus settlement	(14,203,905)	
Noncash increase in promissory note related to Vivus settlement	10,201,758	
Noncash decrease in API purchase commitment related to Vivus settlement	\$ 6,232,489	

Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation, and Liquidity

Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation, and Liquidity

Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation, and Liquidity

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Nature of Operations, Basis of 1) Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation, and Liquidity

Nature of Operations

Petros Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Petros" or the "Company") is a pharmaceutical company focused on men's health therapeutics with a full range of commercial capabilities including sales, marketing, regulatory and medical affairs, finance, trade relations, pharmacovigilance, market access relations, manufacturing, and distribution.

Petros consists of wholly owned subsidiaries, Metuchen Pharmaceuticals LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Metuchen"), Neurotrope, Inc., a Nevada corporation ("Neurotrope"), Timm Medical Technologies, Inc. ("Timm Medical"), and Pos-T-Vac, LLC ("PTV"). The Company is engaged in the commercialization and development of Stendra®, a U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") approved PDE 5 inhibitor prescription medication for the treatment of erectile dysfunction ("ED"), which we have licensed from Vivus, Inc. ("Vivus"). Petros also markets its own line of ED products in the form of vacuum erection device products through its subsidiaries, Timm Medical and PTV. In addition to ED products, we have acquired an exclusive global license to develop and commercialize H100TM, a novel and patented topical formulation candidate for the treatment of acute Peyronie's disease.

The Company was organized as a Delaware corporation on May 14, 2020 for the purpose of effecting the transactions contemplated by that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 17, 2020 (the "Merger Agreement"), by and between Petros, Neurotrope, PM Merger Sub 1, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros ("Merger Sub 1"), PN Merger Sub 2, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros ("Merger Sub 2"), and Metuchen. The Merger Agreement provided for (1) the merger of Merger Sub 1, with and into Metuchen, with Metuchen surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros (the "Metuchen Merger") and (2) the merger of Merger Sub 2 with and into Neurotrope, with Neurotrope surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petros (the "Neurotrope Merger" and together with the Metuchen Merger, the "Mergers"). As a result of the Mergers, Metuchen and Neurotrope became wholly-owned subsidiaries of Petros, and Petros became a publicly traded corporation on December 1, 2020. On December 7, 2020, Neurotrope completed the spin-off of certain assets, whereby (i) any cash in excess of \$20,000,000, subject to adjustment as provided in the Merger Agreement, and all of the operating assets and liabilities of Neurotrope not retained by Neurotrope in connection with the Mergers were contributed to Synaptogenix, Inc. (formerly known as Neurotrope Bioscience, Inc.), a Delaware corporation ("Synaptogenix"), and a whollyowned subsidiary of Neurotrope.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements include all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, considered necessary to present fairly our financial position, results of operations and cash flows. However, actual results could differ from those estimates. The unaudited interim consolidated results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results that may occur for the full fiscal year. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been omitted pursuant to instructions, rules, and regulations prescribed by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. This

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and notes previously distributed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021.

All transactions between the consolidated entities have been eliminated in consolidation.

Liquidity

The Company has experienced net losses and negative cash flows from operations since our inception. As of March 31, 2022, the Company had cash of \$17.7 million, positive working capital of \$16.5 million, an accumulated deficit of \$70.9 million and used cash in operations during the three months ended March 31, 2022 of \$5.3 million. The Company's plans include, or may include, utilizing its cash and cash equivalents on hand, as well as exploring additional ways to raise capital in addition to increasing cash flows from operations. In January 2022, the Company executed a promissory note in favor of Vivus in connection with the Vivus Settlement Agreement in the principal amount of \$10,201,758. The terms of this promissory note are discussed in Note 8. The Company believes the cash on hand is sufficient to fund operations and debt service through at least May 16, 2023, however for periods after May 16,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies
Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Such estimates include the adequacy of accounts receivable reserves, return reserves, inventory reserves, assessment of long-lived assets, including intangible asset impairment and the valuation of the derivative liability, among others. Actual results could differ from these estimates and changes in these estimates are recorded when known.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to risks common to companies in the pharmaceutical industry including, but not limited to, uncertainties related to commercialization of competitor products, regulatory approvals, dependence on key products, dependence on key customers and suppliers, and protection of intellectual property rights.

The World Health Organization ("WHO") declared the coronavirus ("COVID-19") a global pandemic on March 11, 2020, and since that time many of the previously imposed restrictions and other measures which were instituted in response have been subsequently reduced or lifted. However, the COVID-19 pandemic remains highly unpredictable and dynamic, and its duration and extent continue to be dependent on various developments, such as the emergence of variants to the virus that may cause additional strains of COVID-19, the administration and ultimate effectiveness of vaccines, and the eventual timeline to achieve a sufficient level of herd immunity among the general population. Accordingly, the COVID-19 pandemic may continue to have negative effects on the health of the U.S. economy for the foreseeable future. The Company cannot reasonably estimate the length or severity of the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic, including the emergence of any new variants, such as the Omicron variants, will have on its financial results, and the Company may experience a material adverse impact on its sales, results of operations, and cash flows in fiscal 2022 and beyond.

During 2020, government regulations and the voluntary business practices of the Company and prescribing physicians had prevented in-person visits by sales representatives to physicians' offices. The Company had taken steps to mitigate the negative impact on its businesses of such restrictions. In March 2020, the Company reduced our sales representative head count to reflect the lack of in-person visits. The Company has maintained a core sales team which continued to contact physicians via telephone and videoconference as well as continuing to have webinars provided by the Company's key opinion leaders to other physicians and pharmacists. In response to the spread of COVID-19, in March 2020, the Company closed its administrative offices. In January 2022, the Company sub-leased its Manalapan office and all administrative employees are working remotely for the foreseeable future. The Company has fully resumed in-person interactions by its customer-facing personnel in compliance with local and state restrictions. The Company also continues to engage with customers virtually as the Company seeks to continue to support healthcare professionals and patient care. Since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have experienced a shift from in-person sales to online, telehealth-based sales. These online sales generally have lower gross margins than in-person sales, which has impacted our net revenues.

Revenue Recognition

Prescription Medication Sales

The Company's prescription medication sales consist of sales of Stendra® in the U.S. for the treatment of male erectile dysfunction. Under ASC Topic 606, Revenue Recognition ("Topic 606"), the Company recognizes revenue from prescription medication sales when its performance obligations with a customer has been satisfied. In the contracts with its customers, the Company has identified a single performance obligation to provide Stendra® upon receipt of a customer order. The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the Company's customers obtain control of Stendra®, which is typically upon delivery. The Company invoices its customers after Stendra® has been delivered and invoice payments are generally due within 30 to 75 days of invoice date.

In determining the transaction price, a significant financing component does not exist since the timing from when the Company delivers Stendra® to when the customers pay for the product is typically less than one year. The Company records prescription medication sales

net of any variable consideration, including but not limited to discounts, rebates, returns, chargebacks, and distribution fees. The Company uses the expected value method when estimating its variable consideration, unless terms are specified within contracts. The identified variable consideration is recorded as a reduction of revenue at the time revenues from sales of Stendra® are recognized. The Company recognizes revenue to the extent that it is probable that a significant revenue reversal will not occur in a future period. These estimates may differ from actual consideration received. The Company evaluates these estimates each reporting period to reflect known changes.

As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the reserves for sales deductions were \$4.7 million and \$4.7 million, respectively. The most significant sales deductions included in this reserve relate to returns, contract rebates, and distribution service ("DSA") fees. Our estimates are based on factors such as our direct and indirect customers' buying patterns and the estimated resulting contractual deduction rates, historical experience, specific known market events and estimated future trends, current contractual and statutory requirements, industry data, estimated customer inventory levels, current contract sales terms with our direct and indirect customers, and other competitive factors. Significant judgment and estimation is required in developing the foregoing and other relevant assumptions. The most significant sales deductions are further described below.

Product Returns

Consistent with industry practice, the Company maintains a return policy that generally allows its customers to return Stendra® and receive credit for product within six months prior to expiration date and up to one year after expiration date. The provision for returns is based upon the Company's estimates for future Stendra® returns and historical experience. The provision of returns is part of the variable consideration recorded at the time revenue is recognized. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the reserves for product returns were \$3.8 million and \$3.8 million, respectively, and are included as a component of accrued expenses.

Contract Rebates, Coupon Redemptions and DSA Fees

The Company establishes contracts with wholesalers, chain stores, and indirect customers that provide for rebates, sales incentives, DSA fees and other allowances. Some customers receive rebates upon attaining established sales volumes. Direct rebates are generally rebates paid to direct purchasing customers based on a percentage applied to a direct customer's purchases from us, including fees paid to wholesalers under our DSAs, as described below. Indirect rebates are rebates paid to indirect customers that have purchased our products from a wholesaler under a contract with us.

The Company has entered into DSAs with certain of our significant wholesaler customers that obligate the wholesalers, in exchange for fees paid by us, to: (i) manage the variability of their purchases and inventory levels within specified limits based on product demand and (ii) provide us with specific services, including the provision of periodic retail demand information and current

inventory levels for our pharmaceutical products held at their warehouse locations. See Note 3 Accounts Receivable, net for further discussion of these reserves.

Medical Device Sales

The Company's medical device sales consist of domestic and international sales of men's health products for the treatment of erectile dysfunction. The men's health products do not require a prescription and include Vacuum Erection Devices, PreBoost, VenoSeal, penile injections (Rx), and urinary tract infection tests. Under Topic 606, the Company recognizes revenue from medical device sales when its performance obligations with its customers have been satisfied. In the contracts with its customers, the Company has identified a single performance obligation to provide medical devices upon receipt of a customer order. The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the Company's customers obtain control of the medical device, which is typically upon shipment. The Company invoices its customers after the medical devices have been shipped and invoice payments are generally due within 30 days of invoice date for domestic customers and 90 days for international customers.

In determining the transaction price, a significant financing component does not exist since the timing from when the Company delivers the medical devices to when the customers pay for the product is typically less than one year. The Company records medical device sales net of any variable consideration, including but not limited to returns. The Company uses the expected value method when estimating its variable consideration. The identified variable consideration is recorded as a reduction of revenue at the time revenues from the medical device sales are recognized. The Company recognizes revenue to the extent that it is probable that a significant revenue reversal will not occur in a future period. These estimates may differ from actual consideration received. The Company evaluates these estimates each reporting period to reflect known changes.

Product Returns

Consistent with industry practice, the Company maintains a return policy that generally allows its customers to return medical devices and receive credit for products within 90 days of the sale. The provision for returns is based upon the Company's estimates for future product returns and historical experience. The Company has not made significant changes to the judgments made in applying Topic 606. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the reserves for product returns for medical devices were not significant.

Contract Costs

In relation to customer contracts, the Company incurs costs to fulfill a contract but does not incur costs to obtain a contract. These costs to fulfill a contract do not meet the criteria for capitalization and are expensed as incurred. As such, the Company did not have any contract assets at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Certain assets and liabilities are carried at fair value under U.S. GAAP. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value are to be classified and disclosed in one of the following three levels of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs (other than Level 1 quoted prices), such as quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active

for identical or similar assets or liabilities, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to determining the fair value of the assets or liabilities, including pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques.

Financial instruments recognized at historical amounts in the consolidated balance sheets consist of cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current liabilities. The Company believes that the carrying values of cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

In connection with the Mergers in December 2020, each security holder of Metuchen received an earnout consideration classified as a derivative liability to be paid in the form of Petros Common Stock. The Company estimated their fair value using a Monte Carlo Simulation approach. This fair value measurement is based on significant inputs not observable in the market and thus represents a Level 3 measurement within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of the derivative liability as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was \$0 million and \$0.5 million, respectively. See Note 9 Stockholders' Equity.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees and consultants in accordance with applicable accounting principles, which requires compensation expense related to stock-based transactions, including employee stock options and consultant warrants, to be measured and recognized in the financial statements based on a determination of the fair value of the stock options or warrants. The grant date fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton ("Black-Scholes") pricing model. Employee stock option and consulting expenses are recognized over the employee's or consultant's requisite service period (generally the vesting period of the equity grant).

The Company's option pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility and expected term. Any changes in these highly subjective assumptions can significantly impact stock-based compensation expense. See Note 10 Stock Options.

Income Taxes

The Company is a C corporation, which accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements. Under this method, the Company determines deferred tax assets and liabilities on the basis of the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities by using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent that it believes that these assets are more likely than not to be realized. In making such a determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax-planning strategies, and results of recent operations. If the Company determines that it would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of its net recorded amount, the Company would make an adjustment to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance, which would reduce the provision for income taxes.

The Company records uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740 on the basis of a twostep process in which (1) it determines whether it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained on the basis of the technical merits of the position and (2) for those tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the Company recognizes the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the related tax authority.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits on the income tax expense line in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, no accrued interest or penalties are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet.

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share

The Company computes basic net loss per common share by dividing net loss applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stocks outstanding during the period, excluding the anti-dilutive effects of stock options and warrants to purchase common stocks. The Company computes diluted net loss per common stock by dividing the net loss applicable to common stocks by the sum of the weighted-average number of common stocks outstanding during the period plus the potential dilutive effects of its convertible preferred stocks, stock options and warrants to purchase common stocks, but such items are excluded if their effect is anti-dilutive. Because the impact of these items is anti-dilutive during periods of net loss, there was no difference between the Company's basic and diluted net loss per stock of common stock for the three months ended March 31, 2022. See Note 13 Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Pending Adoption as of March 31, 2022

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. ASU 2016-13, together with a series of subsequently issued related ASUs, has been codified in Topic 326. Topic 326 establishes new requirements for companies to estimate expected credit losses when measuring certain financial assets, including accounts receivables. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the new guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Accounts Receivable, net

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Accounts Receivable, net Accounts Receivable, net

3) Accounts Receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net is comprised of the following:

	March 31,	December 31,
	2022	2021
Gross accounts receivables	\$4,528,812	\$3,363,827
Distribution service fees	(317,247)	(371,310)
Chargebacks accrual	(5,880)	_
Cash discount allowances	(202,589)	(159,446)
Allowance for doubtful accounts	(262,321)	(377,685)
Total accounts receivable, net	\$3,740,775	\$2,455,386

For the three months ended March 31, 2022, gross sales from customers representing 10% or more of the Company's total gross sales included three customers which represented approximately 30%, 23% and 22% of total gross sales, respectively. For the three months ended March 31, 2021, gross sales from customers representing 10% or more of the Company's total gross sales included one customer which represented approximately 88% of total gross sales.

Receivables from customers representing 10% or more of the Company's gross accounts receivable included two customers at March 31, 2022 equal to 35% and 31%, respectively, of the Company's total gross accounts receivables. Receivables from customers representing 10% or more of the Company's gross accounts receivable included three customers at December 31, 2021 equal to 40%, 19% and 15%, respectively, of the Company's total gross accounts receivables.

Inventories

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

InventoriesInventories

4) Inventories

Inventory is comprised of the following:

	March 31, 2022	Dece	ember 31, 2021
Raw materials	\$ 1,854,160	\$	359,741
Finished goods	88,713		159,908
Total inventory	\$ 1,942,873	\$	519,649

Finished goods are net of valuation reserves of \$386,892 and \$383,298 as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. Raw materials are net of valuation reserves of \$2,872,977 as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, which is related to bulk inventory that is fully reserved.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

5) Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets are comprised of the following:

	March 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Prepaid insurance	\$ 128,004	\$ 73,223
Prepaid FDA fees	554,120	831,179
Prepaid coupon fees	71,500	71,500
API purchase commitment		
asset (see Note 13)	1,419,538	1,419,538
Due from wholesalers	609,059	609,059
Other prepaid expenses	624,823	605,422
Other current assets	75,542	110,167
Total prepaid expenses and		
other current assets	\$ 3,482,586	\$ 3,720,088
asset (see Note 13) Due from wholesalers Other prepaid expenses Other current assets Total prepaid expenses and	609,059 624,823 75,542	609,059 605,422 110,167

Intangible Assets

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Intangible AssetsIntangible Assets

6) Intangible Assets

Balance at December 31, 2020	\$32,160,919
Amortization expense	(6,867,770)
Balance at December 31, 2021	25,293,149
Amortization expense	(1,558,315)
Balance at March 31, 2022	\$23,734,834

The future annual amortization related to the Company's intangible assets is as follows as of March 31, 2022:

2022 (remaining 9 months)	4,633,426
2023	5,445,729
2024	4,650,787
2025	2,716,011
2026	2,201,720
Thereafter	4,087,161
Total	\$23,734,834

The intangible assets held by the Company are the Stendra® product, Timm Medical product, and PTV product and are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of 10 years, 12 years, and 12 years, respectively. The carrying value of the Stendra® product, Timm Medical product, and PTV product as of March 31, 2022 are \$17.8 million, \$4.6 million and \$1.3 million, respectively. The carrying value of the Stendra® product, Timm Medical product, and PTV product as of December 31, 2021 were \$19.1 million, \$4.9 million and \$1.4 million, respectively. The Company determined that no impairment existed as of March 31, 2022.

Accrued Expenses

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Accrued Expenses Accrued Expenses

7) Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses are comprised of the following:

	March 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Accrued price		
protection (see note 13)	\$ —	\$ 1,853,979
Accrued product		
returns	3,763,211	6,192,845
Accrued contract		
rebates	376,937	379,242
Due to Vivus (see Note		
13)		2,267,523
Due to third-party		
logistics provider	349,410	479,178
Accrued bonuses	532,729	527,563
Accrued professional		
fees	14,957	125,392
Other accrued expenses	474,762	131,662
Total accrued expenses	\$ 5,512,006	\$ 11,957,384

Debt Debt

8) Debt

Promissory Note

In connection with the Settlement Agreement entered into with Vivus (see Note 13), Petros executed an interest-bearing promissory note (the "No principal amount of \$10,201,758. The parties also entered into a Security Agreement to secure Petros' obligations under the Note.

Under the terms of the Note, the original principal amount of \$10,201,758 is payable in consecutive quarterly installments of principal and interes 2022 through January 1, 2027. Interest on the principal amount will accrue at a rate of 6% per year. The Company may prepay the Note, in whole with no premium or penalty. In the event that the Company defaults under the Security Agreement, all principal outstanding under the Note at the bear interest at a rate of 9% per year until the full and final payment of all principal and interest under the Note (regardless of whether any default Pursuant to the Security Agreement, dated January 18, 2022, the Company granted to Vivus a continuing security interest in all of its Stendra® A rights under the License Agreement.

During the three months ended March 31, 2022, the Company recorded \$153,026 of interest expense related to the Note.

Senior Debt

The Company did not have any senior indebtedness as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

On September 30, 2016, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Hercules, a third party, for a \$35 million term loan ("Senior Debt") very the greater of either (i) Prime plus 7.25% or (ii) 10.75%. The Senior Debt included an additional Paid-In-Kind ("PIK") interest that increased the monthly basis at an annual rate of 1.35% and a \$787,500 end of term charge.

On November 22, 2017, the Company amended its loan agreement with Hercules ("First Amendment"). A covenant was added, in which the Comminimum EBITDA, as defined, target for the trailing twelve-month period, ending June 30, 2018. The end of term charge was increased from \$\frac{1}{2}\$ minimum EBITDA for each of the trailing six months and the fixed charge coverage ratio (1:1 to 0.9:1) were reduced. The Company was also require principal.

Monthly principal payments, including interest, commenced November 1, 2018 with the outstanding balance of the Senior Debt due in full on No term charge was being recognized as interest expense and accreted over the term of the Senior Debt using the effective interest method.

On April 13, 2020, the Company amended its loan agreement with Hercules. The amendment waived all financial covenant defaults for all perithe period ending March 31, 2020. The amendment also included the following changes:

- Removed the Adjusted EBITDA and Fixed Cost Coverage Ratio Covenants.
- Extended the maturity date from October 1, 2020 to April 2021, which was further extendable to December 1, 2021 upon achieving the defined in the agreement.
- Increased the cash interest rate from the greater of (a) 10.75% or (b) 10.75% plus the US WSJ Prime minus 4.50% to the greater of (a) 1 the US WSJ Prime minus 4.25%.
- Removed the PIK interest rate.
- Removed the prepayment penalty.

The end of term charge of \$1,068,750 was partially extended with \$534,375 paid on October 1, 2020 and \$534,375 paid on February 1, 2021.

Effective September 30, 2020, the Company and Hercules entered into the Third Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement ("Third Amendment only payments commencing on October 1, 2020 and continuing through December 22, 2020 unless the Company raised net cash proceeds of at I equity or debt financing or other transaction on or before December 21, 2020. The Third Amendment also amended the minimum cash, minimum EBITDA financial covenants. On that same date, Juggernaut Capital Partners III, L.P., Hercules and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. entered into an escreagement") to escrow funds amounting to approximately \$1.5 million, an amount equal to the aggregate of certain principal payments due to as amended. In connection with the consummation of the Mergers, the funds held in escrow were disbursed back to Juggernaut Capital Partner Agreement was terminated.

The Company satisfied the maturity date extension requirement pursuant to funds retained upon the closing of the Mergers in December 2020. And a maturity date of December 1, 2021.

On November 3, 2021, the Company repaid \$1,179,651 towards the senior debt. This payment satisfied the remaining balance of the senior debt a

Interest expense on the Senior Debt was \$173,412 for the three months ended March 31, 2021. As of December 31, 2021, there was \$0 of accrued

Stockholders' Equity

Stockholders' Equity
Stockholders' Equity

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

9) Stockholders' Equity

On January 26, 2021, 500 shares of the Company's Preferred Stock were converted into 60,606 shares of the Company's common stock.

Effective January 1, 2021, the Company entered into a Marketing and Consulting Agreement (the "CorIRAgreement") with CorProminence, I certain shareholder information and relation services. The term of the CorIRAgreement is for one year with automatic consecutive one-year rener for the shareholder information and relation services, the Company will pay the Consultant a monthly retainer of \$7,500 and issued 30,000 restrict common stock to the Consultant on March 24, 2021 (the "CorIR Grant Date"). The restricted shares vested immediately on the CorIR Grant Date

Effective April 1, 2021, the Company entered into a Consulting and Advisory Agreement (the "King Agreement") with Tania King, an empl Partners LLP, for certain services. The term of the King Agreement is indefinite but may be terminated by either party, with or without caus consulting and advisory services, the Company will pay Ms. King a monthly fee of \$4,000, an additional \$12,000 payment included with the fi provided since January 1, 2021, and issue restricted stock units for shares of the Company's common stock ("RSU's") with a cash value of \$72,00 (the "King Grant Date"). The RSU's shall vest and settle in full on the one-year anniversary of the King Grant Date. On April 7, 2022, the Co grant of 60,505 RSU's of the Company's common stock with a value of \$72,001 as of the date of the grant. The RSU's vest and settle in full on the additional grant date.

Effective June 4, 2021, the Company entered into a Service Agreement with IRTH Communications, LLC ("IRTH") for certain investor rel Agreement"). The term of the IRTH Agreement is for one year with an optional one-year renewal term. As consideration for the services, the Comfee of \$6,750 per month for the term of the IRTH Agreement and issued 28,338 restricted shares of the Company's common stock with a value the grant (the "IRTH Grant Date"). The restricted shares vest immediately on the IRTH Agreement Grant Date.

Contingent Consideration

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, each security holder of Metuchen received a right to receive such security holder's pro rata stock of an aggreg Petros Common Stock potentially issuable upon the achievement of certain milestones set forth in the Merger Agreement. The milestones are for price and market capitalization, as defined over a two-year period.

Market Capitalization/Gross Proceeds Earnout Payments

In connection with the Mergers, each security holder of Metuchen received the right to receive earnout consideration, which was liability classified Petros Common Stock if either Petros' Market Capitalization (as defined in the Merger Agreement) or Petros receives aggregate gross proceeds the milestones set forth in the Merger Agreement, as discussed below. Each milestone earnout payment was only achievable and payable one time a milestone. In no event will the sum of the milestone earnout payments be greater than 10,232,090 shares of Petros Common Stock. As of March and have not been achieved. The fair value of the derivative liability was \$0 and \$0.5 million as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respective

Metuchen equity holders will have the opportunity to receive the following during the period ending December 2022:

- a. The Earnout Payment shall be equal to 2,000,000 shares of Petros Common Stock if:
 - i. Petros' Market Capitalization (as defined in the Merger Agreement) is greater than or equal to \$250,000,000 for a period of twenty any thirty (30) consecutive trading day period with a Closing Price of no less than \$17.50 on each such trading day; or
 - ii. Petros receives aggregate gross proceeds of at least \$25,000,000 in an offering (or series of offerings within a sixty (60) calendar day Common Stock with a price per share of Petros Common Stock sold equal to no less than \$17.50 in each offering (or series of offering a Market Capitalization immediately prior to each such offering (or series of offerings) equal to at least \$250,000,000.
- b. The Earnout Payment shall be equal to 2,000,000 shares of Petros Common Stock if:
 - i. Petros' Market Capitalization is greater than or equal to \$300,000,000 for a period of twenty (20) trading days during any thirty (30) period with a Closing Price of no less than \$18.75 on each such trading day; or
 - ii. Petros receives aggregate gross proceeds of at least \$30,000,000 in an offering (or series of offerings within a sixty (60) calendar da Common Stock with a price per share of Petros Common Stock sold equal to no less than \$18.75 in each offering (or series of offering a Market Capitalization immediately prior to each such offering (or series of offerings) equal to at least \$300,000,000.
- c. The Earnout Payment shall be equal to 3,000,000 shares of Petros Common Stock if:
 - i. Petros' Market Capitalization is greater than or equal to \$400,000,000 for a period of twenty (20) trading days during any thirty (30) period with a Closing Price of no less than \$22.50 on each such trading day; or
 - ii. Petros receives aggregate gross proceeds of at least \$40,000,000 in an offering (or series of offerings within a sixty (60) calendar da Common Stock with a price per share of Petros Common Stock sold equal to no less than \$22.50 in each offering (or series of offering a Market Capitalization immediately prior to each such offering (or series of offerings) equal to at least \$400,000,000.
- d. The Earnout Payment shall be equal to 3,232,090 shares of Petros Common Stock if:
 - Petros' Market Capitalization is greater than or equal to \$500,000,000 for a period of twenty (20) trading days during any thirty (30) period with a Closing Price of no less than \$23.75 on each such trading day; or

Petros receives aggregate gross proceeds of at least \$50,000,000 in an offering (or series of offerings within a sixty (60) calendar day Stock with a price per share of Petros Common Stock sold equal to no less than \$23.75 in each offering (or series of offerings) and Capitalization immediately prior to each such offering (or series of offerings) equal to at least \$500,000,000,000.

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units ("RSU's")

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units ("RSU's")

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units ("RSU's")

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

10) Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units ("RSU's")

The Company established the 2020 Omnibus Incentive Compensation plan (the "2020 Plan") which provides for the grants of awards to our directors, officers, employees, and consultants. The 2020 Plan authorizes the grant of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards, stock units and other stock-based awards and cash-based awards. On December 22, 2021, our stockholders approved the Second Amendment to the 2020 Plan to increase the total number of shares of common stock issuable under the 2020 Plan by 1,521,654 shares to a total of 2,600,000 shares of common stock. As of March 31, 2022, there were 2,600,000 shares authorized and 1,817,948 shares available for issuance under the 2020 Plan.

The following is a summary of stock options for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and for the year ended December 31, 2021:

			Weighted-Average	
		Weighted-	Remaining	Aggregate Intrinsic
	Number of	Average	Contractual	Value
	Shares	Exercise Price	Term (Years)	(\$ in thousands)
Options outstanding at				
December 31, 2020	574,331	\$ 51.43	0.9	\$ —
Options granted	615,669	3.38	9.23	_
Less: options forfeited	_	_	_	_
Less: options expired/cancelled	(574,331)	51.43	_	_
Less: options exercised	_	_	_	_
Options outstanding at December				
31, 2021	615,669	3.38	9.23	_
Options granted	50,000	3.34	9.76	_
Less: options forfeited	_	_	_	_
Less: options expired/cancelled	_	_	_	_
Less: options exercised	_		_	_
Options outstanding at				
March 31, 2022	665,669	\$ 3.38	9.06	\$
Options exercisable at				
March 31, 2022	381,752	\$ 3.44	9.07	\$

The following is a summary of RSU's for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and for the year ended December 31, 2021:

				Weighted-Average	
		W	eighted-	Remaining	Aggregate Intrinsic
	Number of	A	verage	Contractual	Value
	Shares	Exer	cise Price	Term (Years)	(\$ in thousands)
RSU's outstanding at December 31,					
2020	_	\$	_	_	\$ —
RSU's granted	116,383		3.29	9.84	_
Less: RSU's forfeited	_		_	_	_
Less: RSU's expired/cancelled	_		_	_	_
Less: RSU's exercised					

RSU's outstanding at December 31,				
2021	116,383	3.29	9.84	_
RSU's granted	_	_	_	_
Less: RSU's forfeited	_	_	_	_
Less: RSU's expired/cancelled	_	_	_	_
Less: RSU's exercised				
RSU's outstanding at March 31,				
2022	116,383	\$ 3.29	9.60	\$
RSU's exercisable at March 31,				
2022		<u>\$</u>		<u> </u>

On January 4, 2022, pursuant to a consulting agreement, the Company awarded a grant of 50,000 options to purchase shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price of \$3.34 per share. The shares of common stock underlying the options vested 100% upon issuance.

On April 7, 2022, the Company awarded the four Directors grants of 248,742 total RSU's with a stock price of \$1.19 per share. The RSU's shall vest 100% on one year anniversary of the date of grant. Also on April 7, 2022, Tania King, an employee of Juggernaut Capital Partners LLP, pursuant to her contract, was granted 60,505 RSUs with a stock price of \$1.19 per share. The RSU's shall vest 100% on one year anniversary of the date of grant.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 was \$355,828 and \$347,207, respectively, and is recorded in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

Common Stock Warrants

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Common Stock Warrants

Common Stock Warrants

11) Common Stock Warrants

The following is a summary of warrants for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and for the year ended December 31, 2021:

	Number of Shares
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2020	4,407,962
Warrants issued	7,853,558
Warrants exercised	(2,014,586)
Warrants expired	(207,913)
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2021 and	
March 31, 2022	10,039,021

As of March 31, 2022, the Company's warrants by expiration date were as follows:

Number of Warrants	 Exercise Price	Expiration Date
2,780	\$ 1.60	August 23, 2023
22,800	35.65	June 1, 2024
74,864	21.85	June 17, 2024
20,043	31.25	June 19, 2024
22,800	26.55	September 1, 2024
10,500	12.738	September 16, 2024
22,800	4.30	December 1, 2024
28,000	5.65	March 2, 2025
28,000	7.30	June 1, 2025
28,000	5.50	September 1, 2025
28,000	4.705	December 1, 2025
2,221,829	7.50	December 1, 2025
908,498	17.50	December 1, 2025
623,303	51.25	December 1, 2025
157,832	125.00	December 1, 2025
1,751,311	1.715	October 19, 2026
2,337,719	3.50	December 2, 2026
1,749,942	3.50	December 27, 2026
10,039,021		

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

12) Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) per Common Share

The following is a reconciliation of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding used in calculating basic and diluted net loss per share:

	For the Three Months Ended March 31,			Ended
		2022	2	2021
Numerator				
Net income (loss)	\$	(174,224)	\$3,0	09,081
Denominator				
Weighted-average common shares for basic net				
income (loss) per share	2	0,684,723	9,7	53,086
Effect of common share equivalents within				
common stock warrants				1,600
Weighted-average common shares for diluted net				
(loss) income per share	2	0,684,723	9,7	54,686
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common				
share	\$	(0.01)	\$	0.31

The following table summarizes the potentially dilutive securities convertible into common shares that were excluded from the calculation of diluted net income (loss) per share because their inclusion would have been antidilutive:

	For the Three I	For the Three Months Ended		
	Marc	h 31,		
	2022	2021		
Stock Options	665,669	790,000		
RSU's	116,383	_		
Warrants	10,039,021	4,405,182		
Total	10,821,073	5,195,182		

Marketing, Licensing and Distribution Agreements

Marketing, Licensing and Distribution Agreements.

Marketing, Licensing and Distribution Agreements

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

13) Marketing, Licensing and Distribution Agreements

(a) Vivus

On September 30, 2016, the Company entered into a License and Commercialization Agreement (the "License Agreement") with Vivus, Inc ("Vivus") to purchase and receive the license for the commercialization and exploitation of Stendra® for a one-time fee of \$70 million. The License Agreement gives the Company the right to sell Stendra® in the U.S and its territories, Canada, South America, and India. In December 2000, Vivus originally was granted the license from Mitsubishi Tanabe Pharma Corporation ("MTPC") to develop, market, and manufacture Stendra®. Stendra® was approved by the Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") in April 2012 to treat male erectile dysfunction.

Under the License Agreement, the Company will pay MTPC a royalty of 5% on the first \$500 million of net sales and 6% of net sales thereafter. In consideration for the trademark assignment and the use of the trademarks associated with the product and the Vivus technology, the Company shall (a) during the first, second, and third years following the expiration of the Royalty Period in a particular country in the Company's territory, pay to Vivus a royalty equal to 2% of the net sales of products in such territory; and (b) following the fourth and fifth years following the end of the Royalty Period in such territory, pay to Vivus a royalty equal to 1% of the net sales of products in such territory. Thereafter, no further royalties shall be owed with respect to net sales of Stendra® in such territory.

In addition, the Company will be responsible for a pro-rata portion of a \$6 million milestone payment to be paid once \$250 million in sales has been reached on the separate revenue stream of Stendra®. Should the \$250 million of sales threshold be reached, the Company will be responsible for \$3.2 million of the milestone payment.

In connection with the License Agreement, the Company and Vivus also entered into a Supply Agreement. The License Agreement, was terminated, effective September 30, 2021.

On January 18, 2022, Petros and Vivus entered into a Settlement Agreement (the "Vivus Settlement Agreement") related to the minimum purchase requirements under the Vivus Supply Agreement in 2018, 2019 and 2020 and certain reimbursement rights asserted by a third-party retailer in connection with quantities of the Company's Stendra® product that were delivered to the third-party retailer and later returned. In connection with the Vivus Settlement Agreement, Petros retained approximately \$7.3 million of API inventory under the Vivus Supply Agreement. In exchange for the API and reduction of current liabilities, Petros executed an interest-bearing promissory note (the "Note") in favor of Vivus in the original principal amount of \$10,201,758, which the Company believes approximates fair value (See Note 8).

In addition to the payments to be made in accordance with the Note, the Company further agreed in the Vivus Settlement Agreement to (i) grant to Vivus a right of first refusal to provide certain types of debt and convertible equity (but not preferred equity) until the Note is paid in full, and (ii) undertake to make certain regulatory submissions to effectuate Vivus' ability to exercise its rights under the License Agreement. On January 18, 2022, the Company made a prepayment of the obligations under the Note in the amount of \$900,000, and a payment of \$1,542,904 with respect to a purchase order made in 2021 to Vivus. In consideration of these payment and upon the Company's satisfaction of certain regulatory submissions Vivus released 50% of the quantity of bulk Stendra® tablets on January 18, 2022 under the Company's existing open purchase order (the "Open Purchase Order") being held by Vivus, which represents approximately a six-month supply

of inventory. Under the Vivus Settlement Agreement Vivus also agreed to release the remaining 50% of the quantity of bulk Stendra® tablets under the Open Purchase Order upon the Company's satisfaction of the remaining regulatory submission requirements (not to exceed 180 days from the date of the Vivus Settlement Agreement). The Vivus Settlement Agreement stipulated that Vivus is the sole owner of all API unless or until such time as certain quantities of API are shipped to the Company upon the fulfillment of the aforementioned payment conditions.

As a result of entering into the Vivus Settlement Agreement, the Company decreased accrued expenses by \$6.5 million and decreased accrued inventory purchases by \$14.2 million; which were partially offset by a decrease in API purchase commitments of \$6.2 million and an increase to liabilities for the Note of \$10.2 million (which is net of the \$0.9 million prepayment on the Note). As a result, the Company recorded a \$3.4 million gain on settlement for the three months ended March 31, 2022.

As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company has \$0 and \$14.2 million, respectively, of accrued inventory purchases related to the Company's minimum purchase obligations with Vivus for raw material or API inventory. As API inventory is not a finished good, the Company does not have title to the product and classifies API Inventory in either other current assets or other assets, depending on whether the Company expects to take title to the product within one year from the date of the financial statements. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, there was \$1.4 million and

\$1.4 million, respectively, included in other current assets (see Note 5 Prepaid and Other Current Assets). As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, there was \$4.8 million and \$11.0 million included as non-current on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, respectively. The Company reviews its inventory levels and purchase commitments for excess amounts that it is required to purchase but projects it will not be able to sell prior to product expiry. The Company did not record any reserve for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021.

During the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company incurred royalties to MTPC for Stendra® of \$76,238 and \$160,032, respectively. Royalties incurred were included in cost of goods sold in the consolidated statements of operations. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company had a receivable for royalties of \$4,897 and \$81,136, respectively, which is included in other current assets in prepaid expenses and other current assets (see Note 5 Prepaid and Other Current Assets).

The license agreement between MTPC and Vivus ("MTPC License") contains certain termination rights that would allow MTPC to terminate the agreement if Vivus were to breach any of the terms of the MTPC License or become insolvent or bankrupt. In the event that MTPC terminates the MTPC License with Vivus because of any contractual breach the Company has step-in rights with MTPC, which would allow the Company to continue to sell Stendra®.

(b) Patheon

Following the termination of the Vivus Supply Agreement, Petros, through its subsidiary Metuchen, entered into a Technology Transfer Service Agreement on January 20, 2022 with Patheon Pharmaceuticals Inc., part of Thermo Fisher Scientific ("Patheon"), pursuant to which the Company and Patheon agreed to collaborate as strategic partners for commercial production of Stendra® tablets at Patheon's facilities in Cincinnati, Ohio. Under the Agreement, Patheon or one of its affiliates will provide pharmaceutical development and technology transfer services in order to establish and validate its ability to manufacture supply of the Company's Stendra® product. Any

commercial sale of product manufactured during the performance of the Agreement must be subject to a subsequent commercial manufacturing services agreement (with associated quality agreement) between the parties before it can be offered for commercial sale.

(c) Hybrid

In March 2020, the Company acquired the exclusive license to H100™ from Hybrid. H100™ is a topical candidate with at least one active ingredient and potentially a combination of ingredients responsible for the improvement of penile curvature during the acute phase of Peyronie's disease. The Company paid an initial license fee of \$100,000, with an additional \$900,000 payment due upon obtainment of orphan indication for H100™ and termination of Hybrid's existing agreement with a compounding pharmacy, and additional annual payments of \$125,000, \$150,000 and \$200,000 due on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the license agreement and \$250,000 annual payments due thereafter. The Company is also required to make a \$1,000,000 payment upon first commercial sale and a sliding scale of percentage payments on net sales in the low single digits. Annual anniversary payments will not be required after commercialization. The Company is also obligated to make royalty payments between 3-6% of any net sales. In addition, the Company may terminate at any time after first anniversary, without cause, upon ninety (90) days' notice.

The Company has treated the acquisition as an asset acquisition and has concluded that the asset acquired and the upfront payment should be expensed as it was considered an IPR&D asset with no alternative future uses.

On September 24, 2020, the Company and Hybrid entered into a letter agreement, pursuant to which the term of the license agreement was extended for an additional six months to March 24, 2021. In consideration for the extension, the Company paid Hybrid \$50,000 in October 2020 and an additional \$100,000 in December 2020. On March 31, 2021, the Company and Hybrid, entered into a second letter agreement, pursuant to which the parties agreed to extend the Second Period (as defined in the Hybrid License) for an additional six (6) months to September 24, 2021. Additionally, the Company agreed to pay Hybrid a one-time, non-creditable and non-refundable payment of \$200,000, which was paid within seven calendar days of entering into the agreement. On September 24, 2021, the Company entered into an amendment to the license agreement in which the Company exercised its right not to terminate the Hybrid License even though orphan drug status had not yet been granted by the FDA. Along with this election, the Company paid Hybrid \$150,000 on October 1, 2021, \$200,000 on October 31, 2021, \$200,000 on December 1, 2021, \$200,000 on March 24, 2022.

Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments and Contingencies

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

14) Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Employment Agreements

The Company has employment agreements with certain executive officers and key employees that provide for, among other things, salary and performance bonuses.

In connection with the consummation of the Mergers, on December 24, 2020, the Company and Mr. Keith Lavan entered into a Separation Agreement (the "Separation Agreement"), pursuant to which Mr. Lavan resigned as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and agreed to serve as an advisor to the Company through December 31, 2020 (the "Separation Date"). Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, in addition to other benefits, Mr. Lavan received a stay-on bonus of \$50,000 for continuing to remain employed by the Company through the Separation Date. For his services as an advisor, the Company agreed to pay Mr. Lavan an amount equal to 50% of his base salary as of immediately prior to the Separation Date. The Company paid 70% of such amount on January 15, 2021 and 30% of such amount in equal installments from the Separation Date through June 30, 2021. In addition, Mr. Lavan executed a general release of liabilities in favor of the Company.

(b) Legal Proceedings

On July 14, 2020, Greg Ford, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, was terminated. On July 14, 2020, Mr. Ford, through his attorney, claimed that he was entitled to severance pay pursuant to an employment agreement following the termination of his employment on that same date. This claim is currently at an early stage where the Company is unable to determine the likelihood of any unfavorable outcome.

The Company is not currently involved in any other significant claims or legal actions that, in the opinion of management, will have a material adverse impact on the Company's operations, financial position or cash flows.

(c) Operating Leases

The Company has commitments under operating leases for office and warehouse space used in its operations. The Company's leases have remaining lease terms ranging from 2.4 years to 4.8 years.

On November 30, 2021, the Company entered into a sublease with respect to its entire headquarters facility. The sublessor delivered a \$14,000 security deposit to the Company on the lease commencement date and also agreed to pay \$7,000 per month for the term beginning January 10, 2022 and continuing until the expiration of the head lease on August 30, 2024. The Company will account for this sublease as an operating lease in accordance with the lessor accounting guidance within ASC 842.

The components of lease expense were consisted entirely of fixed lease costs related to operating leases. These costs were \$44,812 for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Fixed lease costs for the three months ended March 31, 2022 were offset by sublease income of \$21,000.

Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases was as follows:

As of March 31, 2022 As of December 31, 2021

Operating lease ROU asset:

Other assets	\$ 447,595	\$ 475,557
Operating lease liability:		
Other current liabilities	\$ 129,458	\$ 125,579
Other long-term liabilities	371,053	405,018
Total operating lease liability	\$ 500,511	\$ 530,597

Supplemental lease term and discount rate information related to leases was as follows:

	As of March 31, 2022	As of December 31, 2021
Weighted-average remaining lease terms -		
operating leases	3.4 years	3.7 years
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases	12.6 %	12.6 %

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases was as follows:

	For the Th	ree Months
	Ended March 31,	
	2022	2021
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of		
lease liabilities:		
Operating cash flows from operating leases	\$46,935	\$45,942

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable leases as of March 31, 2022, were as follows:

Lease Liability Maturity Analysis	Operating Leases
2022 (remaining 9 months)	140,805
2023	189,374
2024	155,242
2025	81,107
2026	82,324
Thereafter	<u></u>
Total lease payments	648,852
Less: Imputed Interest	(148,341)
Total	\$ 500,511

Future minimum sublease income under non-cancelable leases as of March 31, 2022, were as follows:

Sublease income	Operating Leases
2022 (remaining 9 months)	63,000
2023	84,000
2024	56,000
Total	\$ 203,000

As of March 31, 2022, the Company had no operating leases that had not yet commenced.

Segment Information

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Segment Information Segment Information

15) Segment Information

The Company manages its operations through two segments. The Company's two segments, Prescription Medications and Medical Devices, focus on the treatment of male erectile dysfunction. The Prescription Medications segment consists primarily of operations related to Stendra®, which is sold generally in the United States, and H100TM for the treatment of Peyronie's disease. The Medical Devices segment consists primarily of operations related to vacuum erection devices, which are sold domestically and internationally. The Company separately presents the costs associated with certain corporate functions as Corporate, primarily consisting of unallocated operating expenses including costs that were not specific to a particular segment but are general to the group, expenses incurred for administrative and accounting staff, general liability and other insurance, professional fees and other similar corporate expenses. Interest and other income (expense), net is also not allocated to the operating segments.

The Company's results of operations by reportable segment for the three months ended March 31, 2022 are summarized as follows:

	Prescription	Medical		
	Medications	Devices	Corporate	Consolidated
Net sales	\$ 1,524,768	\$ 940,401	\$ —	\$ 2,465,169
Cost of goods sold	138,181	334,159	_	472,340
Selling, general and administrative				
expenses	1,711,019	663,591	1,523,128	3,897,738
Gain on settlement with Vivus	(3,389,941)	_	_	(3,389,941)
Research and development expenses	405,360	_	_	405,360
Depreciation and amortization expense	1,269,663	291,207	_	1,560,870
Change in fair value of derivative				
liability	_	_	(460,000)	(460,000)
Interest expense	_	_	153,026	153,026
Income tax (expense)	_	_	_	_
Net income (loss)	\$ 1,390,486	\$(348,556)	\$(1,216,154)	\$ (174,224)

The Company's results of operations by reportable segment for the three months ended March 31, 2021 are summarized as follows:

	Prescription	Medical		
	Medications	Devices	Corporate	Consolidated
Net sales	\$3,200,647	\$ 874,959	\$ —	\$ 4,075,606
Cost of goods sold	389,281	254,105	_	643,386
Selling, general and administrative				
expenses	1,734,333	546,995	1,600,389	3,881,717
Research and development expense	19,181	_	_	19,181
Depreciation and amortization expense	1,398,270	330,559	_	1,728,829
Change in fair value of derivative				
liability	_	_	(5,380,000)	(5,380,000)
Interest expense	_	_	173,412	173,412
Income tax benefit		_		_
Net income (loss)	\$ (340,418)	\$(256,700)	\$ 3,606,199	\$ 3,009,081

The following table reflects net sales by geographic region for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021:

For the Three Months Ended

	Marc	ch 31,
Net sales	2022	2021
United States	\$2,045,624	\$3,704,523
International	419,545	371,083
	\$2,465,169	\$4,075,606

No individual country other than the United States accounted for 10% of total sales for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021.

The Company's assets by reportable segment and reconciliation of segment assets to consolidated assets as of March 31, 2022, are summarized as follows:

	Prescription		
	Medications	Medical Devices	Consolidated
Intangible assets, net	\$17,804,298	\$ 5,930,536	\$23,734,834
Total segment assets	\$48,240,984	\$ 7,623,163	\$55,864,147

The Company's assets by reportable segment and reconciliation of segment assets to consolidated assets as of December 31, 2021, are summarized as follows:

	Prescription		
	Medications	Medical Devices	Consolidated
Intangible assets, net	\$19,071,407	\$ 6,221,742	\$25,293,149
Total segment assets	\$59,657,514	\$ 7,732,544	\$67,390,058

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Policies)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Use of Estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Such estimates include the adequacy of accounts receivable reserves, return reserves, inventory reserves, assessment of long-lived assets, including intangible asset impairment and the valuation of the derivative liability, among others. Actual results could differ from these estimates and changes in these estimates are recorded when known.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to risks common to companies in the pharmaceutical industry including, but not limited to, uncertainties related to commercialization of competitor products, regulatory approvals, dependence on key products, dependence on key customers and suppliers, and protection of intellectual property rights.

The World Health Organization ("WHO") declared the coronavirus ("COVID-19") a global pandemic on March 11, 2020, and since that time many of the previously imposed restrictions and other measures which were instituted in response have been subsequently reduced or lifted. However, the COVID-19 pandemic remains highly unpredictable and dynamic, and its duration and extent continue to be dependent on various developments, such as the emergence of variants to the virus that may cause additional strains of COVID-19, the administration and ultimate effectiveness of vaccines, and the eventual timeline to achieve a sufficient level of herd immunity among the general population. Accordingly, the COVID-19 pandemic may continue to have negative effects on the health of the U.S. economy for the foreseeable future. The Company cannot reasonably estimate the length or severity of the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic, including the emergence of any new variants, such as the Omicron variants, will have on its financial results, and the Company may experience a material adverse impact on its sales, results of operations, and cash flows in fiscal 2022 and beyond.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue Recognition

Prescription Medication Sales

The Company's prescription medication sales consist of sales of Stendra® in the U.S. for the treatment of male erectile dysfunction. Under ASC Topic 606, Revenue Recognition ("Topic 606"), the Company recognizes revenue from prescription medication sales when its performance obligations with a customer has been satisfied. In the contracts with its customers, the Company has identified a single performance obligation to provide Stendra® upon receipt of a customer order. The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the Company's customers obtain control of Stendra®, which is typically upon delivery. The Company invoices its customers after Stendra® has been delivered and invoice payments are generally due within 30 to 75 days of invoice date.

In determining the transaction price, a significant financing component does not exist since the timing from when the Company delivers Stendra® to when the customers pay for the product is typically less than one year. The Company records prescription medication sales

net of any variable consideration, including but not limited to discounts, rebates, returns, chargebacks, and distribution fees. The Company uses the expected value method when estimating

its variable consideration, unless terms are specified within contracts. The identified variable consideration is recorded as a reduction of revenue at the time revenues from sales of Stendra® are recognized. The Company recognizes revenue to the extent that it is probable that a significant revenue reversal will not occur in a future period. These estimates may differ from actual consideration received. The Company evaluates these estimates each reporting period to reflect known changes.

As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the reserves for sales deductions were \$4.7 million and \$4.7 million, respectively. The most significant sales deductions included in this reserve relate to returns, contract rebates, and distribution service ("DSA") fees. Our estimates are based on factors such as our direct and indirect customers' buying patterns and the estimated resulting contractual deduction rates, historical experience, specific known market events and estimated future trends, current contractual and statutory requirements, industry data, estimated customer inventory levels, current contract sales terms with our direct and indirect customers, and other competitive factors. Significant judgment and estimation is required in developing the foregoing and other relevant assumptions. The most significant sales deductions are further described below.

Product Returns

Consistent with industry practice, the Company maintains a return policy that generally allows its customers to return Stendra® and receive credit for product within six months prior to expiration date and up to one year after expiration date. The provision for returns is based upon the Company's estimates for future Stendra® returns and historical experience. The provision of returns is part of the variable consideration recorded at the time revenue is recognized. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the reserves for product returns were \$3.8 million and \$3.8 million, respectively, and are included as a component of accrued expenses.

Contract Rebates, Coupon Redemptions and DSA Fees

The Company establishes contracts with wholesalers, chain stores, and indirect customers that provide for rebates, sales incentives, DSA fees and other allowances. Some customers receive rebates upon attaining established sales volumes. Direct rebates are generally rebates paid to direct purchasing customers based on a percentage applied to a direct customer's purchases from us, including fees paid to wholesalers under our DSAs, as described below. Indirect rebates are rebates paid to indirect customers that have purchased our products from a wholesaler under a contract with us.

The Company has entered into DSAs with certain of our significant wholesaler customers that obligate the wholesalers, in exchange for fees paid by us, to: (i) manage the variability of their purchases and inventory levels within specified limits based on product demand and (ii) provide us with specific services, including the provision of periodic retail demand information and current inventory levels for our pharmaceutical products held at their warehouse locations. See Note 3 Accounts Receivable, net for further discussion of these reserves.

Medical Device Sales

The Company's medical device sales consist of domestic and international sales of men's health products for the treatment of erectile dysfunction. The men's health products do not require a prescription and include Vacuum Erection Devices, PreBoost, VenoSeal, penile injections (Rx), and urinary tract infection tests. Under Topic 606, the Company recognizes revenue from medical device sales when its performance obligations with its customers have been satisfied. In the contracts with its customers, the Company has identified a single performance obligation to provide medical devices upon receipt of a customer order. The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the Company's customers obtain control of the medical device, which is typically upon shipment. The Company invoices its customers after the medical devices have been shipped and invoice payments are generally due within 30 days of invoice date for domestic customers and 90 days for international customers.

In determining the transaction price, a significant financing component does not exist since the timing from when the Company delivers the medical devices to when the customers pay for the product is typically less than one year. The Company records medical device sales net of any variable consideration, including but not limited to returns. The Company uses the expected value method when estimating its variable consideration. The identified variable consideration is recorded as a reduction of revenue at the time revenues from the medical device sales are recognized. The Company recognizes revenue to the extent that it is probable that a significant revenue reversal will not occur in a future period. These estimates may differ from actual consideration received. The Company evaluates these estimates each reporting period to reflect known changes.

Product Returns

Consistent with industry practice, the Company maintains a return policy that generally allows its customers to return medical devices and receive credit for products within 90 days of the sale. The provision for returns is based upon the Company's estimates for future product returns and historical experience. The Company has not made significant changes to the judgments made in applying Topic 606. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the reserves for product returns for medical devices were not significant.

Contract Costs

In relation to customer contracts, the Company incurs costs to fulfill a contract but does not incur costs to obtain a contract. These costs to fulfill a contract do not meet the criteria for capitalization and are expensed as incurred. As such, the Company did not have any contract assets at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

<u>Fair Value of Financial</u> <u>Instruments</u>

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Certain assets and liabilities are carried at fair value under U.S. GAAP. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value are to be classified and disclosed in one of the following three levels of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs (other than Level 1 quoted prices), such as quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active for identical or similar assets or liabilities, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to determining the fair value of the assets or liabilities, including pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques.

Financial instruments recognized at historical amounts in the consolidated balance sheets consist of cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current liabilities. The Company believes that the carrying values of cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

In connection with the Mergers in December 2020, each security holder of Metuchen received an earnout consideration classified as a derivative liability to be paid in the form of Petros Common Stock. The Company estimated their fair value using a Monte Carlo Simulation approach. This fair

value measurement is based on significant inputs not observable in the market and thus represents a Level 3 measurement within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of the derivative liability as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was \$0 million and \$0.5 million, respectively. See Note 9 Stockholders' Equity.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees and consultants in accordance with applicable accounting principles, which requires compensation expense related to stock-based transactions, including employee stock options and consultant warrants, to be measured and recognized in the financial statements based on a determination of the fair value of the stock options or warrants. The grant date fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton ("Black-Scholes") pricing model. Employee stock option and consulting expenses are recognized over the employee's or consultant's requisite service period (generally the vesting period of the equity grant).

The Company's option pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility and expected term. Any changes in these highly subjective assumptions can significantly impact stock-based compensation expense. See Note 10 Stock Options.

Income Taxes

Income Taxes

The Company is a C corporation, which accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements. Under this method, the Company determines deferred tax assets and liabilities on the basis of the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities by using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent that it believes that these assets are more likely than not to be realized. In making such a determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax-planning strategies, and results of recent operations. If the Company determines that it would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of its net recorded amount, the Company would make an adjustment to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance, which would reduce the provision for income taxes.

The Company records uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740 on the basis of a twostep process in which (1) it determines whether it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained on the basis of the technical merits of the position and (2) for those tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the Company recognizes the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the related tax authority.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits on the income tax expense line in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, no accrued interest or penalties are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet.

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share

The Company computes basic net loss per common share by dividing net loss applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stocks outstanding during the period, excluding the anti-dilutive effects of stock options and warrants to purchase common stocks. The Company computes diluted net loss per common stock by dividing the net

loss applicable to common stocks by the sum of the weighted-average number of common stocks outstanding during the period plus the potential dilutive effects of its convertible preferred stocks, stock options and warrants to purchase common stocks, but such items are excluded if their effect is anti-dilutive. Because the impact of these items is anti-dilutive during periods of net loss, there was no difference between the Company's basic and diluted net loss per stock of common stock for the three months ended March 31, 2022. See Note 13 Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Pending Adoption as of March 31, 2022

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. ASU 2016-13, together with a series of subsequently issued related ASUs, has been codified in Topic 326. Topic 326 establishes new requirements for companies to estimate expected credit losses when measuring certain financial assets, including accounts receivables. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the new guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Accounts Receivable, net (Tables)

Accounts Receivable, net
Summary of accounts receivable

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

	March 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Gross accounts		
receivables	\$4,528,812	\$3,363,827
Distribution service		
fees	(317,247)	(371,310)
Chargebacks		
accrual	(5,880)	_
Cash discount		
allowances	(202,589)	(159,446)
Allowance for		
doubtful accounts	(262,321)	(377,685)
Total accounts		
receivable, net	\$3,740,775	\$2,455,386

Inventories (Tables)

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Inventories

Schedule of Inventories

	March 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Raw		
materials	\$ 1,854,160	\$ 359,741
Finished		
goods	88,713	159,908
Total		
inventory	\$ 1,942,873	\$ 519,649

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets (Tables)

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets.
Schedule of Prepaid Expenses and Other Current
Assets

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

	March 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Prepaid insurance	\$ 128,004	\$ 73,223
Prepaid FDA fees	554,120	831,179
Prepaid coupon fees	71,500	71,500
API purchase		
commitment asset (see		
Note 13)	1,419,538	1,419,538
Due from wholesalers	609,059	609,059
Other prepaid expenses	624,823	605,422
Other current assets	75,542	110,167
Total prepaid expenses		
and other current assets	\$ 3,482,586	\$ 3,720,088

Intangible Assets (Tables)

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Intangible Assets

Schedule of intangible assets

Balance at	
December 31, 2020	\$32,160,919
Amortization	
expense	(6,867,770)
Balance at	
December 31, 2021	25,293,149
Amortization	
expense	(1,558,315)
Balance at	
March 31, 2022	\$23,734,834
	\$23,734,834

Schedule of future annual amortization of intangible assets

2022 (remaining 9	
months)	4,633,426
2023	5,445,729
2024	4,650,787
2025	2,716,011
2026	2,201,720
Thereafter	4,087,161
Total	\$23,734,834

Accrued Expenses (Tables)

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Accrued Expenses Summary of accrued expenses

	March 31, 2022	December 31, 2021
Accrued price		
protection (see note 13)	\$ —	\$ 1,853,979
Accrued product		
returns	3,763,211	6,192,845
Accrued contract		
rebates	376,937	379,242
Due to Vivus (see Note		
13)	_	2,267,523
Due to third-party		
logistics provider	349,410	479,178
Accrued bonuses	532,729	527,563
Accrued professional		
fees	14,957	125,392
Other accrued expenses	474,762	131,662
Total accrued expenses	\$ 5,512,006	\$ 11,957,384

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units ("RSU's") (Tables)

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units ("RSU's")

Summary of stock options

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Weighted-

Average

Exercise Price

Number of

Shares

Options

Weighted-Average

Remaining

Contractual

Term (Years)

Aggregate Intrinsic

Value (\$ in thousands)

outstanding at						
December 31, 2020	574,331	\$	51.43	0.9	\$ —	
Options granted	615,669		3.38	9.23	_	
Less: options						
forfeited	_		_	_	_	
Less: options						
expired/cancelled	(574,331)		51.43	_	_	
Less: options						
exercised				<u> </u>		
Options						
outstanding at						
December 31, 2021	615,669		3.38	9.23	_	
Options granted	50,000		3.34	9.76	_	
Less: options						
forfeited	_		_	_		
Less: options						
expired/cancelled	_		_	_	_	
Less: options						
exercised	_		_	_	_	
Options						Ī
outstanding at						
		Φ.	2.20		Φ.	
March 31, 2022	665,669	\$	3.38	9.06	<u>\$</u>	
· ·	665,669	\$	3.38	9.06	<u>\$</u>	
Options exercisable						
· ·	381,752	\$	3.44	9.06	<u>\$</u>	
Options exercisable						
Options exercisable						
Options exercisable		\$		9.07		
Options exercisable		\$	3.44	9.07 Weighted-Average	\$ —	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022	381,752 Number of Shares	\$	3.44 Weighted-	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining	\$ —	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at	381,752 Number of Shares	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020	381,752 Number of Shares	\$	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)	\$ — Aggregate Intrinsic	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted	381,752 Number of Shares	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's	381,752 Number of Shares	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's forfeited	Number of Shares 116,383	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's forfeited Less: RSU's expired/	Number of Shares 116,383	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's forfeited Less: RSU's expired/cancelled	Number of Shares 116,383	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's forfeited Less: RSU's expired/cancelled Less: RSU's	Number of Shares 116,383	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's forfeited Less: RSU's expired/cancelled	Number of Shares 116,383	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's forfeited Less: RSU's expired/cancelled Less: RSU's	Number of Shares — 116,383 — — —	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's forfeited Less: RSU's expired/cancelled Less: RSU's exercised	Number of Shares 116,383	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's forfeited Less: RSU's expired/cancelled Less: RSU's exercised RSU's outstanding at	Number of Shares — 116,383 — — —	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price 3.29	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years) 9.84	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's forfeited Less: RSU's expired/cancelled Less: RSU's exercised RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2021	Number of Shares — 116,383 — — —	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price 3.29	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years) 9.84	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's forfeited Less: RSU's expired/cancelled Less: RSU's exercised RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2021 RSU's granted	Number of Shares — 116,383 — — —	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price 3.29	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years) 9.84	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	
Options exercisable at March 31, 2022 RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2020 RSU's granted Less: RSU's forfeited Less: RSU's expired/cancelled Less: RSU's exercised RSU's outstanding at December 31, 2021 RSU's granted Less: RSU's	Number of Shares — 116,383 — — —	\$ <u>Ex</u>	3.44 Weighted- Average ercise Price 3.29	9.07 Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years) 9.84	Aggregate Intrinsic Value (\$ in thousands)	

Less: RSU's expired/						
cancelled	_		_	_	_	_
Less: RSU's						
exercised					_	_
RSU's outstanding at						
March 31, 2022	116,383	\$	3.29	9.60	\$ _	_
RSU's exercisable at		<u> </u>				
March 31, 2022	_	\$	_	_	\$ _	_

Common Stock Warrants (Tables)

Common Stock Warrants

Summary of warrants

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

	Number of Shares
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2020	4,407,962
Warrants issued	7,853,558
Warrants exercised	(2,014,586)
Warrants expired	(207,913)
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2021 and	
March 31, 2022	10,039,021

Summary of warrants by expiration date

Number of Warrants	Exercise Price	Expiration Date
2,780	\$ 1.60	August 23, 2023
22,800	35.65	June 1, 2024
74,864	21.85	June 17, 2024
20,043	31.25	June 19, 2024
22,800	26.55	September 1, 2024
10,500	12.738	September 16, 2024
22,800	4.30	December 1, 2024
28,000	5.65	March 2, 2025
28,000	7.30	June 1, 2025
28,000	5.50	September 1, 2025
28,000	4.705	December 1, 2025
2,221,829	7.50	December 1, 2025
908,498	17.50	December 1, 2025
623,303	51.25	December 1, 2025
157,832	125.00	December 1, 2025
1,751,311	1.715	October 19, 2026
2,337,719	3.50	December 2, 2026
1,749,942	3.50	December 27, 2026
10,039,021		

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share (Tables)

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share

<u>Summary of Computation of Basic and Diluted</u> <u>Net Loss per Share</u>

<u>Summary of Computation of Basic and Diluted</u> <u>Net Loss per Share</u>

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

	For the Three I	
	2022	2021
Numerator		
Net income (loss)	\$ (174,224)	\$3,009,081
Denominator		
Weighted-average common		
shares for basic net income		
(loss) per share	20,684,723	9,753,086
Effect of common share		
equivalents within common		
stock warrants	_	1,600
Weighted-average common		
shares for diluted net (loss)		
income per share	20,684,723	9,754,686
Basic and diluted net income		
(loss) per common share	\$ (0.01)	\$ 0.31
	For the Three	Months Ended
	Mar	ch 31,
	2022	2021
Stock Options	665,669	790,000
RSU's	116,383	_
Warrants	10,039,021	4,405,182

5,195,182

10,821,073

Total

Commitments and Contingencies (Tables)

Commitments and Contingencies

Summary of supplemental balance sheet information related to leases

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases was as follows:

	As of M	arch 31, 2022	As of I	ecember 31, 2021
Operating				
lease ROU				
asset:				
Other assets	\$	447,595	\$	475,557
Operating				
lease				
liability:				
Other				
current				
liabilities	\$	129,458	\$	125,579
Other				
long-term				
liabilities		371,053		405,018
Total				
operating				
lease				
liability	\$	500,511	\$	530,597

Summary of supplemental lease term and discount rate Supplemental lease term and discount rate information related to information related to leases

leases was as follows:

	As of March 31, 2022	As of December 31, 2021
Weighted-average		
remaining lease terms		
- operating leases	3.4 years	3.7 years
Weighted-average		
discount rate -		
operating leases	12.6 %	12.6 %

Summary of supplemental cash flow information related to leases

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases was as follows:

	For the Three Months Ended March 31,	
	2022	2021
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:		
Operating cash flows from operating leases	\$46,935	\$45,942

Summary of future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable leases

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable leases as of March 31, 2022, were as follows:

Lease Liability Maturity Analysis	Operating Leases
2022 (remaining 9 months)	140,805
2023	189,374
2024	155,242
2025	81,107
2026	82,324
Thereafter	

Total lease payments	 648,852
Less: Imputed Interest	(148,341)
Total	\$ 500,511

Segment Information (Tables)

Segment Information

<u>Summary of results of operations by reportable segment</u>

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022

The Company's results of operations by reportable segment for the three months ended March 31, 2022 are summarized as follows:

	Prescription	Medical		
	Medications	Devices	Corporate	Consolidated
Net sales	\$ 1,524,768	\$ 940,401	\$ —	\$ 2,465,169
Cost of goods sold	138,181	334,159	_	472,340
Selling, general				
and administrative				
expenses	1,711,019	663,591	1,523,128	3,897,738
Gain on settlement				
with Vivus	(3,389,941)		_	(3,389,941)
Research and				
development				
expenses	405,360	_	_	405,360
Depreciation and				
amortization				
expense	1,269,663	291,207		1,560,870
Change in fair				
value of derivative				
liability	_	_	(460,000)	(460,000)
Interest expense			153,026	153,026
Income tax				
(expense)				
Net income (loss)	\$ 1,390,486	\$(348,556)	\$(1,216,154)	\$ (174,224)

The Company's results of operations by reportable segment for the three months ended March 31, 2021 are summarized as follows:

	Prescription	Medical		
	Medications	Devices	Corporate	Consolidated
Net sales	\$3,200,647	\$ 874,959	\$ —	\$ 4,075,606
Cost of goods sold	389,281	254,105	_	643,386
Selling, general and				
administrative				
expenses	1,734,333	546,995	1,600,389	3,881,717
Research and				
development				
expense	19,181		_	19,181
Depreciation and				
amortization				
expense	1,398,270	330,559	_	1,728,829
Change in fair				
value of derivative				
liability	_		(5,380,000)	(5,380,000)
Interest expense	_	_	173,412	173,412
Income tax benefit	_	_	_	
Net income (loss)	\$ (340,418)	\$(256,700)	\$ 3,606,199	\$ 3,009,081

Summary of net sales by geographic region

	For the Three	For the Three Months Ended March 31,	
	Marc		
Net sales	2022	2021	

United States	\$2,045,624	\$3,704,523
International	419,545	371,083
	\$2,465,169	\$4,075,606

<u>Summary of assets by reportable segment and reconciliation of segment assets to consolidated assets</u>

The Company's assets by reportable segment and reconciliation of segment assets to consolidated assets as of March 31, 2022, are summarized as follows:

	Prescription		
	Medications	Medical Devices	Consolidated
Intangible			
assets, net	\$17,804,298	\$ 5,930,536	\$23,734,834
Total segment			
assets	\$48,240,984	\$ 7,623,163	\$55,864,147

The Company's assets by reportable segment and reconciliation of segment assets to consolidated assets as of December 31, 2021, are summarized as follows:

	Prescription		
	Medications	Medical Devices	Consolidated
Intangible			
assets, net	\$19,071,407	\$ 6,221,742	\$25,293,149
Total segment			
assets	\$59,657,514	\$ 7,732,544	\$67,390,058

Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation, and Liquidity (Details)

Dec. 07, 2020 USD (\$)

Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation, and Liquidity

Cash in excess of certain limit, subject to adjustment as provided in the Merger Agreement \$20,000,000

Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation, and	1 Months Ended	3 Month		
Liquidity - Additional information (Details) - USD (\$)	ion (Details) - USD Jan. 31, 2022		Mar. 31, 2021	Dec. 31, 2021
Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation, and				
<u>Liquidity</u>				
<u>Cash</u>		\$		\$
		17,671,871		23,847,572
Negative working capital		16,500,000		
Sustained cumulative losses attributable to common stockholders		(70,863,044)		\$ (70,688,820)
Number of shares issued	\$ 10,201,758			
Cash in operations		\$ (5,275,701)	\$ (446,581)	

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Details)	3 Months Ended	
- USD (\$) \$ in Millions	Mar. 31, 2022	Dec. 31, 2021
Disaggregation of Revenue [Line Items]		
Reserves for product returns	\$ 3.8	\$ 3.8
Revenue, Practical Expedient, Financing Component [true false]	true	
Prescription Medication Sales		
Disaggregation of Revenue [Line Items]		
Reserves for sales deductions	\$ 4.7	\$ 4.7
Medical Device Sales		
Disaggregation of Revenue [Line Items]		
Right to return and receive credit for product	90 days	
Minimum Prescription Medication Sales		
Disaggregation of Revenue [Line Items]		
Due period for invoice payments	30 days	
Right to return and receive credit for product	6 months	
Minimum Medical Device Sales Domestic customers		
Disaggregation of Revenue [Line Items]		
Due period for invoice payments	30 days	
Maximum Prescription Medication Sales		
Disaggregation of Revenue [Line Items]		
Due period for invoice payments	75 days	
Right to return and receive credit for product	1 year	
Maximum Medical Device Sales International Customers [Memb	<u>er]</u>	
Disaggregation of Revenue [Line Items]		
Due period for invoice payments	90 days	

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -Additional information (Details) - USD (\$)

Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value of the derivative liability \$ 0 \$ 500,000

Income Taxes

Accrued interest or penalties \$ 0 \$ 0

Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 202		
\$ 4,528,812	\$ 3,363,827	
(317,247)	(371,310)	
(5,880)		
(202,589)	(159,446)	
<u>s</u> (262,321)	(377,685)	
\$ 3,740,775	\$ 2,455,386	
	\$ 4,528,812 (317,247) (5,880) (202,589) §(262,321)	

Accounts Receivable, net -	3 Mont	3 Months Ended		
Additional information (Details) - customer	Mar. 31, 2022	Mar. 31, 2021	Dec. 31, 2021	
Gross sales from customers Customer concentration risk				
Concentration Risk [Line Items]				
Number of customers	3	1		
Gross sales from customers Customer concentration risk One				
customers				
Concentration Risk [Line Items]				
Concentration risk percentage	30.00%	88.00%		
Gross sales from customers Customer concentration risk Two				
<u>customers</u>				
Concentration Risk [Line Items]				
Concentration risk percentage		23.00%		
Gross sales from customers Customer concentration risk Three				
customers				
Concentration Risk [Line Items]				
Concentration risk percentage	22.00%			
Receivables from customers Credit concentration risk				
Concentration Risk [Line Items]				
Number of customers			3	
Receivables from customers Credit concentration risk One				
<u>customers</u>				
Concentration Risk [Line Items]				
Concentration risk percentage	35.00%		40.00%	
Receivables from customers Credit concentration risk Two				
<u>customers</u>				
Concentration Risk [Line Items]				
Concentration risk percentage	31.00%		19.00%	
Number of customers	2			
Receivables from customers Credit concentration risk Three				
<u>customers</u>				
Concentration Risk [Line Items]				
Concentration risk percentage			15.00%	

Inventories (Details) - USD Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021

Inventories

Raw materials	\$ 1,854,160	\$ 359,741
Finished goods	88,713	159,908
Total inventory	\$ 1,942,873	\$ 519,649

Inventories - Additional Information (Details) - USD (\$)

Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021

Inventories

<u>Finished goods are net of valuation reserves</u> \$ 386,892 \$ 383,298 <u>Raw materials are net of valuation reserves</u> \$ 2,872,977 \$ 2,872,977

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets (Details) -USD (\$)

Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets.

<u>Prepaid insurance</u>	\$ 128,004	\$ 73,223
Prepaid FDA fees	554,120	831,179
Prepaid coupon fees	71,500	71,500
API purchase commitment asset (see Note 13)	1,419,538	1,419,538
<u>Due from wholesalers</u>	609,059	609,059
Other prepaid expenses	624,823	605,422
Other current assets	75,542	110,167
Total prepaid expenses and other current assets	\$ 3,482,586	\$ 3,720,088

Intangible Assets (Details) - USD (\$)

Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021

Finite-lived Intangible Assets [Roll Forward]

Amortization expense

\$ (1,558,315) \$ (6,867,770)

Intangible Assets - Future

annual amortization (Details) - USD (\$)

Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021 Dec. 31, 2020

Intangible Assets

2022 (remaining 9 months)	\$ 4,633,426
<u>2023</u>	5,445,729
<u>2024</u>	4,650,787
<u>2025</u>	2,716,011
<u>2026</u>	2,201,720
<u>Thereafter</u>	4,087,161

<u>Total</u> \$ 23,734,834 \$ 25,293,149 \$ 32,160,919

Intangible Assets -Additional Information (Details) - USD (\$)

3 Months Ended

Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021 Dec. 31, 2020

Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]

<u>Carrying value of intangible assets</u> \$ 23,734,834 \$ 25,293,149 \$ 32,160,919

Stendra Product

Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets 10 years

Carrying value of intangible assets \$ 17,800,000 19,100,000

Timm Medical product

Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets 12 years

Carrying value of intangible assets \$4,600,000 4,900,000

PTV product

Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets 12 years

Carrying value of intangible assets \$ 1,300,000 \$ 1,400,000

Accrued Expenses (Details) - War. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021

Accrued Expenses

Accrued price protection (see note 13	3)	\$ 1,853,979
Accrued product returns	\$ 3,763,211	6,192,845
Accrued contract rebates	376,937	379,242
Due to Vivus (see Note 13)		2,267,523
Due to third-party logistic provider	349,410	479,178
Accrued bonuses	532,729	527,563
Accrued professional fees	14,957	125,392
Other accrued expenses	474,762	131,662
Total accrued expenses	\$ 5,512,006	\$ 11,957,384

Debt - Promissory Note (Details)

Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Interest expense \$ 153,026

Note

Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Principal amount \$ 10,201,758

Interest rate (in percent) \$ 6.00%

Interest rate at the time of default (in percent) 9.00%

<u>Interest expense</u>

\$ 153,026

Debt - Senior debt (Details) - Senior debt	Apr. 13, 202	0 Mar. 31, 2020	Nov. 22, 2017 USD (\$)	Sep. 30, 2016 USD (\$)
Debt Instrument [Line Items]				
Face amount of debt			\$ 1,068,750	\$ 35,000,000
Stated interest rate	11.50%	10.75%		10.75%
Paid-In-Kind ("PIK") interest rate				1.35%
End of term charge			1,068,750	\$ 787,500
Amount of principal prepaid			\$ 10,000,000	
Percentage added to variable rate	11.50%	10.75%		10.75%
<u>Minimum</u>				
Debt Instrument [Line Items]				
Fixed charge coverage ratio			0.9	
<u>Maximum</u>				
Debt Instrument [Line Items]				
Fixed charge coverage ratio			1	
<u>Prime rate</u>				
Debt Instrument [Line Items]				
Spread on variable rate	4.25%	4.50%		
Stated interest rate				7.25%
Percentage added to variable rate				7.25%
Debt Instrument, Basis Spread on Variable Rat	<u>e</u> 4.25%	4.50%		

Debt - Financial covenant (Details) - Senior debt - USD (\$)	Feb. 01, 2021	Oct. 01, 2020	Apr. 13, 2020	Mar. 31, 2020	Nov. 22, 2017	Sep. 30, 2016
Debt Instrument [Line						
<u>Items</u>]						
Stated interest rate			11.50%	10.75%		10.75%
End of term fee paid	\$ 534,375	\$ 534,375				
End of term charge					\$ 1,068,750	\$ 787,500
Prime rate						
Debt Instrument [Line						
<u>Items</u>]						
Stated interest rate						7.25%
Spread on variable rate			4.25%	4.50%		

Debt - Third Amendment (Details) - USD (\$)

Nov. 03, 2021 Sep. 30, 2020

Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Repayment of senior debt \$ 1,179,651

Senior debt

Debt Instrument [Line Items]

Required cash proceeds through an equity or debt financing or other transaction \$25,000,000

<u>Escrow fund</u> \$ 1,500,000

Debt - Interest Expenses 3 Months Ended (Details) - USD (\$) Mar. 31, 2021 Dec. 31, 2021

Debt

<u>Interest expense, senior debt</u> \$ 173,412

Accrued and unpaid interest \$ 0

Stockholders' Equity -

Consummation of the Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021

Mergers (Details) - \$ / shares

Stockholders' Equity

Common stock, par value \$ 0.0001 \$ 0.0001 Preferred stock, par value \$ 0.0001 \$ 0.0001

Stockholders' Equity -Number of shares held (Details)

Jan. 26, 2021 shares

Common Stock

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Number of common stock issued upon conversion 60,606

Preferred Stock

Class of Stock [Line Items]

Number of preferred stock converted 500

Stockholders' Equity - Marketing and Consulting Agreement (Details) - USD (\$)	Apr. 07, 2022	Jun. 04, 2021	Apr. 01, 2021	Jan. 01, 2021
Marketing and Consulting Agreement CorProminence, LLC				
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than				
Collaborative [Line Items]				
Term of agreement				1 year
Renewal term of agreement				1 year
Monthly retainer amount				\$
				7,500,000
Number of restricted shares issued				30,000
Consulting and Advisory Agreement Tania King				
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than				
Collaborative [Line Items]			ф	
Monthly retainer amount			\$	
A dditional assument included swith the first according for			4,000,000	
Additional payment included with the first monthly fee			12,000,000)
Restricted share cash value			\$	\
Vesting maried			72,000,000)
Vesting period Consulting and Advisory Agreement Tonic Ving Subsequent			1 year	
Consulting and Advisory Agreement Tania King Subsequent event				
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than				
Collaborative [Line Items]				
Issued additional grants	60,505			
Amount of additional grant	\$ 72,001			
Service Agreement	Ψ 72,001			
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than				
Collaborative [Line Items]				
Term of agreement		1 year		
Renewal term of agreement		1 year		
Monthly retainer amount		\$ 6,750		
Number of restricted shares issued		28,338		
		- ,- = -		

Restricted share cash value

\$ 90,002

Stockholders' Equity -Contingent Consideration (Details)

3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022 shares

Stockholders' Equity

<u>Common Stock potentially issuable upon the achievement of certain milestones</u> 14,232,090

<u>Milestones term for achievement of stock price and market capitalization</u> 2 years

Stockholders' Equity - Market Capitalization (Details) Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than Collaborative [Line	3 Months Ended Mar. 31, 2022 USD (\$) D \$ / shares shares	12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2021 USD (\$) shares
Items]	Φ.Ο.	Φ 700 000
Fair value of the derivative liability	\$ 0	\$ 500,000
Market Capitalization/Gross Proceeds Earnout Payments Metuchen		
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than Collaborative [Line		
Items] Milastona compart nermants (in shares) shares	0	500.000
Milestone earnout payments (in shares) shares	U	500,000
Market Capitalization/Gross Proceeds Earnout Payments Maximum Metuchen Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than Collaborative [Line		
Items]		
Milestone earnout payments (in shares) shares	10,232,090	
Market Capitalization/Gross Proceeds Earnout Payments Market Capitalization is	10,232,070	
greater than or equal to \$250,000,000 Metuchen		
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than Collaborative [Line		
<u>Items</u>]		
Milestone earnout payments (in shares) shares	2,000,000	
Market Capitalization	\$	
	250,000,000)
Number of trading days for stock price trigger D	20	
Number of consecutive trading days for stock price trigger D	30	
Stock price \$ / shares	\$ 17.50	
Aggregate gross proceeds	\$	
	25,000,000	
Term to receive gross proceeds	60 days	
Market Capitalization/Gross Proceeds Earnout Payments Market Capitalization is		
greater than or equal to \$300,000,000 Metuchen		
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than Collaborative [Line Items]		
Milestone earnout payments (in shares) shares	2,000,000	
Market Capitalization	\$	
<u>Market Capitanzation</u>	300,000,000)
Number of trading days for stock price trigger D	20	
Number of consecutive trading days for stock price trigger D	30	
Stock price \$ / shares	\$ 18.75	
Aggregate gross proceeds	\$	
	30,000,000	
Term to receive gross proceeds	60 days	
	-	

Market Capitalization/Gross Proceeds Earnout Payments Market Capitalization is	
greater than or equal to \$400,000,000 Metuchen	
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than Collaborative [Line	
<u>Items</u>]	
Milestone earnout payments (in shares) shares	3,000,000
Market Capitalization	\$
	400,000,000
Number of trading days for stock price trigger D	20
Number of consecutive trading days for stock price trigger D	30
Stock price \$ / shares	\$ 22.50
Aggregate gross proceeds	\$
	40,000,000
Term to receive gross proceeds	60 days
Market Capitalization/Gross Proceeds Earnout Payments Market Capitalization is	
greater than or equal to \$500,000,000 Metuchen	
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than Collaborative [Line	
<u>Items</u>]	
Milestone earnout payments (in shares) shares	3,232,090
Market Capitalization	\$
	500,000,000
Number of trading days for stock price trigger D	20
Number of consecutive trading days for stock price trigger D	30
Stock price \$ / shares	\$ 23.75
Aggregate gross proceeds	\$
	50,000,000
Term to receive gross proceeds	60 days

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units ("RSU's") (Details) - shares

Dec. 22, 2021 Jan. 31, 2022

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units ("RSU's")

Number of shares authorized 2,600,000

Number of shares available for issuance 2,600,000 1,817,948

Number of shares increased for issuance 1,521,654

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units ("PSU's") Summary of		3 Months Ended	12 Months Ended	
("RSU's") - Summary of stock options (Details) - \$ / shares	Jan. 04, 2022	Mar. 31, 2022	Dec. 31, 2021	Dec. 31, 2020
Number of Shares				
Options outstanding and exercisable on beginning		615,669	574,331	
Options granted	50,000	50,000	615,669	
Less: options and RSU's expired/cancelled			(574,331)	
Options and RSU's outstanding at the end		665,669	615,669	574,331
Options and RSU's exercisable at the end		381,752		
Weighted-Average Exercise Price				
Options outstanding and exercisable at the beginning (in		\$ 3.38	\$ 51.43	
dollars per share)		ф 3.36	\$ 51. 4 5	
Options granted (in dollars per share)	\$ 3.34	3.34	3.38	
Less: options expired/cancelled (in dollars per share)			51.43	
Options outstanding at the end (in dollars per share)		3.38	\$ 3.38	\$ 51.43
Options exercisable at the end (in dollars per share)		\$ 3.44		
Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term				
(Years) and Aggregate Intrinsic Value				
Options outstanding and exercisable at the beginning (in		9 years 21	9 years 2	10 months
years)		days	months 23 days	24 days
Options granted (in years)		9 years 9 months 3 days	9 years 2 months 23 days	
Options outstanding at the end (in years)		9 years 21 days	9 years 2 months 23 days	10 months 24 days
Options exercisable at the end (in years)		9 years 25 days	monus 20 days	2. aays
Restricted Stock Units				
Number of Shares				
Options outstanding and exercisable on beginning		116,383	0	
Options granted			116,383	
Options and RSU's outstanding at the end		116,383	116,383	0
Weighted-Average Exercise Price				
Options outstanding and exercisable at the beginning (in		\$ 3.29	\$ 0	
dollars per share)		ψ 3.29	•	
Options granted (in dollars per share)			3.29	
Options outstanding at the end (in dollars per share)		\$ 3.29	\$ 3.29	\$ 0
Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term				
(Years) and Aggregate Intrinsic Value		0 7	0 10	
Options outstanding and exercisable at the beginning (in		9 years 7	9 years 10	0 years
years) Options granted (in years)		months 6 days	9 years 10 months 2 days	

9 years 7 9 years 10 months 6 days months 2 days 0 years

				hs Ended	12 Months Ended
Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units ("RSU's") - Additional Information (Details)	Apr. 07, 2022 director \$ / shares shares	Jan. 04, 2022 \$/ shares shares	Mar. 31, 2022 USD (\$) \$ / shares shares	Mar 31	2021 \$ / shares
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based	<u>l</u>				
Payment Award [Line Items]					
Number of options granted shares		50,000	50,000		615,669
Exercise price \$ / shares		\$ 3.34	\$ 3.34		\$ 3.38
Vesting percentage		100.00%		•	
Stock-based compensation expense \$			\$ 355,828	\$ 347,207	
Restricted Stock Units					
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based	<u>l</u>				
Payment Award [Line Items]					
Number of options granted shares					116,383
Exercise price \$ / shares					\$ 3.29
<u>Subsequent event</u>					
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based	<u>l</u>				
Payment Award [Line Items]					
Vesting percentage	100.00%	1			
Subsequent event Restricted Stock Units					
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based	<u>l</u>				
Payment Award [Line Items]	<u>.</u>				
Number of directors to whom option is granted director	4				
Number of options granted shares	248,742				
Exercise price \$ / shares	\$ 1.19				
Vesting period	1 year				
Tania King Subsequent event Restricted Stock Units	_				
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based	<u>l</u>				
Payment Award [Line Items] Exercise price \$ / shares	\$ 1.19				
* 1	\$ 1.19 100.00%				
Vesting period Vesting period		1			
	1 year				
Option grants shares	60,505				

Common Stock Warrants -	3 Months Ended 12 Months Ended			
Summary of warrants (Details) - shares	Mar. 31, 2022	Dec. 31, 2021		
Common Stock Warrants				
Warrants outstanding at the beginnin	g 10,039,021	4,407,962		
Warrants issued	0	7,853,558		
Warrants exercised	0	(2,014,586)		
Warrants expired	0	(207,913)		
Warrants outstanding at the end	10,039,021	10,039,021		

Common Stock Warrants -Company's warrants by expiration date (Details) - \$ /

Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021 Dec. 31, 2020

shares			
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]			
Number of Warrants	10,039,021	10,039,021	4,407,962
Expiration Date of August 23, 2023			
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]			
Number of Warrants	2,780		
Exercise Price	\$ 1.60		
Expiration Date of June 1, 2024			
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]			
Number of Warrants	22,800		
Exercise Price	\$ 35.65		
Expiration Date of June 17, 2024			
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]			
Number of Warrants	74,864		
Exercise Price	\$ 21.85		
Expiration Date of June 19, 2024			
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]			
Number of Warrants	20,043		
Exercise Price	\$ 31.25		
Expiration Date of September 1, 2024			
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]			
Number of Warrants	22,800		
Exercise Price	\$ 26.55		
Expiration Date of September 16, 2024			
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]			
Number of Warrants	10,500		
Exercise Price	\$ 12.738		
Expiration Date of December 1, 2024			
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]			
Number of Warrants	22,800		
Exercise Price	\$ 4.30		
Expiration Date of March 2, 2025			
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]			
Number of Warrants	28,000		

	_		

Exercise Price

Exercise Price

Number of Warrants

Expiration Date of June 1, 2025

Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]

Expiration Date of September 1, 2025
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]

\$ 5.65

28,000

\$ 7.30

Number of Warrants	28,000
Exercise Price	\$ 5.50
Expiration Date of December 1, 2025, One	
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]	
Number of Warrants	28,000
Exercise Price	\$ 4.705
Expiration Date of December 1, 2025, Two	
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]	
Number of Warrants	2,221,829
Exercise Price	\$ 7.50
Expiration Date of December 1, 2025, Three	<u>2</u>
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]	
Number of Warrants	908,498
Exercise Price	\$ 17.50
Expiration Date of December 1, 2025, Four	
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]	
Number of Warrants	623,303
Exercise Price	\$ 51.25
Expiration Date of December 1, 2025, Five	
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]	
Number of Warrants	157,832
Exercise Price	\$ 125.00
Expiration Date Of October 19 2026	
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]	
Number of Warrants	1,751,311
Exercise Price	\$ 1.715
Expiration Date of December 2, 2026	
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]	
Number of Warrants	2,337,719
Exercise Price	\$ 3.50
Expiration Date of December 27, 2026	
Class of Warrant or Right [Line Items]	
Number of Warrants	1,749,942
Exercise Price	\$ 3.50

Basic and Diluted Net Loss	3 Mon	3 Months Ended			
per Common Share - Summary of Computation of Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Share (Details) - USD (\$)	Mar. 31, 2022 Mar. 31, 2021				
<u>Numerator</u>					
Net (loss) income	\$ (174,224)	\$ 3,009,081			
Weighted average common shares outstanding					
Weighted-average common shares for basic net loss per unit	20,684,723	9,753,086			
Effect of common share equivalents within common stock warrar	<u>nts</u>	1,600			
Weighted-average common shares for diluted net loss per unit	20,684,723	9,754,686			
Basic net loss per common share	\$ (0.01)	\$ 0.31			
Diluted net loss per common share	\$ (0.01)	\$ 0.31			

Basic and Diluted Net Loss 3 Months Ended

Mar. 31,

2022

Mar. 31,

2021

per Common Share -Summary of Potentially

Dilutive Securities

Convertible Into Common

Shares Excluded from

Calculation of Net Loss Per Share (Details) - shares

Share (Details) - shares

Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line

Items]

<u>Total</u> 10,821,073 5,195,182

Stock Options

Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line

Items]

<u>Total</u> 665,669 790,000

RSUs

Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line

Items]

<u>Total</u> 116,383

Warrants

Antidilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per Share [Line

Items]

Total 10,039,021 4,405,182

			3 Months E		
Marketing, Licensing and Distribution Agreements - Vivus (Details)	Jan. 18, 2022 USD (\$)	Sep. 30, 2016 USD (\$)	Mar. 31, 2022 USD (\$)	Mar. 31, 2021 USD (\$)	Dec. 31, 2021 USD (\$)
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement				()	
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]					
Noncash decrease in accrued expenses related to Vivus			\$		
settlement N. I.			(6,520,283)		
Noncash decrease in accrued inventory purchases related to Vivus settlement			(14,203,905)		
Gain on settlement with Vivus			3,389,941		
API purchase commitment asset			1,419,538		\$ 1,419,538
License Agreement Royalty on the first \$500 million			1,117,550		Ψ 1,117,550
of net sales					
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement					
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]					
Threshold net sales			500,000,000		
License Agreement Milestone payment to be paid					
once \$250 million in sales has been reached					
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement					
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]					
Threshold net sales			250,000,000		
Milestone payment			6,000,000		
License Agreement Milestone payment to be paid					
after \$250 million in sales has been reached					
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than Collaborative [Line Items]					
Threshold net sales			250,000,000		
Milestone payment			\$ 3,200,000		
License Agreement Vivus, Inc			ψ 3,200,000		
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement					
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]					
One-time fee to purchase and receive the license for		\$			
the commercialization and exploitation of Stendra		70,000,000)		
License Agreement Vivus, Inc Royalty during the					
first, second, and third years following the expiration					
of the Royalty Period					
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement					
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]			2.00%		
Royalty percentage License Agreement Vivus Inc Povelty fellowing			2.0070		
License Agreement Vivus, Inc Royalty following the fourth and fifth years following the end of the					
Royalty Period					
<u> 10 julij 1 0110 u</u>					

Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement Other than Collaborative [Line Items]			
Royalty percentage		1.00%	
License Agreement MTPC		1.0070	
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement			
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]			
Royalty incurred			\$
Royalty incurred		\$ 76,238	160,032
Royalty receivable		\$ 4,897	81,136
License Agreement MTPC Royalty on the first \$500)	ψ 4,027	01,130
million of net sales	<u> </u>		
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement			
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]			
Royalty percentage		5.00%	
License Agreement MTPC Royalty on net sales			
after \$500 million			
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement			
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]			
Royalty percentage		6.00%	
Settlement Agreement Vivus, Inc			
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement			
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]			
<u>Inventory amount retained - API</u>	\$		
	7,300,000		
Payment made for purchase order	\$		
	1,542,904		
Percentage of stendra tablets released	50		
Threshold number of days to release remaining	180 days		
percentage of stendra Tablets upon satisfaction	·		
Noncash decrease in accrued expenses related to Vivu	<u>S</u>	\$ 6,500,000)
settlement N. H.			
Noncash decrease in accrued inventory purchases related to Vivus settlement		14,200,000	
Gain on settlement with Vivus		3,400,000	
		6,200,000	
Decrease in API purchase commitment Accrued inventory purchases		0,200,000	14 200 000
Settlement Agreement Vivus, Inc Other Current		U	14,200,000
Assets [Member]			
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement			
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]			
API purchase commitment asset		1,400,000	1,400,000
Settlement Agreement Vivus, Inc Other Noncurrent		1,100,000	1,700,000
Assets [Member]			
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement			
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]			

Accrued inventory purchases, non-current		4,800,000	\$ 11,000,000.0
Settlement Agreement Vivus, Inc Promissory Note			
Collaborative Arrangement and Arrangement			
Other than Collaborative [Line Items]			
Principal amount of notes payable	\$	\$	
	10,201,758	10,200,000	
Prepayment amount	\$ 900,000		

Marketing, Licensing and								1 M	lonths	Ended
Distribution Agreements - Hybrid (Details) - Hybrid - USD (\$)	Mar. 24, 2022	Dec. 23, 2021	Dec. 01, 2021	Oct. 31, 2021	Oct. 01, 2021	Mar. 31, 2021	Sep. 24, 2020	Dec. 31, 2020	Oct. 31, 2020	Mar. 31, 2020
Exclusive license to H100										
Collaborative Arrangement										
and Arrangement Other										
than Collaborative [Line										
<u>Items</u>]										
<u>Initial license fee</u>										\$ 100,000
Additional payment due upon										
obtainment of orphan										900,000
indication for H100										
Annual payments due on first										127.000
anniversary of the license										125,000
agreement										
Annual payments due on										1.50.000
second anniversary of the										150,000
license agreement										
Annual payments due on third										200.000
anniversary of the license										200,000
<u>agreement</u>										
Annual payments due after										250,000
third anniversary of the license										250,000
<u>agreement</u>										
Payments upon first										¢.
commercial sale and a sliding										\$
scale of percentage payments on net sales										1,000,000
Threshold period of notice required to terminate										
agreement at any time after										90 days
first anniversary										
Extension payment of license								\$	\$	
agreement								100,000)
Extension term of license						6	6	100,000	, 50,000	,
agreement						months		2		
One-time, non-creditable and						\$	monum	3		
non-refundable payment						200,000)			
Threshold period for payments						200,000	•			
of one-time, non-creditable						7 days				
and non-refundable payment						, augs				
Exclusive license to H100										
Minimum										
Collaborative Arrangement										
and Arrangement Other										
was the migrified Court										

than Collaborative [Line **Items**] Royalty percentage 3.00% Exclusive license to H100 | **Maximum Collaborative Arrangement** and Arrangement Other than Collaborative [Line **Items**] Royalty percentage 6.00% Amended license agreement of H100 **Collaborative Arrangement** and Arrangement Other than Collaborative [Line **Items**] Payment of License Fees \$ 150,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 150,000

Commitments and Contingencies (Details) - Dec. 31, 2020 Separation Agreement - Mr. USD (\$) Keith Lavan

Commitments And Contingencies [Line Items]

Stay-on bonus	\$ 50,000
Percentage of base salary to be paid as an advisor	50.00%
Percentage of fees as an advisor paid	70.00%
Percentage of fees as an advisor to be paid in equal installme	nts 30.00%

Commitments and 3 Months Ended

Contingencies - Operating Leases (Details) - USD (\$) Mar. 31, 2022 Jan. 10, 2022

Lessee, Lease, Description [Line Items]

Security deposit received for sublease \$ 14,000

Operating lease expense per month \$7,000

Minimum

Lessee, Lease, Description [Line Items]

Remaining lease terms 2 years 4 months 24 days

Maximum

Lessee, Lease, Description [Line Items]

Remaining lease terms 4 years 9 months 18 days

Commitments and Contingencies - Lease expense (Details) - USD (\$)

3 Months Ended

Mar. 31, 2022 Mar. 31, 2021

Operating Lease Cost:

<u>Fixed lease cost</u> \$ 44,812 \$ 44,812

Amount of fixed lease cost which are offset by sublease income \$ 21,000

Commitments and Contingencies - Supplemental balance sheet (Details) - USD (\$)	Mar. 31, 2022	Dec. 31, 2021
Supplemental balance sheet information related t	<u>o leases</u>	
Operating lease ROU asset: Other assets	\$ 447,595	\$ 475,557
Operating lease ROU asset	Other assets	
Operating lease liability:		
Operating lease liability, current	\$ 129,458	125,579
Other current liabilities	Other current liabilities	S
Operating lease liability, noncurrent	\$ 371,053	405,018
Other long-term liabilities	Other long-term liabili	ties
Total operating lease liability	\$ 500,511	\$ 530,597

Commitments and	3 Months Er		
Contingencies - Lease term and discount (Details) - USD (\$)	Mar. 31, 2022	Mar. 31, 2021	Dec. 31, 2021
Commitments and Contingencies			
Weighted-average remaining lease terms - operating leases	3 years 4 months 24 days		3 years 8 months 12 days
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases	12.60%		12.60%
<u>Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:</u>			
Operating cash flows from operating leases	\$ 46,935	\$ 45,942	

Commitments and Contingencies - Minimum lease payments (Details) -USD (\$)

Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable leases

2022 (remaining 9 months)	\$ 140,805	
<u>2023</u>	189,374	
<u>2024</u>	155,242	
<u>2025</u>	81,107	
<u>2026</u>	82,324	
Total lease payments	648,852	
Less: Imputed Interest	(148,341)	
Total operating lease liability	\$ 500,511	\$ 530,597

Commitments and Contingencies - Future Minimum Sublease Income

Mar. 31, 2022 USD (\$)

(Details)
Operating Leases, Future Minimum Payments Receivable, Sub-lease [Abstract]

2022 (remaining 9 months)	\$ 63,000
<u>2023</u>	84,000
<u>2024</u>	56,000
<u>Total</u>	\$ 203,000

Commitments and Contingencies - Additional information (Details)

Mar. 31, 2022 USD (\$)

Commitments and Contingencies

Operating leases that had not yet commenced \$ 0

	3 Months Ended	
Segment Information (Details)	Mar. 31, 2022 USD (\$) segment	² Mar. 31, 2021 USD (\$)
Results of operations by reportable segment		
Net sales	\$ 2,465,169	\$ 4,075,606
Cost of goods sold	472,340	643,386
Selling, general and administrative expenses	3,897,738	3,881,717
Gain on settlement with Vivus	(3,389,941)	
Research and development expenses	405,360	19,181
Depreciation and amortization expense	1,560,870	1,728,829
Change in fair value of derivative liability	(460,000)	(5,380,000)
<u>Interest expense</u>	153,026	173,412
Net income (loss)	\$ (174,224)	3,009,081
Operating segments		
Segment Reporting Information [Line Items	1	
Number of Operating Segments segment	2	
Corporate		
Results of operations by reportable segment		
Selling, general and administrative expenses	\$ 1,523,128	1,600,389
Change in fair value of derivative liability	(460,000)	(5,380,000)
<u>Interest expense</u>	153,026	173,412
Net income (loss)	(1,216,154)	3,606,199
<u>Prescription Medication Sales</u>		
Results of operations by reportable segment		
Net sales	1,524,768	3,200,647
Cost of goods sold	138,181	389,281
Selling, general and administrative expenses	1,711,019	1,734,333
Gain on settlement with Vivus	(3,389,941)	
Research and development expenses	405,360	19,181
Depreciation and amortization expense	1,269,663	1,398,270
Net income (loss)	1,390,486	(340,418)
Medical Device Sales		
Results of operations by reportable segment		
Net sales	940,401	874,959
Cost of goods sold	334,159	254,105
Selling, general and administrative expenses	663,591	546,995
Depreciation and amortization expense	291,207	330,559
Net income (loss)	\$ (348,556)	\$ (256,700)

Segment Information - Net Sales by Geographic region (Details) - USD (\$)

3 Months Ended

Mar. 31, 2022 Mar. 31, 2021

Revenues from External	Customers and Long-I	Lived Assets [L	ine Items]

Net sales \$ 2,465,169 \$ 4,075,606

United States

Revenues from External Customers and Long-Lived Assets [Line Items]

Net sales 2,045,624 3,704,523

International

Revenues from External Customers and Long-Lived Assets [Line Items]

<u>Net sales</u> \$ 419,545 \$ 371,083

Segment Information -Segment assets (Details) -USD (\$)

Mar. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021

Segment Reporting	, Asset Reconciling	<u>Item</u>	[Line Items]

Intangible assets, net	\$ 23,734,834	\$ 25,293,149
<u>Total segment assets</u>	55,864,147	67,390,058
Description Madication Cales		

<u>Prescription Medication Sales</u>

Segment Reporting, Asset Reconciling Item [Line Items]

Intangible assets, net	17,804,298	19,071,407
Total segment assets	48,240,984	59,657,514

Medical Device Sales

Segment Reporting, Asset Reconciling Item [Line Items]

Intangible assets, net	5,930,536	6,221,742
Total segment assets	\$ 7,623,163	\$ 7,732,544

```
Section 1. A secti
Section 1. 
The state of the s
                                                The second of th
```

```
Section 1 and 1 an
```

```
Section Section 2015 And the s
The second secon
Section of the control of the contro
              The control of the co
              Sign Characteristics and the control of the control
Service of the control of the contro
```

```
Secretary of the control of the cont
```

```
Section 1997 - Sectio
Command of Transmitteness of Agriculture and A
Employee and the second second
common or the common of the co
                       Control of the contro
                       Section 1, 19 department of the control of the cont
And the second s
Control Contro
```

=

```
Constitution of the consti
                                                     Transmission of the property o
Comment of the commen
                                                                                                           Control (Security Security Sec
                          Section 1. The section of the sectio
                                                                                The second secon
                          Company of the compan
                                                                                An extraction of the control of the
```

```
Comment of the Commen
Security and the set of the security of the se
```

```
The control of the co
                  Security of the Control of the Contr
                  Section 1. The section of the sectio
```

```
General Control Contro
```

```
The continue of the continue o
```

```
Section 1. The same decision in collection compared to the same decision of the same decision
```

```
Section 1. The control of the contro
                                            Security of the security of th
```

```
Section of the sectio
Target and all and all
                                     Scanner, The analysis of the second s
```

```
Section 2. The section of the sectio
Foundation of the distance of the control of the co
```

```
Section Section 1997.

Section 1997.
                                          State of the control of the control
```

```
Account of the control of the contro
Total Control of the Control of the
```

```
The analysis of the second sec
```

```
Control of the Contro
Annual and the second and the second
                                                     The control of the co
Section 2 and the second of th
```

```
Transit Sequence (Interest)

Secured - Transport (Interest)

Lower Sequence (Interest)

Lower Sequence
                                                              The state of the s
```

```
Company (Mary Co
```

```
The state of the s
Tought |
Tou
```

| The content of the